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Ten Years' Highlights Z Crores)

2011-12 | 2012-13 | 2013-14 | 2014-15 | 2015-16 | 2016-17 | 2017-18 | 2018-19 | 2019-20 | 2020-21
Total Income 2342.98 | 2797.08 | 325625 | 312040 | 287073 | 3178.87 | 325875 | 3687.74 | 4432.12| 5201.40
Domestic Income 941.01| 1081.00 | 119023 | 1367.54 | 1440.88 | 161713 | 1694.54 | 1956.90 | 228837 | 2484.21
Export Income 1401.97 | 171608 | 2066.02 | 1752.86 | 1429.85 | 1561.74 | 1564.21| 173084 | 2143.75| 2717.19
ED:':‘::ga':ie:zr; 'II'T:;eSt’ 52640 | 639.95| 82666 | 55627 | 341.81| 43520 | 47882| 76526| 993.41| 1534.47
Profit before Tax 36894 | 46137 | 62009| 357.73| 11145 25820| 282.80 | 557.39| 784.97 | 1379.96
Net Profit after Tax 28017 | 33139 47737| 25611| 9252| 18829 | 233.11| 45491| 65246 1140.77
Share Capital 2523| 2524 | 2524| 2524| 2524| 2524| 2524| 2527 2527 2537
Reserves & Surplus 1237.04 | 154461| 195637 | 219657 | 2257.81| 2449.88 | 2669.71| 311139 | 3640.33 | 4727.35
Net Worth 126227 | 1569.85 | 1981.61| 2221.81| 2283.05 | 2475.12 | 2694.95 | 3136.66 | 3665.60 | 4752.72
Net Block 100733 | 120450 | 1471.01| 2019.91| 210551 2040.84 | 1927.84 | 1806.06 | 1925.16 | 2050.60
Dividend (%) 160% | 200% | 250% |  50% | 50%| 50% | 150%| 250% |  400%
Earnings per share (3) 22.23 26.27 37.83 20.29 7.33 14.92 18.47 36.01 51.64 90.08
Book Value per share (%) | 10006 | 12439 | 157.02| 176.05| 18091| 196.12| 21355| 24825 290.11| 37467

# Before Foreign Exchange Gain /Loss
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Registered Office

48, Kandivli Industrial Estate
Kandivli (West)

Mumbai 400 067

India

T: 491 22 6647 4444

F:+91 22 6210 5005

Research & Development Centre
48,58-DD, 123 AB, 125 & 126 (Amalgamated)
Kandivli Industrial Estate

Kandivli (West)

Mumbai 400 067

India

T:4+91 22 6210 5000

F:+91 226210 5439

Registrars & Share Transfer Agents
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C-101, 247 Park

L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai 400 083

T:+91 22 4918 6000

F: 491224918 6060

Bankers
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Citibank N.A.
Corporation Bank

DBS Bank India Ltd.
HDFC Bank Ltd.

HSBC Ltd.

ICICI Bank Ltd.

Kotak Mahindra Bank
Standard Chartered Bank
United Overseas Bank Ltd.
Yes Bank Ltd.
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Madhya Pradesh
P.O. Sejavta 457 002, Ratlam
T:+91 7412 278000 | F: +91 7412 279083

89 A-B/90/91, Industrial Estate, Pologround
Indore 452 003
T:+91 7312421172 | F:+91 7312422082

1, Pharma Zone
SEZ Indore, Pithampur 454 775
T:+91 7292 667777 | F:+91 7292 667020

470,471 & 481 Sector lll, Industrial Area,
Pithampur 454 775
T: 49107292 256167

Gujarat

Plot No. 69 to 72-B, Sector I, KASEZ
Gandhidham 370 230

T:+91 2836 252385 | F: +91 2836 252313

4722, GIDC Industrial Estate
Ankleshwar 393 002
T:+91 2646 220594 | F: +91 2646 250435

23-24, GIDC Industrial Estate
Nandesari 391 340
T: +91 265 2840795 | F: +91 265 2840868

Village Ranu (Taluka Padra) 391 445
T:+91 2662 227300

Union Territory of Dadra & Nagar Haveli
Plot No. 255/1, Village Athal

Silvassa 396 230

T: 491 260 2640301 | F: +91 260 2640303

Plot No. 65, 99 & 126, Danudyog Indl. Estate
Silvassa 396 230
T:+91 260 2640850 | F: +91 260 2640646

Maharashtra

H-4, G4 to G7, MIDC, Waluj Indl. Area (Unit | and II)
Aurangabad 431 136

T:+91 240 6611501 | F: +91 240 2564113

C 89 to C 95, MIDC Industrial Area
Mahad 402 309
T:+91 2145 232058 | F: +91 2145 232055

T-139, MIDC, Tarapur, Palghar 401 506
T:+91 02525 205273

Uttarakhand

C-6, Sara Indl. Estate, Chakrata Road
Rampur, Dehradun 248 197

T:+91 135 2699195 | F: +91 135 2699171

Sikkim
393/ 394, Melli-Jorethang Road (Unit | and II)
Gom Block, Bharikhola, South District 737 121
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Ca NOTICE

NOTICEis hereby given thatthe 71 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM) of Ipca Laboratories Limited (CIN L24239MH1949PLC007837)
will be held on Thursday, 2" September, 2021 at 3.30 p.m. through Video Conferencing / Other Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM) to
transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2021 together with
the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2021
together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To confirm payment of interim dividend of ¥ 8/- per equity share as final dividend for the financial year ended
31t March, 2021.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Prashant Godha (DIN 00012759) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment.

4.  Toappointa Directorin place of Mr. Premchand Godha (DIN 00012691) who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

himself for re-appointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203, Schedule V and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Company hereby accords its approval
to the re-appointment of and remuneration payable to Mr. Prashant Godha (DIN 00012759) as the Executive Director
of the Company for a further period of 5 years commencing 16" August, 2021 on the terms and conditions including
remuneration as approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board and as set out in the
agreement dated 28" May, 2021 entered into between the Company and Mr. Prashant Godha, a copy whereof initialled
by the Chairman for the purpose of identification is placed before the meeting, which agreement is hereby specifically
approved.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, matters, deeds and things and to
take such steps as expedient or desirable to give effect to this Resolution.”

IMPORTANT NOTES:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 (3) and such other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules made thereunder, M/s. ABK & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 000036) who have been appointed as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the audit of the cost records
for the financial year 2021-22 be paid remuneration of ¥ 7,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Lacs Only) plus service tax and
reimbursement of traveling and other out of pocket expenses.”

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) setting out material facts
concerning the business under Item No. 5 and 6 of the accompanying Notice, is annexed hereto. The Board of Directors
of the Company at its meeting held on 28" May, 2021 considered that the special business under Item No. 5 and 6 being
considered unavoidable, be transacted at the 715t AGM of the Company.

General instructions for accessing and participating in the 71t AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and voting through
electronic means including remote e-Voting

a. Inview of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norms to be followed and the restriction
imposed on movement / gathering of persons at several places in the country and pursuant to General Circulars
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time
and in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the 71t AGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM Facility,
which does not require physical presence of members at a common venue. The deemed venue for the 71t AGM shall
be the office of the Company situated at Plot No. 125, Kandivli Industrial Estate, Kandivli (West), Mumbai — 400 067.
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b.  In terms of the circulars issued by MCA since the physical attendance of Members has been dispensed with, there is no
requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies by Members under Section
105 of the Act will not be available for the 71t AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and Section 113 of the Act,
representatives of the Members may be appointed for the purpose of voting through remote e-Voting and for participation
in the 71t AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and e-Voting.

c¢.  The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode between 30 minutes before and 15 minutes after the scheduled time
of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation
at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors, etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction of first come
first served basis.

d.  Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM Facility, the Route Map of the AGM venue, proxy form and attendance slip is
not annexed in this Notice.

e.  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (as amended) and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time, the Company
is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating
voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting
system as well as voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

f.  Inline with the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI, the Notice of the 71t AGM will be available on the website of the Company
at www.ipca.com and on the websites of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and The National Stock Exchange of India
Limited (NSE) at www.nseindia.com and also on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

g. Attendance of the Members participating in the 71t AGM through VC/OAVM Facility shall be counted for the purpose of
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

h.  The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170 of the Act,
and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the
Act, will be available electronically for inspection on the website of the Company by the members during the AGM. All
documents referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from
the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can send an email
to investors@ipca.com.

i. Members of the Company under the category of Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at the AGM
through VC. Corporate members intending to authorize their representatives to participate and vote at the meeting
are requested to send a certified copy of the Board resolution / authorization letter to the Company or upload on the
VC portal / e-voting portal.

j. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries
of India (“ICSI") and Regulation 44 of Listing Regulations read with circulars issued by MCA and SEBI in this regard, the
Company is providing remote e-Voting facility to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 71t AGM
and facility for those Members participating in the 715t AGM to cast vote through e-Voting system during the 71t AGM.

k.  AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
circulars issued by MCA and SEBI from time to time.

The Instructions for Members for Remote E-Voting and joining General Meeting are as under:-

a. Theremote e-voting period begins on Monday, 30™ August, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Wednesday, 1 September, 2021
at 5.00 p.m. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names
appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday, 27" August, 2021, may
cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 27" August, 2021.

b.  Any person who is not a Member as on the cut off date should treat this notice for information purpose only. Once the vote
on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

¢.  Howdo | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:



http://www.ipca.com
http://www.bseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com

©lipca

dose of life

in demat mode is given below:

STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM

A.  Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

i.  In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities

Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

1.

If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the
e-Services website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.
Once the home page of e-Services is launched, click on the“Beneficial Owner”icon
under “Login” which is available under “IDeAS” section. A new screen will open.
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication,
you will be able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under
e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on options
available against company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you will
be re-directed to NSDL e-Voting website for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS” Portal or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReqg.jsp

Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a
mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon
“Login” which is available under‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account
number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the
screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on options available against
company name or e-Voting service provider - NSDL and you will be redirected
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in demat
mode with CDSL

Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page
without any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click
on New System Myeasi.

After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Voting
Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on
NSDL to cast your vote.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing demat
Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email
as recorded in the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be
provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in demat
mode) login through their
depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Once
you login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available
against company name or e-Voting service provider-NSDL and you will be
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting and voting during the meeting.



https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website (s).

ii. Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login
through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
holding securities in demat | sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and
mode with NSDL 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending
holding securities in demat |a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or
mode with CDSL 022-23058542-43

Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders
holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

i.  Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.
com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

ii. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholder/Member’section.

iii. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen.

iv.  Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with
your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting
and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

v.  Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL or CDSL) | Your User ID is:
or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in demat account | 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID

with NSDL. For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is
12%***¥%% then your user ID is IN3QQ***12¥*x***_

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12¥**x*xxxxxxxex
then your user ID js 12¥*¥*x%xxxxxxxx
c¢) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered

with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is
101456 then user ID is 101456001 ***

vi. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
»  Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can use your existing password to login and cast your vote.

»  If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which
was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password; you need to enter the ‘initial password’
and the system will force you to change your password.

»  How to retrieve your‘initial password’?

a. If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password'’ is
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you by NSDL from your mailbox. Open
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf
file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number
for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID"and your ‘initial password"



mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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b.  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not registered

vii. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the” Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

> Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or
CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

»  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

»  If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your
registered address, etc.

»  Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting
system of NSDL.

viii. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.
ix. Now, you will have to click on“Login” button.
X.  After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

STEP 2: CAST YOUR VOTE ELECTRONICALLY AND JOIN GENERAL MEETING ON NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM.
A)  How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?

i.  After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN" in which you are holding shares and
whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

ii. Select”EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your
vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on“VC/OAVM" link placed under“Join
General Meeting”.

iii. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

iv.  Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

v.  Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.
vi.  You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

vii. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

4, General Guidelines for shareholders

a. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/
JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to scrutinizer@ipca.com with a
copy marked to evoting@nsd|.co.in.

b. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to
key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

¢. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll
free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Ms Pallavi Dabke, Manager, NSDL, ‘A’Wing, Trade
World, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013 at evoting@nsdl.co.in

5. Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and
password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

a. Incasesharesare held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) by email to investors@ipca.com.
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b. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investors@ipca.com. If you are an Individual
shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at Step 1
(A)i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

c.  Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password
for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

d. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by listed companies, Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.

6.  Theinstructions for members for e-voting on the day of the AGM are as under :

a. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

b.  Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not cast
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be
eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM.

¢.  Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will not be
eligible to vote at the AGM.

d. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the
day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting.

7. Instructions for Members for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM are as under:

a.  Member will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system.
Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful
login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General meeting” menu against company name.
You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will
be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may
retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush.

b. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience.

c.  Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

d. Please note that participants connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
mobile hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fi or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

e. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id and mobile number at investors@ipca.
com.The same will be replied by the Company suitably.

8.  The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid up equity share capital of the Company
as on the cut-off date of 27" August, 2021.

9.  Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes Member of the Company after the Company sends the
Notice of the 71** AGM by email and holds shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 27" August, 2021, may obtain the User ID
and password by sending a request to the Company’s email address investors@ipca.com. However, if you are already
registered with NSDL for remote e-Voting then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If
you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password?” or“Physical User Reset
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

10. Aperson, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the

depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-Voting or casting vote through
e-Voting system during the AGM.
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11.

Mr. P.N. Parikh (Membership No. FCS327 CP1228) or failing him Ms. Jigyasa N. Ved (Membership No. FCS6488 CP6018)
or failing them Mr. Mitesh Dhabliwala (Membership No. FCS8331 CP9511) of M/s. Parikh & Associates, Practising
Company Secretaries have been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-Voting process (including
e-Voting at the meeting) in a fair and transparent manner.

12.

During the 715t AGM, the Chairman shall, after response to the questions raised by the Members in advance or as a
speaker at the 71t AGM, formally propose to the Members participating through VC/OAVM Facility to vote on the
resolutions as set out in the Notice of the 715t AGM and announce the start of the casting of vote through the e-Voting
system. After the Members participating through VC/OAVM Facility, eligible and interested to cast votes, have cast the
votes, the e-Voting will be closed with the formal announcement of closure of the 71t AGM.

13.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-Voting at the 71t AGM, first download the votes cast at the AGM and
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the
total votes cast in favour or against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been carried or not, and
such Report shall then be sent to the Chairman or a person authorized by him, within 48 (forty eight) hours from the
conclusion of the 715t AGM, who shall then countersign and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

14.

The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company at
www.ipca.com and on the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately after the declaration of Results by
the Chairman or a person authorized by him. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to BSE Limited (BSE) and
The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

15.

Pursuant to the circulars issued by MCA and SEBI from time to time, in view of the prevailing pandemic situation
and owing to the difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 71t AGM and the Annual
Report for the financial year 2020-21 including therein, inter-alia, the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021, the same are being sent only by email to the Members.
Therefore, those Members, whose email address is not registered with the Company or with their respective Depository
Participant/s and who wish to receive the Notice of the 71 AGM and the Annual Report for the year 2020-21 and all
other communication sent by the Company, from time to time, can get their email address registered by following the
steps as given below:-

a. For Members holding shares in physical form, please send scan copy of a signed request letter mentioning your
folio number, name, complete address, email address to be registered along with scanned self attested copy
of the PAN and any document (such as Driving Licence, Passport, Bank Statement, AADHAR) supporting the
registered address of the Member, by email to the Company’s email address investors@ipca.com.

b. For the Members holding shares in demat form, please update your email address through your respective
Depository Participant/s.

16.

The Notice of the 71 AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 including therein, inter-alia, the
Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended 315t March, 2021, will be
available on the website of the Company at www.ipca.com and the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and
The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. at www.nseindia.com. The Notice of 71t AGM will also be available on the
website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com.

17.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 28" August, 2021
to Thursday, 2" September, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the Annual General Meeting.

18.

Members are requested to:

(@) intimate to the Company / their Depository Participant (“DP”), changes, if any, in their registered address at an
early date;

(b) quote their Registered Folio No. and/or DP Identity and Client Identity number in their correspondence;

(c) encash the dividend warrants on their receipt as dividend amounts remaining unclaimed for seven years are
required to be transferred to the‘Investor Education and Protection Fund’established by the Central Government
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to Section 124(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, all
unclaimed dividend declared and paid upto interim dividend for the financial year 2013-14 have been transferred
by the Company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund. Members who have not encashed their dividend
warrants for subsequent period are requested to encash the same immediately.



http://www.ipca.com
mailto:investors@ipca.com
http://www.ipca.com
http://www.bseindia.com
http://www.nseindia.com.
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com

Annual Report 2020-21

(d) Pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, as amended, the Company
has transferred all shares in respect of which dividend has not been encashed by the shareholders for seven
consecutive years or more in the name of Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). The shareholders
who wish to claim the said shares from the IEPF may claim the same by filing e-form No. IEPF-5 as prescribed
under the said Rules available on iepf.gov.in along with requisite fee as decided by the Authority from time to
time. The Member/claimant can file only one consolidated claim in a financial year as per the IEPF Rules and
amendments thereto.

(e) Members holding shares in dematerialized form are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank
details such as bank account number, name of the bank and branch details, MICR code and IFSC code, mandates,
nominations, power of attorney, change of address, change of name, e-mail address, contact numbers, etc.,
to their depository participant (DP). Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the
Company'’s records which will help the Company and the Company’s Registrars and Transfer Agents, Link Intime
India Pvt. Ltd. (Link Intime) to provide efficient and better services. Members holding shares in physical form are
requested to intimate such changes to Link Intime.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to Link Intime
India Pvt. Ltd.

19. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time, securities of the listed companies
can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from 15t April, 2019 except in case of transmission or
transposition or for re-lodged transfer requests. Further, SEBI vide its circular dated 2"¢ December, 2020 has fixed
31t March, 2021 as the cut-off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and the shares re-lodged for transfer shall be
issued only in demat mode. Therefore, Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting
their shareholding to dematerialised form to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares for ease of portfolio
management as well as for ease of transfer.

20. The information required to be provided regarding the directors seeking re-appointment is furnished in the Report
on Corporate Governance, which is annexed.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

48, Kandivli Industrial Estate, For Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
Kandivli (West), Mumbai 400 067.

Tel : 022 - 6210 6050

E-mail: investors@ipca.com
Website: www.ipca.com

CIN: L24239MH1949PLC007837 Harish P. Kamath
Mumbai Corporate Counsel & Company Secretary
28™ May, 2021 ACS 6792
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5

At the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company held on 28" May, 2021 and as recommended by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Mr. Prashant Godha (DIN 00012759) is re-appointed as the Executive Director of the Company for a
further period of 5 (five) years with effect from 16" August, 2021. Accordingly, an agreement setting out terms and conditions
of his re-appointment including remuneration payable to him has been entered into by the Company with Mr. Prashant Godha,
Executive Director on 28" May, 2021.

This re-appointment is in compliance with applicable provisions, of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015
and is subject to the approval of the shareholders.

Mr. Prashant Godha, aged 46 years is a graduate in Commerce and has done his Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management
and has experience of over 20 years in pharmaceuticals marketing and general management.

He was initially appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 28" July, 2011 and was
appointed as the Executive Director of the Company with effect from 16™ August, 2011.

He holds 7,84,322 equity shares in the Company. Details of number of board meetings held and attended by him during his
tenure as Director of the Company are given in the Corporate Governance Report of the respective financial year annexed with
the Company’s Annual Reports which are available on the Company’s website www.ipca.com.

He is also a Director of the following companies:

Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

Paranthapa Investments & Traders Pvt. Ltd.
Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd.

Resonance Specialties Ltd.

0 |lpca Foundation

Mexin Medicaments Pvt. Ltd.

Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd.

Gudakesh Investment & Traders Pvt. Ltd.
Makers Laboratories Ltd.

Capricoating Solution Pvt. Ltd.

OWIiIN W =
=N

He is also the member of the Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee and Risk Management Committee
of the Board of Directors of the Company. He is also a member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee of the Board of Directors of Resonance Specialties Ltd., a listed entity.

The Agreement referred to in the resolution at item 5 of the accompanying notice sets out the remuneration and other terms and
conditions applicable to Mr. Prashant Godha upon his re-appointment as the Executive Director.

The abstract of the terms and conditions of his re-appointment as mentioned in the said Agreement are as follows:

1. Period: 5 (five) years with effect from 16" August, 2021.

2. The Executive Director shall exercise and perform such powers and duties as the Board shall from time to time, determine,
and subject to any directions and restrictions, from time to time, given and imposed by the Board.

3. The Executive Director shall devote his whole-time attention and abilities to the business of the Company.

4.  During the period of his employment, the Executive Director shall whenever required by the Company undertake such
traveling in India and elsewhere as the Board may from time to time direct in connection with or in relation to the business
of the Company.

5.  Remuneration:

a)  Salary of ¥9,00,000/- (Rupees Nine Lacs only) per month with such annual increment as may be decided by the Board
subject to a ceiling of ¥ 15,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Lacs Only) per month.

b)  Commission: Such remuneration by way of commission, in addition to the above salary and perquisite, calculated with
reference to the net profit of the Company in a particular financial year and as may be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated under Sections 197 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 but not more than 200% of his annual salary. The
specificamount payable to the Executive Director will be based on certain performance criteria to be laid down by the
Board and will be payable annually after annual accounts have been adopted by the shareholders.
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c)  Perquisites: In addition to the salary and commission, the Executive Director shall be entitled to the following
perquisites:

i)  Housing: The expenditure incurred by the Company on hiring furnished accommodation for the Executive
Director will be subject to a maximum of fifty per cent of the salary. In case no accommodation is provided by the
Company, the Executive Director shall be entitled to the house rent allowance subject to the said ceiling of 50%
of the salary.

Explanation: The expenditure incurred by the Company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be valued
as per the Income-Tax Rules, 1962. This shall, however, be subject to a ceiling of ten per cent of the salary of the
Executive Director.

ii)  Medical, hospitalization and health-care expenses: Actual expenses incurred for the Executive Director and his
family including mediclaim insurance policy premium to be paid by the Company.

iii) Leave travel concession: For the Executive Director and his family, once in a year incurred in accordance with any
rules specified by the Company subject to a ceiling of one month salary.

iv) Club fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and life membership fee.
v)  Personal accident insurance: As per any rules specified by the Company.

vi) Providentfund: Company’s contribution to provident fund shall be as per the scheme applicable to the employees
of the Company.

vii) Contribution to National Pension Scheme / Super Annuation Fund: Company’s contribution to any national
pension scheme or superannuation fund shall be in accordance with the rules of the scheme as may be applicable
or as may be framed / decided by the Company.

viii) Gratuity: As per the rules of the Company, payable in accordance with the approved gratuity fund and which shall
not exceed half a month's salary for each completed year of service.

ix) Encashment of unavailed privilege leave at the end of the tenure of the appointment.
x)  Company maintained car with driver.

xi) Land line telephone(s) at the residence and mobile phone(s) for official use.

In the event of no profit or inadequacy of profit, the Company shall pay the aforesaid remuneration by way of salary and
perquisites as minimum remuneration subject to the provisions of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies
Act, 2013 or with the approval of Central Government, if required.

The Executive Director shall be entitled to annual privilege leave on full salary for a period of thirty days and such leave shall
be allowed to be accumulated for not more than one hundred twenty days during the tenure of this appointment.

The Executive Director shall be entitled to:

a) the reimbursement of entertainment expenses actually and properly incurred by him in the course of the legitimate
business of the Company.

b)  the reimbursement of travelling, hotel and other expenses incurred by him in India and abroad exclusively on the
business of the Company.

The Executive Director shall not be paid any sitting fee for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or committee
thereof.

10.

The Executive Director shall not become interested or otherwise concerned directly or through his wife and/or children, in
any selling agency of the Company.

11.

The Executive Director shall not during the continuance of his employment with the Company or at any time thereafter
divulge or disclose to any person whomsoever or to make any use whatsoever for his own purpose or for any purpose other
than that of the Company of any information or knowledge obtained by him during his employment as to the business or
affairs of the Company.

12.

The Executive Director shall, at the time of termination of his employment, deliver to the Company any property or other
documents of the Company in his possession.

13
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13. The Company may forthwith terminate the employment, if the Executive Director shall at anytime be prevented by
ill-health or accident from performing his duties.

14. The Company shall be entitled to forthwith terminate the agreement if the Executive Director becomes insolvent or makes
any composition or arrangement with his creditors or he ceases to be a Director of the Company.

15. In the case of death of the Executive Director in the course of his employment, the Company shall pay to his legal
representatives the remuneration for the then current month in addition to such other sum as the Board may determine.

16. The Company may by giving not less than thirty days notice in writing determine this agreement if the Executive Director is
guilty of inattention to or negligence in the conduct of the Company’s business.

17. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Agreement, either party shall be entitled to terminate the
Agreement, at anytime by giving to the other party 60 days notice in writing in that behalf without the necessity of showing
any cause.

18. The terms and conditions including the remuneration payable to the Executive Director for the appointment and/or
agreement may be altered and varied from time to time by the Board as it may, in its discretion, deem fit.

Except Mr. Prashant Godha himself and his father Mr. Premchand Godha, Chairman & Managing Director and his brother Mr.
Pranay Godha, Executive Director and their respective relatives, none of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company or their relatives may be considered to be interested or concerned in this appointment.

The Board recommends approval to his re-appointment as the Executive Director of the Company.

Item No. 6

The Board of Directors on the recommendation of the Audit Committee have appointed M/s ABK & Associates, Cost Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 000036) as the Cost Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2021-22. A Certificate issued by the
above firm regarding their eligibility for appointment as Cost Auditors will be available for inspection electronically by the
members without any fee from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect this
certificate can send an email to investors@ipca.com.

As per Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is to be ratified
by the shareholders. The Board has decided the remuneration payable to M/s. ABK & Associates as Cost Auditors as mentioned
in the resolution on the recommendation of the Audit Committee. Hence this resolution is put for the consideration of the
shareholders.

None of the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 6.

The Board of Directors accordingly recommend the resolution set out at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice for the approval
of the members.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

48, Kandivli Industrial Estate, For Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
Kandivli (West), Mumbai 400 067.

Tel : 022 - 6210 6050

E-mail: investors@ipca.com
Website: www.ipca.com

CIN: L24239MH1949PLC007837 Harish P. Kamath
Mumbai Corporate Counsel & Company Secretary
28" May, 2021 ACS 6792
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TO THE MEMBERS

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 71 Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31 March, 2021.

STANDALONE AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS

(% crores) % crores)
STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31.3.2021 31.3.2020 31.3.2021 31.3.2020
Sales and other Income 5201.40 4432.12 5482.83 4715.71
Profit before finance cost and depreciation 1575.82 979.45 1599.49 965.89
Less : Finance cost 8.14 15.79 9.04 16.50
Depreciation and Amortisation 187.72 178.69 209.17 210.50
Profit before tax 1379.96 784.97 1381.28 738.89
Less : Provision for taxation
Current Tax 244.98 137.98 248.65 140.59
Short / (Excess) provision of taxes for earlier years - - (0.01) 0.52
Deferred Tax Asset (5.79) (5.47) (8.50) (5.78)
Net Profit 1140.77 652.46 1141.14 603.56
TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to the general reserve out of the amount available for appropriation.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The standalone and consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) as
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-110), the audited consolidated financial statements are also provided in the
Annual Report.

CREDIT RATING

During the year under report, CARE Ratings has re-affirmed CARE AA; Stable / Care A1 + (Double A; Outlook: Stable / A One Plus)
ratings to the Company’s long term / short term bank facilities (fund based / non-fund based) amounting to ¥ 1140 crores.

CRISIL has re-affirmed ‘CRISIL A1+ rating for ¥ 50 crores commercial paper programme of the Company.

COVID -19 PANDEMIC

The Covid-19 Pandemic has caused / continue to cause un-precedented disruption in the global economic activities. Several countries and
central banks are implementing stimulus packages to revive their respective economies and GDP growth.

Several countries worldwide have implemented lockdowns and other containment measures to restrict the spread of coronavirus. The
available healthcare resources and infrastructure facilities are also majorly devoted for Covid-19 treatment.

The coronavirus pandemic is a healthcare as well as economic crisis that has shaken the global economy and has forced countries across the
globe to take measures to correct under-investment in the healthcare infrastructure. Going forward this pandemic will also change the way
we operate. The consumer behavior and consumption pattern will also undergo changes.

Being manufacturers of pharmaceuticals and hence provider of essential services, the operations of the Company continued unabated albeit
with challenges such as logistics, timely availability of raw materials and manpower shortages. The Company has initiated various measures at
its facilities and continue to vigorously follow the guidelines issued by local authorities from time to time such as social distancing, masking,
sanitization, etc.

The continued and uninterrupted manufacturing and supply of active pharmaceutical ingredients and dosage forms to our customers across
the globe spanning over 100 countries in these testing times and most challenging conditions, have re-inforced the customer confidence in
your Company.

Overall, there was no impact until now of the pandemic on the Company’s financial performance. In the financial year 2020-21, the domestic
and emerging market branded formulations business got impacted due to lock-downs and lower patient footfall in the dispensaries, OPDs
and hospitals. However, this got compensated by the growth in the generic and institutional formulations as well as Active Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (APIs) business, especially of Hydroxychloroquine Sulphate and Chloroquine Phosphate, since these molecules were considered
to be useful in the treatment of Covid-19 disease in the initial period of coronavirus outbreak.
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There is no denying that we may face many more Covid-19 related uncertainties and challenges in days to come. However, your
Company is confident that the inherent business model of the Company, which is to a great extent resilient to such market disturbances,
will navigate the challenges which are ahead of us and that the ongoing covid-19 pandemic generally is not expected to negatively
impact our capital and financial resources, assets, profitability and liquidity position.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Industry Structure and Development

The global pharmaceutical market is estimated to be about US$ 1.35 trillion and was hitherto growing at a CAGR of about 4%.
However, it is to be seen how the Covid -19 pandemic, which has caused unprecedented economic disruption and has put
tremendous pressure on healthcare system globally, will impact this industry going forward.

Though the pharmaceutical industry is developing at a rapid pace, this growth won’t come easily for the industry that is heavily
influenced by healthcare reforms, cost pressure, economic and political fluidity, public demand for lower cost treatment,
economic consolidation, increased competition and changing regulatory landscape with increased scrutiny.

The growth in the pharmaceutical industry globally is driven by ageing population as well as about 1% increase in the global
population at the same time. Improvement in the purchasing power and increased access to healthcare system and medicines
world over including emerging markets are also driving the growth. As population ages due to increasing life expectancy, people
require pharmaceuticals to treat their chronic illness, thus increasing the demand for industry products.

Thanks to advances in science and technology, the research based pharmaceutical industry is entering an exciting new era in
medicine development. The research methods are evolving and the innovative pharmaceutical industry aims to turn fundamental
research into innovative treatments that are widely available and accessible to patients.

Outlook, Risks and Concerns

The Indian pharmaceuticals industry is globally respected and is one of the successful industries in the country. It has contributed
significantly to the healthcare by ensuring quality, accessible and affordable generic medicines around the globe. It has also
immensely contributed to India’s economic growth.

The low cost of production and R&D benefited the competitiveness of the Indian pharma industry in the international market.
The Government of India has recently approved production linked incentives (PLI) Scheme for the pharmaceuticals sector which
will further improve the competitiveness of the Indian Pharma Industry and will also attract additional investment in the sector.
Indian pharmaceutical companies have also carved out a niche in both the Indian and world market with expertise in reverse
engineering new processes for manufacturing of pharmaceuticals at low cost, which became the advantage for this industry.
India is amongst the largest provider of generic drugs and vaccines globally and is known as the pharmacy of the world.

Although economic woes of certain geographies are impending the pharmaceutical market growth, the long term outlook for
the industry remains positive. The industry growth is driven by ageing population and ever growing middle income group in
emerging economies boosting demand for the pharmaceuticals. Additionally, the emergence of new viruses, the latest being
SARS-CoV-2 and drug resistant infections, biological agents, immune therapies, etc. will spur research and development activities
providing the industry with more products in their drug pipeline with revenue and growth streams.

The Indian pharmaceuticals market is the third largest in terms of volume. India is the biggest provider of generic medications
globally and enjoys a strong position in the world pharmaceuticals sector. The country also has a huge talent pool and scientists
having the capability to steer this industry forward to a much greater degree. The cost efficiency also continues to create
opportunities for Indian pharmaceutical companies in the emerging global economies. The Indian pharmaceutical industry is
expected to outperform the global pharmaceutical industry and grow in the next couple of years and thereby emerge as one of
the top 10 pharmaceutical market globally by absolute value size.

Indian pharmaceutical companies are focusing on global generic and API business, R&D activities and contract research and
manufacturing alliances. India is also fast emerging as a preferred pharmaceuticals manufacturing location. Increasing use of
pharmaceutical generics in developed markets to reduce healthcare cost will also provide attractive growth opportunities to Indian
generic formulations manufacturers and thus Indian pharmaceutical industry is poised for an accelerated growth in the coming years.

However, poor public healthcare funding and infrastructure, low per capita consumption of medicines in developing and under
developed countries including India, currency fluctuations, requlatory issues, government mandated price controls, inflation and
resultant all round increase in input costs are few causes of concern.

During the year under report, there was no change in the nature of Company’s business.

Financial Performance and Operations Review

During the financial year under report, the Company registered on a standalone basis a total income of ¥ 5201.40 crores as
against I 4432.12 crores in the previous year, a growth of 17.36%. On a consolidated basis, the total income of the Company has
increased by 16.27% to ¥ 5482.83 crores as against T 4715.71 crores in the previous financial year.
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During the financial year under report, the Earnings before interest, depreciation and taxation on a standalone basis amounted to
% 1575.82 crores as against ¥ 979.45 crores in the previous financial year. The operations have resulted in a net profit of 31140.77
crores during the financial year under report as against ¥ 652.46 crores in the previous financial year, a growth of 74.84%.

On a consolidated basis, the Earnings before interest, depreciation and taxation amounted to ¥ 1599.49 crores as against
% 965.89 crores in the previous financial year. The consolidated operations have resulted in a net profit of ¥ 1141.14 crores during
the financial year under report as against ¥ 603.56 crores in the previous financial year, a growth of 89.07%.

Break-up of Sales (standalone) (X Crores)
2020-21 2019-20
Domestic | Exports Total Growth | Domestic | Exports Total Growth
Formulations 1981.67 1597.19 3578.86 14% 1912.61 1221.55 3134.16 16%
APIs & Intermediates 386.33 1120.00 1506.33 28% 250.93 922.20 1173.13 33%
Total Sales 2368.00 2717.19 5085.19 18% 2163.54 2143.75 4307.29 20%
Growth 9% 27% 18% 17% 24% 20%

Key Financial Ratios (standalone)

31t March, 2021 31 March, 2020
1. | Debtors Turnover Ratio 6.30 5.86
2. |Inventory Turnover Ratio 2.77 3.1
3. | Interest Coverage Ratio 188.51 62.91
4. | Current Ratio 3.08 2.18
5. | Debt Equity Ratio 0.03 0.11
6. | Operating Profit Margin (%) 25.01% 17.19%
7. | Net Profit Margin (%) 21.93% 14.72%
8. | Return on Net Worth (%) 24.00% 17.74%

Due to increase in the sales and improvement in operational performance and efficiency, which has resulted into increased
profitability, most of the above key financial ratios have improved substantially.

International Business

The products of the Company are now exported to over 100 countries across the globe. During the financial year under report,
the international business amounted to ¥ 2717.19 crores as against I 2143.75 crores in the previous year, a growth of 27%.
Formulation exports of the Company increased by 31% to ¥ 1597.19 crores and exports of APls and Drug Intermediates increased
by 21% to ¥ 1120.00 crores.

The Company'’s formulations manufacturing sites at Silvassa and SEZ Indore and APIs manufacturing site at Ratlam continue to
be under US FDA import alert.

The Company has implemented comprehensive remedial measures at all its manufacturing sites to ensure quality and regulatory
compliances.These remedial measuresincluded review of all processes and procedures, revamping of training system, recruitment
of senior quality personnel as well as automation of quality control laboratories. The Company is committed to its philosophy
of highest quality in manufacturing, operations, systems, integrity and cGMP culture. These manufacturing sites are awaiting
re-inspection by US FDA.

Except US FDA import alert on three of its manufacturing sites, none of the Company’s manufacturing sites have any outstanding
regulatory or compliance issues with any other regulatory agency.

Continent-wise Exports (X Crores)
2020-21 2019-20

Formulations | APIs and Total % to exports | Formulations| APIsand Total % to exports
Continent ntermediates Intermediates
Europe 496.26 260.63 756.89 28% 390.95 244.53 635.48 30%
Africa 476.78 55.81 532.59 20% 308.93 34.00 34293 16%
Americas 173.94 398.48 57242 21% 119.56 312.20 431.76 20%
Asia 105.92 369.66 475.58 17% 76.87 309.64 386.51 18%
CIs 163.99 24.95 188.94 7% 167.33 17.16 184.49 9%
Australasia 180.30 10.47 190.77 7% 157.91 4.67 162.58 7%
Total 1597.19 1120.00 2717.19 100% 1221.55 922.20 2143.75 100%
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Formulation Exports - Therapeutic Contributio

Therapeutic Group 2020-21 2019-20
Cardiovasculars & Anti-diabetics 23% 31%
Pain Management 28% 20%
Anti-malarials 26% 19%
Anti-bacterials 5% 6%
Anthelmintics 5% 8%
Central Nervous System (CNS) 5% 6%
products
Gastro Intestinal (G.I) products 4% 4%
Cough Preparations 2% 2%
Others 2% 4%
TOTAL 100% 100%
Europe

The Company achieved European export sales of ¥ 756.89 crores
during the financial year under report as against sales of ¥ 635.48
crores in the previous year, a growth of 19%.

The Company has developed and submitted 62 generic formulation
dossiers for registration in Europe out of which 61 dossiers are
registered. The Company has also obtained certificate of suitability
(COS) of 47 APIs from European Directorate for Quality Medicines.

The Company has started marketing generic formulations in the
United Kingdom in its own label.

Africa

The Company achieved export sales of ¥ 532.59 crores to Africa
during the financial year under report as against ¥ 342.93 crores in
the previous year, a growth of 55%.

The Company exports branded and generic formulations as well
as APIs to many African countries. The Company markets branded
formulations in Africa through dedicated field force. The Company
also supplies generics formulations to South Africa.

The Company is expanding its branded formulations business in this
continent through expansion of geographical coverage and increase
in the number of branded formulations marketed. The Company is
also continuously filing new formulation dossiers for registration in
the African countries.

Americas

The Company achieved sales of ¥ 572.42 crores in this continent as
against ¥ 431.76 crores in the previous year, a growth of 33%. As
reported earlier, the US formulations and APIs business continues to
be impacted due to ongoing US FDA import alert for three of the
Company’s manufacturing facilities.

46 ANDA applications of generic formulations developed by the
Company are filed with US FDA out of which 18 ANDA applications
are granted till date. 45 DMFs of the Company are also currently filed
with US FDA.

Asia

The Asian business (excluding India) recorded sales of ¥475.58 crores
as against ¥ 386.51 crores in the previous year, a growth of 23%.
The Company exports formulations as well as APIs to several Asian
countries. In countries like Nepal, Sri Lanka, Myanmar, Philippines
and Vietnam, the Company markets its branded formulations
through dedicated field force.
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Confederation of Independent States (CIS)

The Company’s CIS business recorded sales of ¥ 188.94 crores as
against ¥ 184.49 crores in the previous year, a growth of 2%. Most
of the business is from branded formulation sales in Russia, Ukraine,
Kazakhstan and Belarus. The Company’s branded formulations are
marketed in this continent by its own field force appointed through
its non-trading offices.

Australasia

The Company exports APIs to Australia and formulations to Australia
and New Zealand in this sub-continent. The business from this
continent was ¥ 190.77 crores during the financial year under report
as against ¥ 162.58 crores in the previous year, a growth of 17%.

The Company has developed and submitted 75 generic formulation
dossiers for registration in this market out of which 72 dossiers are
registered.

Domestic Formulations Business

The Company’s branded formulations business in India now
comprises of 16 marketing divisions focusing on key therapeutic
segments with a portfolio of about 145 brands. Your Company is
now the 19* largest in the domestic formulations market as per
IQVIA - MAT March, 2021.

During the financial year under report, the domestic formulations
business recorded a growth of 4% at ¥ 1981.67 crores as against
% 1912.61 crores in the previous year.

As a part of containment measures to restrict the spread of
coronavirus, apart from lockdowns, the available healthcare
resources and infrastructure facilities were also majorly devoted by
the local administration across the country for Covid-19 treatment
during most part of the financial year 2020-21. This resulted in
reduced patient footfall in dispensaries, OPDs and hospitals for
routine ailments as well as re-scheduling of non-critical surgeries
which impacted prescriptions, launch of new products, field force
activities and thus impacted business growth in the Domestic
branded formulations market.

At the same time, the Company’s APIs and formulations business
of Hydroxychloroquine Sulphate and Chloroquine Phosphate
significantly improved in the financial year during the initial phase
of Covid-19 outbreak since these molecules were then considered
to be useful in the treatment of Covid-19 disease.

Domestic Branded Formulations - Therapeutic Contribution

Therapeutic segment 2020-21 2019-20
% to sales % to sales
Pain Management 52% 47%
Cardiovasculars & Anti-diabetics 19% 18%
Anti-malarials 4% 6%
Anti-bacterials 6% 8%
Dermatology 5% 5%
Gastro Intestinal (G I) products 3% 3%
Cough Preparations 3% 4%
Neuro Psychiatry 3% 3%
Urology 3% 3%
Neutraceuticals 1% 1%
Others 1% 2%
Total 100% 100%
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Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs) and Intermediates Business

During the financial year under report, the APIs and Intermediates business recorded sales of I 1506.33 crores as against
% 1173.13 crores in the previous financial year, a growth of 28.40%. Nearly 79% of the APIs and Intermediates business is from
exports. As informed earlier, the APIs business of the Company during the financial year also benefited from the sales of APIs
Hydroxychloroquine Sulphate and Chloroquine Phosphate, being molecules considered to be beneficial for the treatment of
Covid-19 in the initial phase of its outbreak.

The Company exports its APIs across the globe. Most of the international customers of the Company are end user formulations
manufacturers including several multinational companies.

Your Company is in the process of commercializing new APIs for the global market.

New APIs manufacturing unit at Dewas (M.P.)

The Company is in the process of setting up a new APIs manufacturing unit at Dewas (M.P.) with an initial capital outlay of about
% 250 crores. The land for this project has been acquired and the Company has already obtained all the necessary environmental
approvals. Currently civil work for this project is ongoing at the site.

Intellectual Property Protection

The Company has created intellectual property management group within the Research and Development centers to deal with
management and protection of intellectual property. The Company has filed many patent applications till date in India, USA
and other countries. These applications relate to novel and innovative manufacturing processes for the manufacture of APls and
pharmaceutical formulations.

Internal Control Systems and its adequacy

The Company has adequate internal control systems including suitable monitoring procedures commensurate with its size
and the nature of the business. The internal control systems provide for all documented policies, guidelines, authorization and
approval procedures. The Company has an internal audit department which carries out audits throughout the year. The statutory
auditors while conducting the statutory audit, review and evaluate the internal controls and their observations are discussed
with the Audit committee of the Board.

Human Resources

The human resource plays a vital role in the growth and success of an organization. The Company has maintained cordial and
harmonious relations with employees across various locations.

During the year under review, various training and development workshops were conducted to improve the competency level of
employees with an objective to improve the operational performance of individuals. The Company has built a competent team
to handle challenging assignments. The Company strives to enhance the technical, work related and general skills of employees
through dedicated training programs on a continuous basis.

The Company has 14574 permanent employees (including 729 overseas employees) as on 315t March, 2021 out of which 6987
employees are engaged in the marketing and distribution activities.

Cautionary Statement

Certain statement in the management discussion and analysis may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable
securities law and regulations and actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied. Factors that would make
differences to Company’s operations include competition, price realization, currency fluctuations, regulatory issues, changes in
government policies and regulations, tax regimes, economic development within India and the countries in which the Company
conducts business and other incidental factors.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFTER THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of the financial
year to which financial statements in this report relate and the date of this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

The paid-up share capital of the Company as at 31t March, 2021 was 12,68,52,109 equity shares of ¥ 2/- each aggregating to
% 25.37 crores.

During the financial year, pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
24% October, 2019, in-principle approval received from the Stock Exchanges and pursuant to applications received from the
allottees to convert the warrants allotted to them into equity shares, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on
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2" September, 2020 have allotted 5,00,000 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid-up for cash at a price of ¥ 955/- per equity share,
including a premium of ¥ 953/- per share, aggregating to X 47.75 crores to members of the Promoters / Promoter Group of the Company.

The proceeds from issue of these shares are utilized for the purposes for which the issue was made.

EMPLOYEES STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOS)

The Company has a scheme - Ipca Laboratories Ltd. Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2014 (ESOS) approved by the Board of Directors
as well as Company’s shareholders. This ESOS is in compliance with SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014. There was
no change made in this ESOS Scheme during the financial year under report.

However, currently there are no outstanding options issued under the Company'’s ESOS.

The necessary disclosure pursuant to Regulation 14 of SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 is furnished on the
website of the Company www.ipca.com (weblink http://www.ipca.com/pdf/ESOS2014.pdf).

SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

There has been no material change in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries. The Company has no subsidiary which can be
considered as material within the meaning of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the following have been placed on the website of the
Company www.ipca.com :

a)  Annual Report of the Company containing therein its standalone and the consolidated financial statements; and

b) Audited annual accounts of each of the subsidiary companies.

As required, the financial data of the subsidiaries, joint venture and associate companies is furnished in the prescribed Form AOC-1 as
an Annexure to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the consolidated financial statements of the Company are
attached.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)
The Company has always considered Research and Development (R&D) as crucial for the sustained growth of the Company. In the
recent years, the Company has stepped-up investments in R&D to keep pace with the changing domestic and global scenario.

The Company has R&D centers at Mumbai, Ratlam, Athal (Silvassa) and Ranu (Vadodara) are duly recognized by the Government of
India, Ministry of Science and Technology, Department of Scientific & Industrial Research (DSIR).

The R&D expenditure of the Company during the financial year was I 126.67 crores (2.49% of the turnover) as against ¥ 101.04 crores
(2.35% of the turnover) in the previous year.

With qualified and experienced research scientists and engineers manning the research and development activities, the Company
has focused its thrust on new and innovative process and product development for the manufacture of APIs with non-infringing
processes. Apart from development of new dosage forms and drug delivery systems, improvement in processes and yield as well as
cost reduction are also focus areas.

DIVIDEND

Your directors have already announced and paid in the month of December 2020 an interim dividend of ¥ 8/- per share (400%) for the
financial year under report. It is now not proposed to declare any further dividend for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021. The
interim dividend paid for the financial year under report is in line with the Company’s dividend distribution policy which is placed on
the Company’s website www.ipca.com.

The dividend amounting to ¥ 101.48 crores paid as interim dividend will be appropriated out of the profits for the year.

INVESTORS EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

The Company has transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) all the unpaid dividend amounts required to be
so transferred on or before the due date(s) for such transfer. The Company has also transferred to IEPF, such of the Company’s equity
shares in respect of which the dividend declared has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years.

The details of the unpaid / unclaimed dividends for the last seven financial years are available on the website of the Company
WWww.ipca.com.

The Company has appointed its Company Secretary as the nodal officer under the provisions of IEPF.
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Premchand Godha and Mr. Prashant Godha retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. Mr. Prashant Godha is also proposed to be re-appointed as the Executive Director of the Company for
a further period of 5 years with effect from 16 August, 2021.

Mr. AnandT. Kusre and Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava were re-appointed as Independent Directors for a second term of five consecutive years
from 15t April, 2019 and Dr. (Mrs.) Manisha Premnath was re-appointed as Independent Director for a second term of five consecutive
years from 21t September, 2019, through postal ballot on 27t March, 2019. The shareholders have also approved the appointment of
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth as an Independent Director for a period of 5 years from 29t March, 2019.

Mr. Anand Kusre, Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava, Dr. (Mrs.) Manisha Premnath and Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth, who are independent directors,
have submitted declaration that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations and there has been no change in the circumstances which may affect their status as independent
directors during the year.

None of the directors of the Company are debarred from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or order by any other
competent authority.

In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors possess appropriate balance of skills, experience and knowledge, as required.
A brief note on Directors retiring by rotation and eligible for re-appointment is furnished in the Report on Corporate Governance
annexed herewith.

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the financial year under report, the following persons continue to be the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company:

Mr. Premchand Godha - Chairman & Managing Director/CEO

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain - Joint Managing Director / CFO

Mr. Pranay Godha - Executive Director

Mr. Prashant Godha - Executive Director

Mr. Harish P. Kamath - Corporate Counsel & Company Secretary

There was no change in the Key Managerial Personnel during the financial year under report.

POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has laid down the criteria for Directors’ appointment and remuneration including
criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of a Director. The following attributes/criteria for selection
have been laid by the Board on the recommendation of the Committee:

o the candidate should possess the positive attributes such as leadership, entrepreneurship, business advisor or such other
attributes which in the opinion of the Committee are in the interest of the Company;

o the candidate should be free from any disqualification as provided under Sections 164 and 167 of the Companies Act, 2013;

o the candidate should meet the conditions of being independent as stipulated under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in case of appointment as an independent director; and

o the candidate should possess appropriate educational qualification, skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields of
finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, corporate governance, technical operations, infrastructure,
medical, social service, professional teaching or such other areas or disciplines which are relevant for the Company’s business.

BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee lays down the criteria for performance evaluation of independent directors, Board of
Directors and Committees of the Board. The criteria for performance evaluation is based on the various parameters like attendance and
participation at meetings of the Board and Committees thereof, contribution to strategic decision making, review of risk assessment and
risk mitigation, review of financial statements, business performance and contribution to the enhancement of brand image of the Company.

The Board has carried out evaluation of its own performance as well as that of the Committees of the Board and all the Directors.

The annual evaluation was carried out in the following manner:

Sr. No. | Performance evaluation of Performance evaluation performed by

1. Board and individual directors Board after seeking inputs from all directors

2. Board Committees Board seeking inputs from all committee members

3. Individual Directors Nomination and Remuneration committee

4, Non-independent directors, Board as a whole and the Separate meeting of independent directors after taking views from

Chairman executive directors

5. Board, its Committees and individual Directors At the board meeting held after the meeting of the independent

directors based on evaluation carried out as above.
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PROFICIENCY OF DIRECTORS

All the independent directors of the Company have registered their names in the database maintained by the Indian Institute of
Corporate Affairs, Manesar, Haryana. Those of the independent directors who are not otherwise exempted shall appear for the
common proficiency test conducted by the said institute within the prescribed time.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The objective and broad framework of the Company’s Remuneration Policy is to consider and determine the remuneration based on
the fundamental principles of payment for performance, for potential and for growth. The Remuneration Policy reflects on certain
guiding principles of the Company such as aligning remuneration with the longer term interests of the Company and its shareholders,
promoting a culture of meritocracy and creating a linkage to corporate and individual performance and emphasising on line expertise
and market competitiveness so as to attract the best talent. It also ensures the effective recognition of performance and encourages
a focus on achieving superior operational results. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee recommends the remuneration
of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel which is approved by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of shareholders,
where necessary. The level and composition of remuneration shall be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the
directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of the quality required to run the Company successfully. The relationship
of remuneration to performance should be clear and meet appropriate performance benchmarks. The remuneration to directors, key
managerial personnel and senior management personnel should also involve a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting
short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. The Remuneration Policy is
placed on the Company’s website www.ipca.com.

Information about elements of remuneration package of individual directors is provided in the Annual Return as provided under
Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 which is placed on the website of the Company.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAM FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
Details of the familiarisation programs for independent directors are disclosed on the website of the Company www.ipca.com.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND COMMITTEES THEREOF
This information has been furnished under Report on Corporate Governance, which is annexed.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Your Directors confirm:

i)  that in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed alongwith proper
explanation relating to material departures;

ii)  that your Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year March 31, 2021 and of the profit of the Company for the financial year;

iii) that your Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

iv) that your Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v) that your Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

vi) that your Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such
systems were adequate and operating effectively.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
As per the requirement of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has complied with
the requirements of Corporate Governance in all material aspects.

A report on Corporate Governance (Annexure 1) together with a certificate of its compliance from a Practising Company Secretary,
forms part of this report.

FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any fixed deposits and as such no amount of principal or interest on
deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
Details of the Audit Committee along with its constitution and other details are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance.

AUDITORS, AUDIT REPORT AND AUDITED ACCOUNTS

M/s. G. M. Kapadia & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 104767W) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors at the
67™ Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company for a term of 5 (Five) years i.e. till the conclusion of 72" AGM and this appointment
was also ratified by the members of the Company at the 68" Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, 9" August, 2019.

The Auditors’ Report read with the notes to the accounts referred to therein are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any
further comments. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Auditors.

COST AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. ABK & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 000036) were appointed as the Cost Auditors to conduct audit of cost records of the Company for the financial year 2020-21.

The Cost Audit Report for the financial year 2019-20, which was due to be filed with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs by
8t September, 2020 was filed on 7t September, 2020.

The Company has maintained the cost accounts and cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of
Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. Parikh & Associates,
Practising Company Secretaries were appointed as the Secretarial Auditors for auditing the secretarial records maintained by the
Company for the financial year 2020-21.

The Secretarial Auditors’Report is annexed hereto. There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by the Secretarial
Auditors.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Company is committed to good corporate citizenship. As a part of its corporate social responsibility, the Company continues
to undertake a range of activities including healthcare and education to improve living conditions of the needy people. The CSR
policy of the Company is placed on the website of the Company (http://www.ipca.com/pdf/corporate policy/Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy.pdf).

During the year under report, the Company has also supported healthcare and educational projects undertaken by charitable
institutions and organizations.

In May 2021, your Company has facilitated the district administration in setting up within the premises of its upcoming bulk drugs
manufacturing unit at Dewas, Madhya Pradesh, a 50,000 sq. ft. 250 bedded covid care centre including oxygen beds with in-house
oxygen generation plant. This is apart from various other initiatives undertaken by the Company for covid care including distribution
of oxygen concentrators, PPE Kits and medicines.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, an abstract on Company’s CSR activities is furnished as
Annexure 2 to this report.

SAFETY, ENVIRONMENT AND HEALTH

The Company considers safety, environment and health as the management responsibility. Regular employee training programmes
are carried out in the manufacturing facilities on safety, environment and health.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees or made any investments in contravention of the provisions of the Section 186
of the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the loans and guarantees given and investments made by the Company are provided in
the notes to the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary
course of Company'’s business. The Company has not entered into any contract, arrangement or transaction with any related party
which could be considered as material as defined under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
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The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the website of the Company.
(https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Policy on Related Party Transactions.pdf).

All the related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as well as the Board for approval on a quarterly basis. Omnibus
approval was also obtained from the Audit Committee and the Board on an annual basis for repetitive transactions.

Related party transactions under Indian Accounting Standard - Ind AS 24 are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
Prescribed Form No. AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is furnished as Annexure 3 to this report.

EMPLOYEES

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees drawing
remuneration and other details as set out in the said Rules is furnished under Annexure 4 to this report.

However, having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual Report excluding
the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is available for inspection at the registered
office of the Company during working hours excluding Saturdays and any member interested in obtaining such information may write
to the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished on request. The full Annual Report including the aforesaid information is
available on the Company’s website www.ipca.com.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for board members and senior management personnel of the Company. The code also
incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The said code of conduct is posted on
Company'’s website www.ipca.com. The Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the said
code of conduct. A declaration in this regard signed by the Chairman & Managing Director / CEO is given at the end of the Corporate
Governance Report.

WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY / VIGIL MECHANISM

There is a Whistle Blower Policy in the Company and that no personnel have been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use vigil mechanism. The Whistle
Blower Policy is posted on the website of the Company www.ipca.com.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct for prevention of insider trading. All the Directors, senior management employees
and other employees who have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the Company are governed by this code.
During the year under Report, there has been due compliance with the said code of conduct for prevention of insider trading.

The Board has adopted a revised Code of Prevention of Insider Trading based on the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
2015.The same has been placed on the website of the Company www.ipca.com.

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEE UNDER SEXUAL HARRASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION
AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has adopted a policy in line with the requirements of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace and
a Committee has been set-up to redress sexual harassment complaints received. The necessary annual report has been submitted to
the competent authority in this regard.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee.
The details of the Committee and its terms of reference are provided in the Report on Corporate Governance, which is annexed.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

There are no significant or material orders passed by any regulator, tribunal or court that would impact the going concern status of
the Company and its future operations.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

In accordance with the requirements of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, statement showing particulars with respect to
conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo is furnished as Annexure 5 to this report.
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ANNUAL RETURN

In accordance with the requirements of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, copy of Annual Return in Form MGT-7 is placed on the Company’s website www.ipca.com
(weblink : https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/financials/annual-return/Annual-Return-FY-2020-21.pdf).

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

The Business Responsibility Report of the Company for the financial year ended 31t March, 2021 forms part of this Report. The same
is also uploaded on the Company’s website www.ipca.com as a part of the Annual Report.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with all the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their appreciation for the continued co-operation and support extended to the Company by the
bankers and financial institutions. Your Directors also thank the medical profession, the trade and consumers for their patronage of
the Company’s products. Your Directors also place on record their profound admiration and sincere appreciation of the continued
hard work put in by employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board

Mumbai Premchand Godha
28™ May, 2021 Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE 1
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, given below is a report on the Corporate
Governance in the Company:

1. Company’s philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance is to ensure :

i) that the Board and top management of the Company are fully appraised of the affairs of the Company that is aimed at
assisting them in the efficient conduct of the Company’s business so as to meet Company’s obligation to the stakeholders.

i)  thatthe Board exercises its fiduciary responsibilities towards shareholders and creditors so as to ensure high accountability.
iii)  thatall disclosure of information to present and potential investors are maximised.
iv)  that the decision making process in the organisation is transparent and are backed by documentary evidences.
v)  that the Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, with regard to Corporate Governance.
2. Board of Directors
a) Composition and Category of directors

The present strength of the Board of Directors of the Company is eight directors of which one is promoter Chairman &
Managing Director/CEO, one professional non-promoter Joint Managing Director/CFO, two promoter Executive Directors
and four non-executive independent directors including one woman director comprising of at least one half of the total
strength of the Board with independent judgment in the deliberation and decision of the Board. The Chairman of the Board
is an Executive and Promoter Director.

b) Details of attendance of each director at the meeting of the board of directors and the last annual general meeting and
shareholding held by them in the Company

Name of the Director Category No. of board Attendance at | No. of Equity
meetings last AGM shares held in
Held | Attended | (17.09.2020) | the Company
Mr. Premchand Godha Chairman & Managing Director/ 6 6 Yes 29,07,340
(DIN 00012691) CEO, Promoter Director
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain Joint Managing Director/CFO, 6 6 Yes 51,000
(DIN 00012657) Professional, Non-Promoter
Director
Mr. Pranay Godha Executive Director, Promoter 6 6 Yes 8,50,495
(DIN 00016525) Director
Mr. Prashant Godha Executive Director, Promoter 6 6 Yes 7,84,322
(DIN 00012759) Director
Mr. Anand T. Kusre Non-Executive, Independent 6 6 Yes Nil
(DIN 00818477) Director
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava Non-Executive, Independent 6 6 Yes 14,629
(DIN 00778976) Director
Dr. (Ms) Manisha Premnath | Non-Executive, Independent 6 6 Yes Nil
(DIN 05280048) Director
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth Non-Executive, Independent 6 6 Yes 850
(DIN 00194986) Director

The above shareholding as at 31t March, 2021 is in respect of shares which are held by Directors as a first holder and in
which shares they have beneficial interest.
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Number of other companies in which Director is a Director and committees in which the Director is Member or Chairperson

Name of Director No. of other companies No. of Committees in No. of Committees of
in which Director which Member which Chairman (other

(including private and (other than Ipca) than Ipca)
Section 8 companies)

Mr. Premchand Godha 5 Nil Nil

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Pranay Godha 6 Nil Nil

Mr. Prashant Godha 10 Nil Nil

Mr. Anand T. Kusre 1 Nil Nil

Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava 4 2 Nil

Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath 4 Nil Nil

Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth Nil Nil Nil

Note: Directorship held by Directors mentioned above does not include Directorship of foreign companies.

Chairmanship and Membership of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee are only considered.

Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava is an Independent Director on the Board of Directors of M/s. Universal Starch Chem Allied Limited,
a listed entity. He is also a member of the Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee (Chairman) and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board of Directors of the said company.

Mr. Prashant Godha is a Director on the Board of M/s. Makers Laboratories Ltd. and M/s. Resonance Specialties Ltd., listed
companies. He is also the member of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee of the Board of Directors of M/s. Resonance Specialties Ltd.

None of the other Directors of the Company are on Board of Directors of any other listed company.

Every Director informs the Company about the Committee positions he or she occupies in the other entities and any
changes in them as and when they take place.

Number of meetings of the board of directors held during the financial year 2020-21 and dates on which held

6 (Six) board meetings were held during the financial year 2020-21. The dates on which the said meetings were held are as
follows:

16" June, 2020 10" August, 2020
2" September, 2020 7% November, 2020
4t February, 2021 22" March, 2021

The last Annual General Meeting of the Company was held on 17t September, 2020.

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se

Mr. Premchand Godha, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Pranay Godha and Mr. Prashant Godha, Executive Directors are
related to each other. None of the other Directors are related to each other.

Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors

The information about number of shares held by Non-Executive Directors in the Company is given in the table above. None
of the Non-Executive Directors currently hold any convertible instruments of the Company.

Web link where details of familiarisation programmes imparted to independent directors is disclosed

The Company has conducted familiarisation programmes for the Independent Directors with regards to their role, rights
and responsibilities as Independent Directors. The Independent Directors are also regularly briefed on the nature of the
pharmaceutical industry and the Company’s business model. The familiarisation programs have been uploaded on the
website of the Company at www.ipca.com.

A chart or a matrix setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors

The Board considers that the following core skills / expertise / competence of the Board of Directors are required in the
context of its business and its sector for it to function effectively: Research & development, technical, manufacturing,
marketing, commercial, regulatory, finance, legal and general management.
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In the opinion of the Board, these skills / expertise / competence are actually available with its Board of Directors.

Skills / Expertise / Competence of the Board of Directors
are required in the context of business of the Company

Names of the Directors who have such skills / expertise
/ competence

Research & Development

Mr. Premchand Godha

Mr. A. K. Jain

Mr. Pranay Godha

Mr. Anand T. Kusre

Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath

Technical Mr. Pranay Godha
Mr. Anand T. Kusre
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava

Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath

Mr. Premchand Godha

Mr. A. K. Jain

Mr. Pranay Godha

Mr. Prashant Godha

Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava

Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath

Manufacturing & Marketing

Mr. Premchand Godha

Mr. A. K. Jain

Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth

Commercial

Mr. Pranay Godha
Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath

Regulatory

Mr. Premchand Godha
Mr. A. K. Jain

Mr. Pranay Godha

Mr. Prashant Godha
Mr. Anand T. Kusre

Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth

Finance

Mr. Premchand Godha
Mr. A. K. Jain

Mr. Pranay Godha

Mr. Prashant Godha
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth

Legal And General Management

Confirmation thatin the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the conditions specified in these regulations
and are independent of the management

It is confirmed that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management.

Detailed reasons for the resignation of any independent director who resigns before the expiry of his tenure along with a
confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons other than those provided

During the financial year under report, none of the Independent Directors have resigned from the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Audit Committee

a)

Brief description of terms of reference

The terms of reference to Audit Committee, inter-alia, covers all the matters specified under Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and also all the matters listed under Part C of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations such as oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process; recommending the appointment/re-
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appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory auditors; review and monitor the Auditorsindependence
and performance and effectiveness of audit process; approval of transactions with related parties; sanctioning of loans and
investments; evaluation of internal financial control and risk management system; reviewing with the management annual
financial statements and Auditors report thereon; quarterly financial statements and other matters as covered under
role of Audit Committee in Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. The Audit
Committee has powers, inter-alia, to investigate any activity within its terms of reference and to seek information from any
employee of the Company / Company’s subsidiaries as well as seek outside legal and professional advice.

The Audit committee reviews all the information that is required to be mandatorily reviewed by it under the corporate
governance.

Composition, name of members and chairperson

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises of Mr. Anand T. Kusre, Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Dev
Parkash Yadava and Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth, all being Independent Directors with independent judgment in the deliberation
and decisions of the Board as well as Audit Committee and Mr. Prashant Godha, Executive Director. All members of the Audit
Committee have knowledge on financial matters and ability to read and understand financial statements. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is a retired senior banker and is currently associated as a Professor with Shailesh J. Mehta School of
Management, IIT, Mumbai.

Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain, Joint Managing Director in-charge of Finance/CFO and Mr. Pranay Godha, Executive Director along
with Statutory Auditors, Cost Auditors and Mr. Kavish Agrawal, Sr. General Manager (Audit) who is the Internal Auditor of
the Company are invitees to the meetings of the Audit Committee. Mr. Harish P. Kamath, Corporate Counsel and Company
Secretary is the Secretary of this Committee.

Audit Committee meetings and the attendance during the financial year 2020-21

There were 5 (Five) meetings of the Audit Committee during the Financial Year 2020-21.The gap between two meetings did
not exceed four months. The dates on which the said meetings were held are as follows:

16™ June, 2020 10" August, 2020

7t November, 2020 4th February, 2021

22" March, 2021

The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee in the committee meetings is given below:

Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Anand T. Kusre 5 5
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava 5 5
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth 5 5
Mr. Prashant Godha 5 5

The previous annual general meeting of the Company was held on 17" September, 2020 and was attended by
Mr. Anand Kusre, the Chairman of the Audit committee.

4. Nomination and Remuneration Committee

a)

b)

Brief description of terms of reference

i.  formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the board of directors a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel,
senior management personnel and other employees;

ii.  formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the board of directors;
iii. devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

iv. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and persons who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the board of directors their appointment, remuneration
and removal;

v.  whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent directors, on the basis of the report of
performance evaluation of independent directors; and

vi. administer and superintend the Company’s Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS).

Composition, name of members and chairperson

The Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board which currently comprises of Mr. Anand T.
Kusre (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava, Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth and Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath, all
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independent directors to function in the manner and to deal with the matters specified in the Part D of Schedule Il of SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations and also to review the overall compensation structure and
policies of the Company to attract, motivate and retain employees and to administer the Company’s ESOS.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has adopted the following policies which are displayed on the website of
the Company.

i.  Formulation of the criteria relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees
(weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Remuneration Policy.pdf);

ii. Performance criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board
(weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Evaluation of Directors.pdf);

iii. Devising a policy on Board diversity (weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Policy on
Board Diversity of the Company.pdf)

iv. Oversee the familiarization programs for directors (weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/familiarisation-
programmes-imparted-to-independent-directors-2020-21.pdf); and

v. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and persons who may be appointed in senior
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.
(weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Criteria_for selection of Candidates for Senior
Management_and Members on the Board.pdf

c) Meeting and attendance during the financial year 2020-21
There were 3 (Three) meetings of this Committee during the Financial Year 2020-21. The dates on which the said meetings
were held are as follows:
16" June, 2020 30" December, 2020
4t February, 2021
The attendance of each member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee in the committee meetings is given below:
Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Anand T. Kusre 3 3
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava 3 3
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth 3 3
Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath 3 3
d) Performance evaluation criteria for independent directors

Performance criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board is displayed on the Company’s website (weblink
https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Evaluation of Directors.pdf)

Remuneration of Directors

a)

b)

All pecuniary relationship or transactions of the non-executive directors vis-a-vis the listed entity shall be disclosed in the
annual report

During the financial year under report, the non-executive Directors had no pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.
Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors

The non-executive Directors are paid only sitting fees and re-imbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred for attending
the meetings of the Board of Directors and Committees thereof.

Details of payments made to Non-Executive Directors in the Financial Year 2020-21 are as under:

Name of the Director Sitting fees Paid (%) Commiission paid ()
Mr. Anand T. Kusre 10,50,000 Nil
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava 12,00,000 Nil
Dr. (Mrs.) Manisha Premnath 8,50,000 Nil
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth 11,00,000 Nil

None of the Independent Directors have received any remuneration or commission from Company’s holding or subsidiary

companies.
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Disclosures with respect to remuneration paid / payable to Wholetime Directors for the financial year 2020-21

i.  The details of the remuneration paid/payable to Managing Director, Joint Managing Director and Executive Directors
for the Financial Year 2020-21 are given below :

3]

Name of Directors Salary* Benefits / Commission | Stock Options Total

Perquisites / | (performance

Pension etc.* linked)
Mr. Premchand Godha
(Chairman & Managing Director) 3,63,00,000 1,71,67,193 5,44,50,000 Nil|  10,79,17,193
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain
(Joint Managing Director) 1,80,00,000 1,94,63,230 2,70,00,000 Nil 6,44,63,230
Mr. Pranay Godha
(Executive Director) 84,00,000 72,07,891 1,68,00,000 Nil 3,24,07,891
Mr. Prashant Godha
(Executive Director) 78,00,000 70,01,007 1,56,00,000 Nil 3,04,01,007

* Fixed Component

The remuneration paid to the Wholetime Directors are within the limits prescribed under the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and under Corporate Governance.

ii.  Details of fixed component and performance linked incentives, along with the performance criteria
The required details are given in the table above.

iii. Service contracts, notice period, severance fees
The appointment of Managing Director, Joint Managing Director and Executive Directors is contractual and is generally
for a period of 5 years. Either party is entitled to terminate agreement by giving not less than 60 days notice in writing,
as the case may be, to the other party. There is no separate provision for payment of severance fee in the agreements
signed by the Company with them.

iv.  Stock option details, if any and whether issued at a discount as well as the period over which accrued and over which
exercisable

The Company currently has no outstanding stock options issued.

6. Stakeholders Relationship Committee

a)

Name of Non-Executive Director heading the committee

This Committee currently functions under the Chairmanship of Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth, non-executive Independent
Director. Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath, non-executive Independent Director, Mr. Premchand Godha, Chairman & Managing
Director and Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain, Joint Managing Director are the other members of this committee. This Committee
functions in the manner and deals with the matters specified in Part D of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The committee monitors share transfers, transmissions and other shareholders related
activities including redressal of investor grievances.

Details of share transfers / transmissions and other shareholders related activities including investor grievances and its
redressal are also discussed regularly in the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company.

Meetings held and attendance during the financial year 2020-21

There was 1 (One) meeting of this committee during the financial year 2020-21. The date on which the said meeting was
held is as follows:

16 June, 2020

The attendance of each member of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee in the committee meeting is given below:

Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth 1 1
Dr. (Ms.) Manisha Premnath 1 1
Mr. Premchand Godha 1 1
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain 1 1

Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth, the Chairman of the Committee attended the last Annual General Meeting of the Company held
on 17" September, 2020.
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Mr. Harish P. Kamath, Corporate Counsel & Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

Number of shareholders’ complaints received

During the year, the Company received 11 complaints from the shareholders, all of which are attended to.

Number not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders

The Company had no unattended request pending for transfer of its equity shares or any unattended complaints at the
close of the financial year.

Number of pending complaints

Nil

General Body Meetings

a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

Details of the location and time where the last three Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Extra-ordinary General Meeting

(EGM) were held

AGM /EGM for Day, Date & Time of Place of AGM/EGM Special Resolutions Passed
the financial year AGM/EGM
ended
31-3-2020 Thursday, Through Video Conferencing / Other |- None
17 September, 2020 | Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM)
at 3.30 p.m.
(AGM)
EGM Thursday, Sarovar Banquet Hall, Issue of convertible warrants
24% October, 2019 | 2nd Floor, to Promoters / Members of the
at 11.00 a.m. Payyade International Hotels Pvt. Ltd. Promoter Group of the Company
(EGM) Vasanji Lalji Road, on preferential basis.
Near Railway Station, Kandivli (West),
Mumbai — 400 067
31-3-2019 Tuesday, Aspee Auditorium, Laxminarayan |- Appointment of Mr. Kamal
13" August, 2019 | Mandir Complex, Near Nutan School, Kishore Seth as a Director /
at 3.30 p.m. Marve Road, Malad (West), Mumbai — Independent Director.
(AGM) 400 064
31-3-2018 Thursday, Sarovar Banquet Hall, Re-appointment of Mr.Premchand
9 August, 2018 | 2nd Floor, Godhaas the Managing Director of
at 3.30 p.m. Payyade International Hotels Pvt. Ltd. the Company for a further period
(AGM) Vasaniji Lalji Road, of five years and remuneration

Near Railway Station, Kandivli (West),
Mumbai - 400 067

payable to him.

All the resolutions including special resolutions set out in the respective notices calling the AGM / EGM were passed by the

shareholders.

There is no proposal to pass any special resolution through postal ballot at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Whether any special resolutions passed in the previous three annual general meetings

Details of special resolutions passed in the previous 3 Annual General Meetings are given in the table above.

Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot

None

Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise

Not Applicable

Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot

No special resolution is currently proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

Procedure for postal ballot

Not Applicable
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Means of communication

a) Quarterly / Annual Results The results of the Company are submitted to the stock
exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed and
published in the Newspapers after the approval of the Board.

b) Newspapers wherein results normally published The Financial Express,

Free Press Journal and
Nav Shakti.

c)  Website, where displayed WWWw.ipca.com

d) Whether website also displays official news releases Yes

e) Presentation made to institutional investors or to the The website includes all the information on presentations

analysts

made to the investors and analysts.

General Shareholders Information

a) AGM :Date, Time and Venue Thursday, 2" September, 2021 at 3.30 p.m. through video
conferencing / other audio visual means (VC/OAVM). Plot No.
125, Kandivli Industrial Estate, Kandivli (West), Mumbai shall
deemed to be the venue of the AGM.
b) Financial Year 15t April =315t March
First quarter results first week of August*
Second quarter results first week of November*
Third quarter results first week of February*
Annual results last week of May*
* tentative
c¢) Dividend Payment dates The Company has already declared and paid an interim
dividend of ¥ 8/- per share on the equity share capital for
the financial year 2020-21. The said interim dividend was
paid in the month of December, 2020. It is not proposed to
declare any further dividend for the financial year ended
315t March, 2021.
Date of Book closure Saturday, 28" August, 2021 to Thursday, 2" September, 2021
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General
Meeting.
d) The name and address of each stock exchange(s) BSE Ltd. (BSE)
at which the Company’s securities are listed and a Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers
confirmation about payment of annual listing fee to Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 023
each of such stock exchange(s) The National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE).
Exchange Plaza,
Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai 400 051
Listing fees have been paid to both the stock exchanges for
the financial year 2021-22 in April 2021.
e) Stock code - Physical and ISIN Number for NSDL and 524494 on BSE; IPCALAB on NSE
CDSL INE 571A01020
Corporate Identity Number allotted by Ministry of L24239MH1949PLC007837
Corporate Affairs
f)  Market price data: high, low during each month in last Please see Annexure ‘A’
financial year
g) Stock performance in comparison to BSE Sensex Please see Annexure ‘B’
h) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the The securities of the Company are not suspended from

directors report shall explain the reason thereof

trading by the Stock Exchanges.
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i)

Registrars and share transfer agents

Link Intime India Private Limited
C-101, 247 Park,

LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West)
Mumbai - 400 083

Tel. No. (022) 4918 6000

Fax. No.(022) 4918 6060

)

Share transfer system

All share transfer, request for transmission / transposition,
etc. subject to correctness and completion of all documents
would normally be registered and returned within fifteen
days from the date of receipt.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended
from time to time, securities of the listed companies can
be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from
15t April, 2019 except in case of transmission or transposition
or for re-lodged transfer requests. Further, SEBI vide its
circular dated 2" December, 2020 has fixed 31t March, 2021
as the cut-off date for re-lodgement of transfer deeds and
the shares re-lodged for transfer shall be issued only in
demat mode.

k)  Distribution of shareholding/ shareholding pattern as Please see Annexure ‘'C’
on 31.3.2021

I)  Dematerialisation of shares and liquidity 99.39% of the paid-up share capital has been dematerialised

as on 31 March, 2021.

m) Outstanding ~ GDRs/ADRs/warrants/  convertible The Company currently has no outstanding GDRsS/ADRs/
instruments, conversion date and likely impact on warrants/ convertible instruments, sweat equity or ESOS.
equity The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting

held on 2" September, 2020 have allotted 5,00,000 Equity
shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid-up for cash at a price of ¥ 955/-
per equity share including a premium of ¥ 953/- per share
aggregating to X 47.75 crores to members of the Promoters /
Promoter Group of the Company upon conversion of warrants
issued to them pursuant to special resolution passed by the
members of the Company on 24" October, 2019.

n) Commodity Price Risk or Foreign Exchange Risk and The Company is not materially exposed to commodity price

Hedging Activities

risk. The Company also does not carry out any commodity
hedging activities.

i.  Total Exposure of the Company to the Commodities : Nil
ii. Exposure of the Company to various commodities : Nil

iii. Commodity risks faced by the listed entity during the
year and how they were managed: The Company did
not face any material commodity risks, other than
logistics issues on account of outbreak of coronavirus
pandemic during the financial year under report.

Since about half of the Company’s income is by way of
exports with major currency exposure being in US Dollars,
Pound Sterling and Euros, the Company generally does
currency hedging upto a maximum period of 18 months and
upto the extent of 40% - 60% of its Net Foreign Exchange
Earnings (NFE). Most of the Company’s borrowings are in
foreign currencies, mainly in US Dollars. The Company keeps
its borrowings in foreign currency exposure open and to that
extent is exposed to the currency fluctuation risks.
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0)

Plant Locations Sejavata, Ratlam, Madhya Pradesh.

Pologround, Indore, Madhya Pradesh.

SEZ Indore, Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh.

Sector Ill, Industrial Area, Pithampur, Madhya Pradesh.
Gandhidham, Gujarat.

Nandesari, Gujarat.

Ankleshwar, Gujarat.

® N O Vv kAW =

Village Ranu, Tehsil Padra, District Vadodara, Gujarat.
Athal, Silvassa (D & NH).

10. Dandudyog Industrial Estate, Silvassa (D & NH).

11. Aurangabad, Maharashtra (Unit | & Unit II).

o

12. Mahad, Maharashtra.

13. Tarapur, District Palghar, Maharashtra.

14. Dehradun, Uttarakhand.

15. Gom Block, Bharikhola, South Sikkim (Unit | & Unit Il).

P)

Harish P Kamath
Corporate Counsel & Company Secretary

Address for Correspondence

Ipca Laboratories Limited
125, Kandivli Industrial Estate
Kandivli (W), Mumbai 400 067
Tel. No. (022) 6210 6050
E-mail : investors@ipca.com

List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along
with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial
year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed
deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the
listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in
India or abroad

CARE Ratings has re-affirmed the following ratings to the
Company'’s long term / short term bank facilities Fund Based
/ Non Fund Based) of ¥ 1140 crores - CARE AA; Stable / Care
A1+ (Double A; Outlook:Stable / A One Plus).

CRISIL has re-affirmed ‘CRISIL A1+ rating on the ¥ 50 crores
commercial paper programme of the Company.

Share transfer and other communications may be

Link Intime India Private Limited

addressed to the Regjistrars C-101, 247 Park,

LBS Marg, Vikhroli (West)

Mumbai — 400 083

Tel. No. (022) 4918 6000

E-mail : rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

10. Other Disclosures

a)

b)

Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the website of the Company
(Weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Policy on Related Party Transactions.pdf). There were
no materially significant related party transactions during the year that may have potential conflict with the interest of the
Company.

The Register of Contracts containing the transactions in which Directors are deemed to be concerned or interested is placed
before the Board and Audit Committee regularly for its approval. Disclosures from directors and senior management staff
have been obtained to the effect that they have not entered into any material, financial and commercial transactions where
they have personal interest that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

Transactions with the related parties are disclosed in the notes to the accounts forming part of this Annual Report.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange(s) or the
board or any other statutory authorities on any matter related to capital market during the last 3 financial years

None
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Details of establishment of vigil mechanism, whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel has been denied
access to the audit committee

There is a Whistle Blower Policy in the Company and that no personnel has been denied access to the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use vigil mechanism. The
Whistle Blowing Policy is posted on the website of the Company. (weblink https://www.ipca.com/whistleblowing-policy/).

Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of corporate governance under SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The details about adoption of non-mandatory requirements are given in
the table below.

Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed

The Board has approved a policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries which has been uploaded on the website of the
Company. (Weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Policy on Material Subsidiaries.pdf).

Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed

The Board has approved a policy for related party transactions which has been uploaded on the website of the Company.
(Weblink https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Policy on Related Party Transactions.pdf)

Disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities

The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of pharmaceuticals. Since the Company does not consume
large quantities of commodities in its manufacturing activities, the Company is not materially exposed to commodity price
risks nor does the Company do any commodity hedging.

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under
Regulation 32 (7A)

The Company has utilized the funds raised through preferential allotment of convertible warrants and equity shares on
conversion of warrants for the purposes for which the allotment of said convertible warrants / equity shares on conversion
of warrants were made.

A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company have been
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such statutory authority

The Company has obtained a certificate in this regard from a Company Secretary in practice.

Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is mandatorily required, in
the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with reasons thereof

The Board has accepted and acted on all the mandatory recommendations of its committees during the financial year
under report.

Total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor and
all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part.

The Company'’s subsidiaries have not made any payment to the statutory auditors of the Company. The fees paid by the
Company to its Statutory Auditors are stated in the appended Audited Financial Statements of the Company.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013:

Number of complaints filed during the calendar year 2020 : 2
Number of complaints disposed of during the calendar year : 2
Number of complaints pending as at end of the calendar year : Nil

Non-Compliance of any requirement of Corporate Governance Report with reasons thereof

None
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12. Adoption of Discretionary Requirements

A. TheBoard The Company currently has an Executive Chairman and as such he has an
office maintained by the Company.

B. Shareholders Rights At present, the Company does not send the statement of half yearly financial
performance to the household of each shareholder. The Company publishes
the same in the newspapers and also uploads the same on its website.

C. Modified opinion(s) in audit report The Company’s financial statements are with unmodified audit opinion.

D. Reporting of internal auditor The Internal Auditor reports to the Joint Managing Director / CFO as well as
to the Audit Committee.

13. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46

a)

9)

h)

The Company has a process to provide, inter-alia, the information to the Board as specified in Part A of Schedule Il of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 pertaining to Corporate Governance. The Board
also periodically reviews the compliances by the Company of all applicable laws.

The Board of Directors in their meeting regularly discuss and are satisfied that the Company has plans in place for orderly
succession for appointment to the Board of Directors and Senior Management.

Code of Conduct for Board and Senior Managerial Personnel

The Board has laid down a code of conduct for Board members and senior management personnel of the Company. The
code also incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. The said code of
conduct is posted on Company’s website www.ipca.com.

The Board members and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the said code of conduct. A
declaration in this regard signed by the Chairman & Managing Director / CEQO is given at the end of this Report.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for prevention of insider trading based on SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015. The same has been placed on the website of the Company www.ipca.com. All the Directors, senior
management employees and other employees who have access to the unpublished price sensitive information of the
Company are governed by this code. During the year under Report, there has been due compliance with the said code of
conduct for prevention of insider trading.

The Company complies with the requirement of placing minimum information before the Board of Directors as contained
in Part A of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The CEO/CFO compliance certification under Part B of Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 forms part of this Annual Report.

The Company has a Risk Management Committee which monitors and reviews risk management plan on regular basis. The
Board of Directors also periodically review and monitor the risk management plan of the Company.

The Board on an annual basis evaluates the performance of independent Directors. The Independent Directors have also
given declarations that they fulfill the criteria of independence as specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and that they
are independent of the Company’s management.

Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 21st September, 2014
consisting of the following members:

Mr. A. K. Jain, Joint Managing Director/CFO, Mr. Pranay Godha, Executive Director, Mr. Prashant Godha, Executive Director
and Mr. Manish Jain, Sr. Vice President — Business Development.

The roles and responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee includes monitoring and review of risk management
plan and reporting the same to the Board of Directors as it may deem fit and any other terms as may be referred to them by
the Board of Directors, from time to time.

The Board of Directors of the Company also regularly discuss in their meetings the major risk factors to which the Company
is exposed such as forex, receivables, cyber security, regulatory, etc.

The risk management policy is displayed on the Company’s website (https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-
policy/Risk_Management_Policy.pdf).
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There was 1 (one) meeting of this committee during the financial year 2020-21. The date on which the said meeting was
held is as follows:

2" September, 2020

The attendance of each member of the Risk Management Committee in the committee meeting is given below:

Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain 1 1
Mr. Pranay Godha 1 1
Mr. Prashant Godha 1 1
Mr. Manish Jain 1 1
(Sr.Vice President — Business Development)

The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions
including clear threshold limits approved by the Board which is available on the website of the Company (https://www.ipca.
com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Policy on_ Related Party Transactions.pdf).

The Company has not entered into any materially significant transactions during the year under report with promoters,
directors, key/senior management personnel, etc. other than the non-material transactions entered into in the ordinary
course of Company’s business as approved by the Audit Committee through omnibus approval valid for each financial
year. Transactions with related parties are disclosed under notes forming part of the accounts. The Board and the Audit
Committee periodically reviews the details of the related party transactions entered into by the Company. Omnibus
approval of the Audit Committee is also obtained before entering into related party transactions.

No employee including Key Managerial Personnel or Director or Promoter of the Company has entered into any agreement
for himself or on behalf of other person with any shareholder or any other third party with regard to compensation or profit
sharing in connection with dealings in the securities of the Company.

Subsidiary Companies

The Company has 2 non-listed, non-material Indian wholly owned subsidiaries. The Company also has 5 overseas non-
material wholly owned subsidiary companies and 3 overseas non-material wholly owned subsidiary companies of wholly
owned subsidiaries and 1 overseas non-material subsidiary of wholly owned subsidiary, the financial statements of which
are regularly reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors. The minutes of board meetings of subsidiary
companies are also regularly placed before the meetings of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Board of Directors
of the Company also reviews all significant transactions and arrangements, if any, entered into by the unlisted subsidiaries.

None of the Director of the Company is a director or act as independent director in more than seven listed entities and none
of the Wholetime Director serve as an Independent Director in more than 3 listed entities.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 committees and Chairman of more than 5 committees
across all the companies in which they are Directors. All directors have disclosed their committee positions to the Company.
For determining this limit, Chairpersonship and Membership of Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee
only are considered.

The Shareholders have approved the re-appointment of Mr. Anand T. Kusre and Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava as Independent
Directors for a second term of five consecutive years from 1t April, 2019 and Dr. (Mrs.) Manisha Premnath as Independent
Director for a second term of five consecutive years from 21 September, 2019 through postal ballot on 27" March, 2019.
The shareholders have also approved the appointment of Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth as Independent Director for a term of five
consecutive years from 29" March, 2019 at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 13 August, 2019.

The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors have been disclosed on the website of the Company
www.ipca.com.The maximum tenure of independent directors is in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
made thereunder.

In accordance with requirements of Section 149(6) and (7) of the Companies Act, 2013, all the independent directors have
given declaration of independence and the same has been noted in the first board meeting of the current financial year
held on 16" June, 2020.

Independent Directors Meeting

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 4% February, 2021, without the attendance of
non-independent directors and members of the management, inter-alia, to discuss:

i.  Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole;
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ii.  Evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive and Non
Executive Directors; and

iii. Evaluation of the quality, content and timelines of flow of information between the management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

All the independent Directors were present at the said meeting.

The Company has undertaken and covered all the Company’s Directors and Officers liability with a suitable insurance policy
covering such risks and to the extent of such quantum as determined by the Board.

The Company maintains a functional website containing the basic information about the Company (www.ipca.com). The Company
has disseminated all the required information on its website as required under Regulation 46 (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Information on Directors retiring by rotation and seeking appointment / re-appointment :
Mr. Prashant Godha (DIN 00012759)

Mr. Prashant Godha, aged 46 years is a graduate in Commerce and has done Post Graduate Diploma in Business Management and
has experience of over 20 years in pharmaceuticals marketing and general management.

He was appointed as an Additional Director on the Board of the Company with effect from 28 July, 2011 and was appointed as
the Executive Director of the Company with effect from 16" August, 2011.

He holds 7,84,322 equity shares in the Company.

He is also a Director of the following companies:

Mexin Medicaments Pvt. Ltd. Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd.

Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. Paranthapa Investments & Traders Pvt. Ltd.

Gudakesh Investment & Traders Pvt. Ltd. Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd.

Makers Laboratories Ltd. Resonance Specialties Ltd.

O | N |1 Ww|=
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Capricoating Solution Pvt. Ltd. 0 |Ipca Foundation

He is the member of the Audit Committee, CSR Committee and Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company. He is a member of Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the
Board of Directors of M/s. Resonance Specialties Ltd.

Number of Board Meetings held and attended by him during his tenure as Director of the Company are given in the Report on
Corporate Governance of the respective financial year annexed with the Company’s Annual Reports which are available on the
Company'’s website www.ipca.com.

Mr. Premchand Godha, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Pranay Godha and Mr. Prashant Godha, Executive Directors are related
to each other. He is not related to any other Director or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company.

Mr. Premchand Godha (DIN 00012691)

Mr. Premchand Godha aged 74 years is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Commerce graduate. He is also a first generation
entrepreneur. He is a director of the Company since 315 October, 1975 and has been the Managing Director of the Company since
March, 1983. He has over 4 decades of experience in the pharmaceutical industry.

He holds 29,07,340 equity shares of the Company.

He is also a Director of the following companies;

1 | Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd 2 |Vasant Investment Corporation Ltd.

3 | Gudakesh Investment & Traders Pvt. Ltd. 4 | Paranthapa Investments & Traders Pvt. Ltd.

5 |lpca Foundation

He is not a member of any committee of the Board in other companies in which he is a Director.

Number of Board Meetings held and attended by him during his tenure as Director of the Company is given in the Report on
Corporate Governance of the respective financial year annexed with the Company’s Annual Reports which are available on the
Company'’s website www.ipca.com.

Mr. Premchand Godha, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Pranay Godha and Mr. Prashant Godha, Executive Directors are related
to each other. He is not related to any other Director or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee of the Board of Directors comprising of Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava, Independent Director and Chairman of the
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Committee, Mr. Premchand Godha, Chairman & Managing Director, Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain, Joint Managing Director and
Mr. Prashant Godha, Executive Director. The CSR Committee of the Board will be responsible for:

i)  formulating and recommending to the Board a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the CSR
activities to be undertaken by the Company;

i) recommending the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR activities; and
iii)  monitoring the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time.

There were 3 (Three) meetings of this committee during the financial year 2020-21. The dates on which the said meetings
were held are as follows:

16 June, 2020 7t November, 2020
4th February, 2021

The attendance of each member of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee in the committee meetings is given
below:

Name of the Member No. of meetings held No. of meetings attended
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava 3 3
Mr. Premchand Godha 3 3
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain 3 3
Mr. Prashant Godha 3 3

The CSR policy of the Company is placed on the website of the Company www.ipca.com.

Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

A qualified practising Company Secretary carries out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity share
capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed equity share capital of the Company. The audit report confirms
that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and the total number
of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

Dividend Distribution Policy

In terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Second Amendment)
Regulations, 2016, the Company has formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy which has been uploaded on the website of
the Company (https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/dividend distribution policy.pdf).

Annexure A

High/low of market price of the Company’s shares traded on BSE Ltd (BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. (NSE) during the
financial year 2020-21 is furnished below:

Year Month Highest (%) Lowest ()

BSE NSE BSE NSE
2020 April 1821.00 1825.00 1371.40 1367.00
May 1656.40 1657.70 1469.40 1471.70
June 1718.00 1718.95 1467.00 1466.00
July 1902.60 1902.00 1623.05 1615.00
August 2175.00 2174.90 1857.00 1855.05
September 2235.80 2236.10 1864.50 1860.35
October 2455.55 2460.00 2033.00 2033.00
November 2449.00 2450.00 1963.00 1962.10
December 2297.00 2299.00 2102.40 2103.05
2021 January 2198.00 2199.00 1834.00 1832.95
February 2057.65 2055.50 1786.05 1785.40
March 1972.65 1972.75 1799.00 1800.30
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Annexure B
Graph of share price/ BSE Sensex
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Annexure C
The distribution of shareholding as on 31t March, 2021 is as follows :
No. of equity shares held No. of % No. of shares %
shareholders
Upto 500 98488 94.82 5277682 4.16
501 to 1000 3559 343 3141830 2.48
1001 to 2000 727 0.70 1106695 0.87
2001 to 3000 232 0.22 598354 0.47
3001 to 4000 133 0.13 475561 0.37
4001 to 5000 104 0.10 489430 0.39
5001 to 10000 207 0.20 1485561 1.17
10001 and above 421 0.40 114276996 90.09
Grand Total 103871 100.00 126852109 100.00
No. of shareholders in Physical Mode 1988 1.91 776006 0.61
No. of shareholders in Electronic Mode 101883 98.09 126076103 99.39
Shareholding pattern as on 31t March, 2021 is as follows :
Categories of shareholders No. of shareholders No. of shares % holding
Indian Promoters 17 58716236 46.29
Banks and Insurance Companies 18 4622860 3.64
Mutual Funds / Foreign Mutual Funds 46 26866353 21.18
Flls / Foreign Portfolio Investors 446 22162933 17.47
NRIs 4315 797200 0.63
Domestic Companies / Other Bodies Corporates 894 956897 0.75
Resident Individuals/Others 98135 12729630 10.04
Total 103871 126852109 100.00
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CEO CERTIFICATION

To,
All the Members of
Ipca Laboratories Ltd.

It is hereby certified and confirmed that as provided in terms of Regulation 26(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board members and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the financial year ended 31 March, 2021.

For Ipca Laboratories Limited
Premchand Godha
Chairman & Managing Director / CEO

28t May, 2021

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION
The Board of Directors

Ipca Laboratories Limited
48, Kandivli Industrial Estate,
Kandivli - West, Mumbai - 400 067.

We hereby certify that:

(@) We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended 315 March, 2021 and that to the best of
our knowledge and belief:

i these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) No transaction is entered into by the Company during the year which is fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of
conduct.

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we have evaluated
the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the
Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware
and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:
i significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

ii.  significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements; and

iii.  instances of significant fraud, if any, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management
or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

For Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
Mumbai Premchand Godha Ajit Kumar Jain
28t May 2021 Chairman & Managing Director / CEO Joint Managing Director / CFO
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PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO

THE MEMBERS OF

IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Ipca Laboratories Limited (‘the Company’) for the
year ended on March 31, 2021, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46

and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by
the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and
Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, we certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2021.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Practising Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved

Partner

FCS: 6488 CP:6018

UDIN: F006488C000384844
Mumbai, 28 May 2021

DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/ UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
a) |Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding | No of shares — 45904

shares in the suspense account lying at the beginning of the
year No of shareholders - 145
b) |Number of shareholders who approached listed entity for |4
transfer of shares from suspense account during the year;
¢) | Number of shareholders to whom shares were transferred |4
from suspense account during the year

d) |Aggregate number of shareholders and the outstanding
shares in the suspense account lying at the end of the year;

No of shares — 40712

No of shareholders - 126

That the voting rights on these shares shall remain frozen till
the rightful owner of such shares claims the shares.

Voting rights in respect of shares lying in the suspense account
shall be frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claim them.
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ANNEXURE 2

1.

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The Company believes that contributing to the overall health and wellness of our world starts with lessening our impact on
the environment and we remain committed to the highest ethical standards in everything we do - right from research and
development to sales and marketing.

The Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility involves initiatives on a micro level to include patient health, employee and public
safety, nurturing of environment and building sustainable communities. The Company also engages with external stakeholders
including healthcare professionals, investors, customers, non-governmental organisations and suppliers in this endeavour.

The Company is committed to operate its business with emphasis on CSR in all areas of its operation. The Company integrates
its business values and operations to meet the expectations of its shareholders, customers, employees, regulators, investors,
suppliers, the community and take care of environment with best interest.

Composition of CSR Committee:

Sl. | Name of the Director Designation / Nature of Number of meetings Number of meetings of
No. Directorship of CSR Committee held | CSR Committee attended
during the year during the year
1 Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava Independent Director and 3 3
Chairman of the Committee

2 | Mr.Premchand Godha Chairman & Managing Director 3 3

3 | Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain Joint Managing Director 3 3

4 | Mr. Prashant Godha Executive Director 3 3

Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed
on the website of the Company:

A definite and well structured Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy has been framed by the Company and is available on
its website (https://www.ipca.com/wp-content/pdf/corporate-policy/Corporate Social Responsibility Policy.pdf).

The CSR policy forms a part of the Company’s corporate vision and defines its approach on key responsibility issues.

Provide the details of impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report):

No impact assessment of CSR Projects were carried out in the financial year ended 31 March, 2021.

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub - rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any :

S1. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off from Amount required to be set-off for the
No. preceding financial years (in<) financial year, if any (in<)
NOT APPLICABLE

Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): I 542.47 Crores

(@) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): 10.85 crores

(b)  Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years : ¥ 0.06 crores
() Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: None

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7¢): ¥ 10.91 crores

(@)  CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Spent for the Amount Unspent (in %)
Financial Year (in < Crores) Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Unspent CSR Account as per Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section
section 135(6). 135(5).
Amount Date of transfer| Name of Fund Amount Date of transfer
< 12.96 crores None None None None None
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Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
SI. | Name | Item |Localarea| Locationof | Project | Amount | Amount| Amount | Mode of Mode of
No. | ofthe | from | (Yes/No) | the project |duration. allocated| spent |transferred| impleme implementation
Project |the list of] forthe | inthe |toUnspent ntation Through
activities project | current CSRAccount -Direct implementing Agency
in (in%). |financial| forthe |(Yes/No).
schedule State | District year project as Name CSR
Vil to (in%). |persection Registration
the Act. 135(6) (in3). No.
NOT APPLICABLE
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 &5 6 7 8
Sl. | Name of the Project Item from Local area (Yes/ Amount Mode of Mode of
No. the list of No) Location of spentin implementation implementation
activities in the project the current -Direct (Yes/ Through
schedule VIl financial year No). implementing Agency
totheAct. | state | District| (3 Crores) Name
1. | Covid Related Assistance and Healthcare All India 4.06 Yes Directly by the
Relief Company
2. | Redevelopment and Sanitation Mumbai 0.50 Thru Trust Hiralal Parekh Parivar
Modernisation of Worli Maharashtra Charitable Trust
Crematorium
3. | Charitable activities in the field | Promotion of All India 2.15 Yes Prabhat Foundation, a
of Education and Medical help | Education/ Trust of which trust, the
for needy people Healthcare Company is the settler
4 | Distribution of Food Packets, Healthcare / Mumbai 0.10 Thru Trust Apne Aap Women'’s
Hygiene Products and Sanitation Maharashtra collective
toiletries kits in the red light
area of Mumbai in Covid times
5 | Solar street lamps in rural Rural All India 0.14 No Rotary Club of Mumbai
area and toilet blocks in rural | Development West Line
ashramshalas
6 | Training in Yoga and general Art & Culture Mumbai 0.20 No The Yoga Institute
well-being Maharashtra
7 | Contribution for construction Healthcare Sholapur 3.50 Thru Trust M. M. Patel Public
and development of medical Maharashtra Charitable Trust
college, hospital and Research
Centre
8 | Distribution of Food Kits to Healthcare All India 0.12 Yes Directly by the
needy during covid times Company
9 | Providing funds for Ambulance | Healthcare All India 0.18 Yes Directly by the
/ X-Ray Machine / Repairs to Company
hospital building and other
healthcare related expenses
including medical aid to the
needy
10 | Skill Development /Vocation Skill All India 0.08 Yes Directly by the
Training / Education Assistance | Development Company
/Vocational
Training
11 | Rural Development/ Sports/ | Environment, All India 1.93 Yes Directly by the
Environmental Monitoring Rural Company
Development,
Promote
Sports
Total 12.96
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(d)  Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: None
(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: None
(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 3 12.96
(9) Excess amount for set off, if any:
SI. No. | Particular Amount (in ¥ Crores).
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 10.91
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 12.96
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2.05
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial None
years, if any
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 2.05
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sl. | Preceding Amount transferred Amount Amount transferred to any fund | Amount remaining
No. | Financial Year. to Unspent CSR spentin the |specified under Schedule Vil as per to be spentin
Account under reporting section 135(6), if any. succeeding financial
section 135 (6) Financial Year | Name of | Amount Date of years. (in3)
(inX Crores) (inX Crores) | the Fund (in%) transfer
1. 12019-20 0.06 0.06 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2. |2018-19 Nil Nil N/A N/A N/A N/A
3. |2017-18 Nil Nil N/A N/A N/A N/A
TOTAL 0.06 0.06 - - - -
(b)  Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
SI. |ProjectID. Name Financial Project Total Amount spent | Cumulative Status of
No. of the Year in duration. amount on the project | amount spent | the project -
Project. | which the allocated for in the attheend | Completed/
project was the project reporting of reporting Ongoing.
commenced. (in%) Financial Year Financial
(in%) Year. (in <)
1. NONE

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR
spent in the financial year (asset-wise details).

(@)
(b)
(@
(d)

11.

Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): None

Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: None

Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc.: None

Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset): None

Applicable

Mumbai

28" May 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Premchand Godha
Managing Director / CEO

Dev Parkash Yadava
(Chairman CSR Committee)

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not
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ANNEXURE 3
Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant

Form for

to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to

in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso

thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

(@)
(b)
(@
(d)
(e)
(f)
C);
(h)

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable
Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: Not Applicable

Date(s) of approval by the Board: Not Applicable

Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188: Not
Applicable

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

@)
(b)
(@
(d
(e)
(f)

Note:

Mumbai,
28" May,

Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: Not Applicable

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: Not Applicable

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any: Not Applicable
Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable

Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on arm’s length basis and were in the
ordinary course of Company’s business. The Company has not entered into any contract, arrangement or transaction with
any related party which could be considered as material within the meaning of Regulation 23(1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the related party transactions are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

Premchand Godha
2021 Chairman & Managing Director
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ANNEXURE 4

DETAILS OF REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 (1) OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

i.  The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the financial
year 2020-21, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company for the

financial year 2020-21 is as under:

Sr. Name of the Director / Key Managerial | Remuneration of Director % increase/ Ratio of
No. Person (KMP) and Designation / KMP for the financial (decrease) in remuneration
year 2020-21 %) remuneration in of each Director
(including commission the financial year to median
provided for Wholetime 2020-21 remuneration of
Directors) employees

1. | Mr. Premchand Godha 10,79,17,193 1.97% 344.23
(Chairman & Managing Director/CEO)

2. Mr. A.K Jain 6,44,63,230 12.17% 205.62
(Joint Managing Director/CFO)

3. | Mr.Pranay Godha 3,24,07,891 (0.32)% 103.37
(Executive Director)

4, Mr. Prashant Godha 3,04,01,007 1.44% 96.97
(Executive Director)

5. |Mr.A.T.Kusre 10,50,000 23.52% 335
(Independent Director)

6. | Mr.Dev Parkash Yadava 12,00,000 - 3.83
(Independent Director)

7. | Dr.Manisha Premnath 8,50,000 - 2.71
(Independent Director)

8. | Mr.Kamal Kishore Seth 11,00,000 (8.33%) 3.51
(Independent Director)

9. | Mr. Harish P. Kamath 1,27,06,855 7.31% 40.53
(Corporate Counsel & Company Secretary)

ii. The median remuneration of the employees of the Company during the financial year was ¥ 3,13,500/-.
iii. Inthe financial year, there was an increase of 11.96% in the median remuneration of employees.
iv. There were 14,574 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2021.

v. Average percentage increase made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the financial
year 2020-21 was 8.17% whereas there is an increase of 4.13% in the managerial remuneration for the same financial year.

vi. Itis hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
other Employees.

For and on behalf of the Board

Premchand Godha
Chairman & Managing Director

Mumbai,
28t May, 2021
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ANNEXURE 5

1.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i)  The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy :
The Company continues its policy of giving priority to energy conservation measures including regular review of energy
generation and consumption and effective control on utilisation of energy.
The following energy conservation measures were implemented during the financial year:
e  Use of coal additive to improve boiler combustion efficiency
e Installation of automated power factor controller for maintaining unity power factor
e  Maintaining unity power factor at manufacturing sites
e DM water plant RO reject used in boiler as feed water
e  Rain water harvesting
e  Replacement of old motors with IE3 rating motors
e  Replacement of HPMV/fluorescent lamps with LED lamps
e Improvement in operational efficiency of chillers and brine plants
e Impeller coating on chillers and brines

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for utilizing of alternate sources of energy :

The Company is evaluating all possibilities of utilizing alternate sources of energy in its operations, wherever possible,
especially solar/wind energy.

The Company has invested an amount of ¥ 37 crores in setting-up solar/wind renewable energy power plants at Solapur
(Maharashtra), Patan (Gujarat) and Athal (Silvassa) with total capacity of 8.57 MW till 315t March, 2021. During the
financial year, these power plants have in total generated 70.75 lacs power units which were used for Company’s various
manufacturing / R&D facilities.

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation equipments :

All the necessary capital and revenue expenditures were incurred by the Company on energy conservation equipments
and consumables.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
Research & Development

(A) Specific areas in which R&D work was carried out by the Company:

The Company’s R&D Centres at Mumbai, Ratlam, Athal and Ranu are approved by Department of Scientific and Industrial
Research, Government of India. The Company carries out R&D in several areas including:

() Development of indigenous technologies for major drugs and intermediates, process improvements, technology
absorption and optimisation of basic drugs, process simplification, etc.

(i) Improvement of existing processes to improve yields and quality, reduce cost and lead to eco friendly process.
(iii) Development of newer dosage forms and new drug delivery systems.

(iv) Development of non-infringing processes for APIs.

(B) Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D :

(i) R&D efforts have helped bring out an improvement in processes, product design and operating efficiencies.
(ii) Development of new formulations and line extensions.

(iii) Development of various APIs and Intermediates.
(

iv) Development of new markets, adaptation to meet export requirements, quality upgradation and cost reduction.

(C) Future Plan of Action:

(i) Development of various APls/intermediates having good potential for exports and local market.

(i) Additional investment in manpower, latest instrumentation to upgrade and strengthen R & D facilities.
(iii) Development of newer drug delivery systems.
(

iv) Development of formulations for developed market and bio-equivalence studies of the same.



(D) Expenditure on R &D:
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2020-21 (X Crores)

2019-20 (X Crores)

a) Capital 5.28 4.59
b) Revenue 121.39 96.45
c) Total 126.67 101.04
d) R &D expenditure as a percentage of turnover 2.49% 2.35%

(E) Imported technology (imported during last 5 years):

The Company has not imported any technology during the last 5 years.

3. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
A. Earnings

The CIF value of exports of the Company during the year aggregated to 3 2717.19 crores as against ¥ 2143.75 crores in the

previous year.

B) Outgo

The foreign exchange outgo of the Company during the year aggregated to ¥ 794.87 crores as against I 769.43 crores in the

previous year.

Mumbai,
28t May, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Premchand Godha
Chairman & Managing Director
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Business Responsibility (BR) Report
SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

Sr. No. | Particulars Details
1 Corporate Identity Number L24239MH1949PLC007837
2 Name of the Company Ipca Laboratories Limited
3 Registered address 48, Kandivli Industrial Estate,
Kandivli (West), Mumbai — 400 067
4 Website www.ipca.com
5 E-mail id investors@ipca.com
6 Financial Year reported 15t April, 2020 to 31 March, 2021
7 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged Pharmaceuticals. NIC Code - 21002
(industrial activity code-wise)
8 List of key products/services that the Company | The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet) pharmaceuticals. Key products are :
1. Hydroxychloroquine Sulphate
2. Artemether & Lumefantrine
3. Acceclofenac and its combinations
9 Total number of locations where business
activity is undertaken by the Company
(@ | Number of International Locations The Company has non-trading offices in several countries in South East
(provide details of major 5) Asia, CIS and Africa. The Company’s wholly owned subsidiaries have
contract research and manufacturing centres in the United Kingdom and
United States.

(b) | Number of National Locations - The Company has 17 manufacturing facilities details of which are
provided in the Annual Report. The Company’s R&D Centres are located
at Mumbai, Ranu, Ratlam & Silvassa. The Registered and Corporate offices
of the Company are at Mumbai. The Company has pan India Distribution
network.

10 Markets served by the Company - Local/State/ | The Company’s products are sold across the globe.

National/International

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY

Sr. No. | Particulars Details

1 Paid up Capital (INR) % 25.37 crores

2 Total Turnover (INR) % 5201.40 crores

3 Total profit after taxes (INR) T 1140.77 crores

4 Total Spending on Corporate Social % 12.96 crores. 1.14% of the net profit for the financial year 2020-21.

Responsibility (CSR) as percentage of profit after

tax (%)

5 List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above | Mainly in the field of education, medical relief and poverty elevation.
has been incurred

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS

Sr. No. | Particulars Details

1 Does the Company have any Subsidiary|The Company has 7 wholly owned subsidiaries, 3 wholly owned
Company/ Companies? subsidiaries of the wholly owned subsidiaries and 1 subsidiary of wholly

owned subsidiary.

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies|Most of the subsidiaries are incorporated mainly to hold product
participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent|registrations and therefore, do not generate material revenue and do not
Company? If yes, then indicate the number of | directly participate in the BR initiatives of the parent Company.
such subsidiary company(s)

3 Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers,| There is no direct participation in the Company’s BR initiatives by
distributors etc.) that the Company does business | Company’s suppliers, distributors, etc.
with, participate in the BR initiatives of the
Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of
such entity/entities?



http://www.ipca.com
mailto:investors@ipca.com

SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
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(a)

Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy :

Sr.No. | Particulars Details

1 DIN Number 00012657

2 Name Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain

3 Designation Joint Managing Director
(b) Details of the BR head

Sr.No. | Particulars Details

1 DIN Number 00012657

2 Name Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain

3 Designation Joint Managing Director
4 Telephone No. 022-6210 6020

5 E-mail id ajit.jain@ipca.com

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies

(a)

(b)

Details of compliance

Sr.No. | Questions P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

1 Do you have a policy/ policies for Yes, wherever necessary

2 Has the policy being formulated in consultation | The policies have been formulated in consultation with the
with the Relevant Stakeholders? Company’s Corporate Management Team and are approved by the

Board of Directors.

3 Does the policy conform to any national /|All the policies are framed keeping in mind the compliances with
international standards? If yes, specify? the national standards/requirements.

4 Has the policy being approved by the Board? | The policies are approved by the Board, signed by the Managing
If yes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ | Director/CEO and many of which are also placed on the website of
appropriate Board Director? the Company, www.ipca.com

5 Does the company have a specified committee | The implementation of the policies are periodically reviewed by the
of the Board/ Director/ Official to oversee the | Corporate Management Team of the Company.
implementation of the policy?

6 Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? | www.ipca.com

7 Has the policy been formally communicated to all | Many of the Company’s policies are placed on the website of the
relevant internal and external Stakeholders? Company and can be viewed by the Company’s internal and external

stakeholders. The other relevant policies are made available upon
request by any stakeholder.

8 Does the company have in-house structure to |Yes
implement the policy/ policies?

9 Does the Company have a grievance redressal | Yes
mechanism related to the policy/ policies to
address Stakeholders’ grievances related to the
policy/ policies?

10 Has the company carried out independent audit/ | Effectiveness of the policies are periodically reviewed/evaluated

evaluation of the working of this policy by an
internal or external agency?

by the Company’s Corporate Management Team. However, the
Company has not carried out any independent evaluation/audit of
the working of these policies by external agency.

If answer to the question at serial number 1 against any principle, is‘No) please explain why: (Tick up to 2 options)

No. Questions P1 | P2 | P3 | P4 | P5 | P6 | P7 | P8 | P9
1. The company has not understood the Principles
2. The company is not at a stage where it finds itself
in a position to formulate and implement the
policies on specified principles
3. The company does not have financial or
manpower resources available for the task
4. It is planned to be done within next 6 months
5. It is planned to be done within the next 1 year
6. Any other reason (please specify)
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3. Governance related to BR

Sr. No. | Particulars Details

1 Frequency with which the Board of Directors,|All the policies of the Company are reviewed on a quarterly basis
Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR|by the Company’s Corporate Management Team consisting of
Performance of the Company. (Within 3 months, | all Wholetime working Directors and other senior managerial
3-6 months, Annually, More than 1 year) employees of the Company.

2 Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability | The Company does not propose to publish a Business
Report? Responsibility or Sustainability Report.
What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? Business responsibility report will be placed on the website of

the Company as and when prepared.

How frequently it is published? Please see the answer above.

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE

Principle 1 - Businesses should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
1 Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the Group/
Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs /Others?
The policy covers all the stakeholders of the Company, internal as well as external.
2 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percentage was satisfactorily
resolved by the management?
Other than normal business related complaints in the ordinary course of the Company’s business, no other material
complaint has been received from any of the stakeholder in the financial year under report. All the complaints received are
satisfactorily resolved.
Principle 2 - Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle
1 List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks and/or opportunities.
(a) All the pharmaceuticals manufactured by the Company meet the pharmacopeial requirements.
(b) | Pharmacovigilance activities are carried out in the markets serviced by the Company.
(9) Safety/Stability of the products are continuously monitored as per the standard operating procedures of the Company.
2 For each such product, provide the following details in respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.) per unit of
product(optional)
(a) Reduction during sourcing/production/ distribution achieved since the previous year throughout the value chain?
The Company monitors these activities on a continuous basis. However, in view of varied nature of products and packs, the
compilation of accurate information is not feasible.
(b) | Reduction during usage by consumers (energy, water) has been achieved since the previous year?
Please see the information furnished under (a) above.
3 Does the company have procedures in place for sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?
The philosophy of the Company is to continuously work on the indigenization of its key raw materials to reduce dependence on
imports and to reduce cost in order to be competitive as well as to have alternate source of dependable supply for uninterrupted
supply chain.
(@) If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
Due to the Company’s policy as stated above, the consumption of imported raw materials as a percentage to sales has been
continously coming down.
4 Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and services from local & small producers, including communities surrounding
their place of work?
Yes
(@) If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their capacity and capability of local and small vendors?
The Company provides necessary regulatory and technical support to small vendors providing goods and services to the
Company. Regular Vendor Audits are carried out and reports are shared with small vendors for improvement in their quality
systems.
5 Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of products and
waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.
Being in the highly regulated industry, re-cycling of products is not possible/permissible. However, wherever possible, industrial
solvents are recovered and reused. Similarly, catalysts used in the processes are regenerated and reused.
Principle 3 - Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees
1 Total number of employees 14,574
2 Total number of employees hired on temporary/contractual/casual basis. 6,141
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Principle 3 - Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

3 Number of permanent women employees. 889
4 Number of permanent employees with disabilities 0
5 Do you have an employee association that is recognized by management? Yes
6 What percentage of your permanent employees is members of this recognized |9.07%
employee association?
7 Number of complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual harassment in the last financial year
and pending, as on the end of the financial year.
Sr. | Category No of complaints filed during the No of complaints pending as on
No. financial year end of the financial year
1 | Child labour/ forced labour/ None None
involuntary labour
2 | Sexual harassment (for the calendar 2 None
year 2020)
3 | Discriminatory employment None None
The Company has adopted a policy in line with the requirements of Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at the
Workplace and a Committee has been set-up to redress sexual harassment complaints received. The necessary annual
report has been submitted to the competent authority in this regard.
8 What percentage of your under mentioned employees were given safety & skill upgradation training in the last year?
(a) Permanent Employees All employees are trained on safety and job skills before their induction in the
(b) Permanent Women Employees organization. Also need based regular safety and job skills trainings as well as
(©) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees | re-trainings are imparted based on requirements and observations.
(d) Employees with Disabilities

Principle 4 - Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are

disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

Has the company mapped its internal and external stakeholders?

Yes. The Company has mapped its internal and external stakeholders.

2 Out of the above, has the company identified the disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders
Yes.

3 Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized
stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so
Company generally provides its highest attention to the needs of disadvantaged and marginalized stakeholders.

Principle 5 - Businesses should respect and promote human rights

1 Does the policy of the company on human rights cover only the company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/Others?
The Company'’s policy on human rights extends to subsidiaries and group companies / ventures.

2 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in the past financial year and what percent was satisfactorily resolved by
the management?
No complaints were received in the financial year under report in respect of violation of human rights.

Principle 6 - Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment

1 Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/Contractors/
NGOs/others.
Extends to Company as well as Company’s subsidiaries and group companies.

2 Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address global environmental issues such as climate change, global warming, etc?
Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.
The Company has strategies / initiatives to address global environmental issues. The approach includes setting up use
of renewable power supply like solar energy, sourcing of power from wind mills, replacement of coal with agri waste
briquettes for boilers, enhanced solvent recovery, water conservation thru 3R (reduce, recycle, replenish) water management
principles, etc.

3 Does the company identify and assess potential environmental risks?

Yes
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4 Does the company have any project related to Clean Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or
so. Also, if Yes, whether any environmental compliance report is filed?
The Company has invested / is in the process of investing about X 140 crores in the generation of solar / wind power energy for use
by its manufacturing units, R&D centres and offices.

5 Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on — clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc. Y/N. If yes,
please give hyperlink for web page etc.
Please see answer to item 2 above.

6 Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the financial year being
reported?
Yes. All manufacturing plants comply with the permissible limits for air emissions, effluent quality and discharge, solid and
hazardous waste generation and disposal as per consents / authorizations.

7 Number of show cause/ legal notices received from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to satisfaction) as on end of
Financial Year.
None pending unattended / unresolved as at the financial year end.

Principle 7 - Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner

1 Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those major ones that your business deals with:
The Company is a member of Indian Drugs Manufacturing Association (IDMA), Indian Pharmaceuticals Association (IPA), etc.

2 Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations for the advancement or improvement of public good? Yes/No; if yes
specify the broad areas
The Company has lobbied through the associations in respect of the policies passed / to be passed by the Government and relating to
pharmaceuticals industry sector for advancement of pharmaceutical industry as well as for advancement of economy and public good.

Principle 8 - Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

1 Does the company have specified programmes/initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to Principle 8? If yes details
thereof.
Yes. The Company’s initiatives and programs are in the activities such as promotion of education, vocational training & skill
improvement, healthcare, rural development, etc.

2 Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house team/own foundation/ external NGO/government structures/any
other organization?
The programs and projects are undertaken through in-house teams as well as through other charitable organizations.

3 Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?
Impact assessment is not done through any independent agency.

4 What is your company’s direct contribution to community development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the projects
undertaken?
This information has been provided under CSR Report of the Company. The total amount spent in the financial year under report
is¥12.96 crores.

5 Have you taken steps to ensure that this community development initiative is successfully adopted by the community?
The Company generally monitors its CSR spent towards community development initiatives.

Principle 9 - Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner

1 What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases are pending as on the end of financial year.
There are no consumer cases pending against the Company.

2 Does the company display product information on the product label, over and above what is mandated as per local laws?
No. Being in a highly regulated industry, the Company has to strictly follow mandated laws.

3 Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible advertising and/or
anti-competitive behaviour during the last five years and pending as on end of financial year. If so, provide details thereof
None

4 Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ consumer satisfaction trends?
Yes. The Company carries out pharmacovigilance activities and the reports are filed with the regulators on a regular basis.

For and on behalf of the Board
Mumbai, Premchand Godha
28" May, 2021 Chairman & Managing Director
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FORM No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31°" MARCH, 2021
(Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,
The Members,
Ipca Laboratories Limited

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate
practices by Ipca Laboratories Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
the Company, the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the Management and considering
the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread
of the COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31 March, 2021, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to us and maintained
by the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’)
(@)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;
(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and
amendments from time to time;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; (Not applicable to the
Company during the audit period);

(e)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding
the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit period)

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company
during the audit period) ;

(h)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during
the audit period) and

(i)  otherregulations of the Securities and Exchange Board of India as are applicable to the Company.

(vi) Other laws applicable specifically to the Company namely:
(1) Pharmacy Act, 1948,
(2)  Drugs and Cosmetics Act, 1940,
(3)  Drugs and Magic Remedies (Objectionable Advertisement) Act, 1954,
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(4)  Narcotic Drugs and Psychotropic Substances Act, 1985,
(5)  Drug Pricing Control Order, 2013.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and general meetings.

(ii)  The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited read
with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,
Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors. There were no changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review.

Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least
seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company had following events which had bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

. Pursuant to the approval of the Shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on 24 October, 2019, in-principle
approval received from the Stock Exchanges and pursuant to applications received from the allottees to convert the warrants
allotted to them into equity shares, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 2" September, 2020 have
allotted 5,00,000 Equity shares of I 2/- each fully paid-up for cash at a price of ¥ 955/- per equity share including a premium of
% 953/- per share aggregating to ¥ 47,75,00,000/- to members of the Promoters/ Promoters Group of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved

Partner
Place: Mumbai FCS No: 6488 CP No: 6018
Date :28t% May 2021 UDIN: F0O06488C000384681

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and Forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’

To,

The Members

Ipca Laboratories Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness
of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations
and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Parikh & Associates
Company Secretaries

Jigyasa N. Ved

Partner
Place: Mumbai FCS No: 6488 CP No: 6018
Date :28™" May 2021 UDIN: FO06488C000384681
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

To the Members of Ipca Laboratories Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Ipca Laboratories Limited (“the Company”), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and its profit (including other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified under
section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Standalone Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules framed thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters:

Sr. | Key Audit Matters (KAMs) How the KAMs were addressed in our audit
No

1. |Inventory Valuation Our procedures included, amongst others:

Refer note (C)(g) of the Statement of Significant Accounting

. e We attended stock counts to identify whether any
Policies.

inventory was obsolete;
The Company manufactures and sells pharmaceutical products
which carry shelf life. As a result, significant level of judgement
is involved in estimating inventory valuation. Judgement is

required to assess the appropriate net realisable value for short | o e tested the accuracy of the ageing of inventories based

e  We assessed the basis for the inventory valuation, the
consistency in policy and the rationale in its application;

dated pharmaceutical products. Such judgements include on system generated reports;
management expectations for future sales and inventory
liquidation plans. e  Wetested the arithmetical accuracy of valuation files; and

e  Wereviewed product-wise historical data relating to sales
return etc. and also its impact on valuation.
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Refer note (C)(b) of the Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies.

There is a risk of impairment on the Company’s property,
plant and equipment (PPE) on account of inherent nature of
the PPE and the business environment in which the Company
operates. As on March 31, 2021 the carrying amount of PPE
was ¥ 1,824.30 crores which represent 30.35 % of total assets.

The Management determines at the end of each reporting
period the existence of any objective evidence that the
Company’s PPE may be impaired. If there are indicators
of impairment of class of assets, the deficit between the
recoverable amount of the PPE and its carrying amount would

Sr. | Key Audit Matters (KAMs) How the KAMs were addressed in our audit
No
2. |Impairment of Property, plant & equipment e We assessed the determination of the recoverable

amount of the PPE based on our understanding of the
nature of the Company’s business and the economic
environment surrounding its operations.

e We reviewed the Company’s historical performances
and held discussions with the Management to
understand their assessment of the Company’s future
performance. This included obtaining an understanding
of management’s planned strategies around business
expansion and revenue growth strategies.

e We also reviewed performance of individual units and
carried out analytical review of relevant data.

e  We assessed management’s estimates applied in the

be recognised as impairment loss in profit or loss. value-in-use model and compared them against historical

The process of identifying indicators of impairment and performance and tested the arithmetical accuracy.

determining the recoverable amount of the PPE by the|,
Management requires significant judgement and estimation.
The determination of the recoverable amounts inter alia
requires estimates of forecasted revenues, growth rates, profit
margins, tax rates and discount rates.

We evaluated the sensitivity of the outcomes by
considering the downside scenarios against changes to
the key assumptions.

e  We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Our Report thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Annual Report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor’s
report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the
matter to Those Charged With Governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with Standards on Auditing.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
(including other comprehensive income), changes in equity, cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS, other
accounting principles generally accepted in India and relevant provisions of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company'’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
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level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company
has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e  Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatement in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone Financial Statements may be influenced.
We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and evaluating the results of our
work; and (i) to evaluate the effects of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of

section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the“Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.
2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a.  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;

c.  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid the Standalone Financial Statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder and relevant provisions of the Act;
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e.  Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section
164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our report expresses an
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements;

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

h.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone Financial
Statements. Refer Note 35 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

ii. The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on the long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Mumbai Membership No: 039569
Dated: May 28, 2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAI12963
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Annexure A - referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our report on even
date, to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(i) (@ The Company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation
of its property, plant and equipment;

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, most of the property, plant and equipment of the Company
were physically verified by the Management during the year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
In our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
property, plant and equipment; and

(c) Based on audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Standalone Financial
Statements and according to information and explanations given by the Management, the title deeds of immovable
properties included in property, plant and equipment and right-of-use of assets are held in the name of the Company
except for the following:

Particulars Gross Block \ Net Block Remark
As at March 31, 2021
(X in Crores)
Freehold Land 37.90 37.90 | The acquition of these properties was approved by the National
Leasehold Land 24.50 24.02 | Company Law Tribunal vide its order dated January 22, 2020.
The process of registration and transfer in the name of the
Company is yet to be completed.

(i) (@ Inventories have been physically verified during the year by the Management. In our opinion, the frequency of verification
is reasonable; and

(b)  The discrepancies noticed on physical verification as compared to the book records were not material and have been
properly dealt with in the books of account;

(iii) The Company has granted unsecured loans to its subsidiary and associate covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Act:

(@  Inouropinion, the terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company; and

(b) The loans are not due for repayment presently and therefore, there is no default in its repayment and there is no overdue.
Hence, the paragraph 3(iii)(c) of the Order, is not applicable to the Company;

(iv) Based on audit process applied by us and according to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company
has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, in respect of investments made and loans, guarantees and
securities granted, as applicable;

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not accepted deposits from
the public and therefore, the provisions of section 73 to 76 or other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed thereunder
are not applicable to the Company. We have been informed that no order has been passed by Company Law Board or National
Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any court or any other tribunal in this regard;

(vi) The Central Government has prescribed maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the products
manufactured by the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained by the Company. We have not, however, made a
detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete;

(vii) (@ The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’
state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax,
cess and other applicable statutory dues with the appropriate authorities;

(b)  The details of dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise or value added tax or cess which
have not been deposited with the concerned authorities on account of dispute are given below:

Name of Nature of dues Rupees (in | Period to which Forum where dispute is pending
statute Crore) the amount
relates
Excise Duty | Differential Excise duty on WIP on 0.23 2009-10 CESTAT, Ahmedabad
Debonding
Excise Duty |SAD and CVD paid on import of 0.20 2019-20 Asst. Commissioner CGST & Central Excise,
material Division VII,Silvassa , Daman
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Name of Nature of dues Rupees (in | Period to which Forum where dispute is pending
statute Crore) the amount
relates
Excise Duty |Interestand penalty on anti- 4.15 Feb-2000 High Court, Gujarat
dumping duty & excise duty November2001
(Relating to erstwhile Tonira Pharma
Limited since amalgamated with the
Company)
Service Tax | Availment of credit of Service Tax on 292 April 06 to Commissioner, Central Excise, Ujjain (M.P)
H.O. Invoices Sept’'09
ServiceTax | Availment of credit of Service Tax on 0.00 | Jan 09 to Sept 09 | Dy.Commissioner, Central Excise, Indore
certain expenses* (M.P)
Service Tax | Non payment of service tax under 4.80| July 12to Sept |CESTAT, Mumbai
RCM on remittances in foreign 13
currency for certain expenses.
Sales Tax Jammu & Kashmir Value Added Tax 0.05 2011-12 Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Tax
(Appeal), Srinagar
Sales Tax Gujarat Value Added Tax 0.07 2006-07 Gujarat VAT Tribunal, Ahmedabad
Sales Tax Guijarat Value Added Tax 0.28 2006-07 Additional Commercial Commissioner
Ahmedabad
Sales Tax Regular assessment 0.20 2014-15 Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Tax,
Patna
Sales Tax Regular assessment 0.12 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner Commercial Tax
Ratlam Division-Ratlam (M.P.)
Sales Tax Regular assessment 0.03 2017-18 The Asst.Commissioner of Commercial Tax
Ratlam Division-Ratlam (M.P.)
Sales Tax Regular assessment 0.02 2016-17 Sales Tax Department
Sales Tax Penalty levied at Check Post 0.01 2014-15 Sales Tax Department
GST Penalty for delivery address 0.02 2018-19 Appellate Authority, MPGST, Indore
mismatch on E-way Bill
GST Ineligible Transitional credit 0.46 Dec-2017 The Deputy/ Assistant Commissioner
of Central Tax (Adjudication Authority),
Vijayawada. CGST Division
IncomeTax |Regular assessment 0.51 2016-17 Appeal before CIT(A)
Total 14.07

* Note: Balances with values below the rounding off norm adopted by the Company have been reflected as “0.00"

(viii) Based on our audit procedure and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of dues to the financial institutions, banks and government. The Company has not issued any debentures;

(ix) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the money raised by way of term loans have
been applied for the purposes for which they were obtained. As the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public
offer and further public offer (including debt instruments), the provisions of paragraph 3(ix) of the Order, to that extent, are not
applicable to the Company;

(x)  Tothe best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company
or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year;

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, the
Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of section 197, read with schedule V to the Act;
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(xii) In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company;

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards;

(xiv) Based onouraudit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the standalone financial statements
and according to information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company. During the year, shares have been allotted on conversion of share warrants which were
issued in earlier year in compliance of with the section 42 of the Act,;

(xv) Based on our audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the Standalone Financial
Statements, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors. We have been informed that no such
transactions have been entered into with person connected with directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company; and

(xvi) The Company is not required to get registered under 45-1A of the Reserved Bank of India Act, 1934.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Mumbai Membership No: 039569
Dated: May 28, 2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAI12963

Annexure B - referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Independent
Auditor’s report of even date, to the members of the Company on the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements under section 143(3)(i) of the Act

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements of Ipca Laboratories Limited (“the

Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2021 based on the internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance Note.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal controls
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.



Annual Report 2020-21

Auditor’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company'’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Mumbai Membership No: 039569
Dated: May 28, 2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAI12963
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IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Particulars Note As at As at
Ref. Mar 31, 2021 Mar 31, 2020
(X Crores) (X Crores)
ASSETS
1. Non-current assets

(@) Property, plant & equipment 1 1,824.30 1,772.78
(b) Capital work-in-progress 180.85 69.77
() Goodwill 1A 7.77 23.61
(d) Otherintangible assets 1B 21.08 18.45
(e) Intangible assets under development 1.15 14.42
(f)  Right of use asset 31 15.45 26.13

(9) Financial assets

(i)  Investments in Subsidiary/ Joint Venture/ Associate 2 474.01 410.47
(i)  Otherinvestments 2A - -
(iii) Loans 3 138.95 98.98
(iv) Others 4 24.19 10.64
(h)  Other non-current assets 5 44.59 27.21
Total Non-current assets 2,732.34 2,472.46
2. Current assets
(@ Inventories 6 1,517.09 1,266.96
(b)  Financial assets
(i)  Investments 2B 393.83 238.25
(i)  Trade receivables 7 774.46 839.13
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 108.15 35.14
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 9 198.75 117.26
(v) Loans 3 20.92 3.22
(vi) Others 4 128.06 80.45
(c)  Current tax assets (net) - -
(d) Other current assets 5 136.51 131.70
Total Current assets 3,277.77 2,712.11
Total Assets 6,010.11 5,184.57
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
(@)  Equity share capital 10 25.37 25.27
(b)  Share Warrants 10A - 11.94
(c)  Other equity 11 4,727.35 3,640.33
Total Equity 4,752.72 3,677.54
Liabilities
1.  Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 12 9.13 78.38
(i)  Lease Liability 31 8.25 13.02
(iii)  Other financial liabilities 13 - -
(b)  Provisions 14 37.29 30.98
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net) 15 135.00 140.79
(d)  Other non-current liabilities 16 2.15 2.26
Total Non-current liabilities 191.82 265.43
2. Current liabilities
(@)  Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 17 147.45 309.27
(i)  Lease Liability 31 4.80 5.87
(iii) Trade payables: 18
Total dues of Micro & small enterprises 63.65 8.28
Total dues of Others 546.11 529.57
(iv) Other financial liabilities 13 134.61 137.74
(b)  Current tax liabilities (net) 19 10.87 6.75
(c)  Provisions 14 102.28 92.85
(d)  Other current liabilities 16 55.80 151.27
Total Current liabilities 1,065.57 1,241.60
Total Equity and Liabilities 6,010.11 5,184.57
Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes form part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G. M. Kapadia & Co. Premchand Godha
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Firm’s Registration No. 104767W Ajit Kumar Jain
Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)
Pranay Godha
Executive Director (DIN 00016525)
Prashant Godha
Atul Shah Executive Director (DIN 00012759)
Partner Harish P. Kamath
Membership No. 39569 Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)
Mumbai Mumbai

May 28, 2021 May 28, 2021
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

I. Revenue from operations
Il.  Otherincome
Ill. Totalincome (I +11)

IV. Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-
trade
Employee benefit expenses
Finance cost
Depreciation & amortisation
Other expenses
Total expenses (1V)
V. Profit before exceptional items and tax (llI-1V)
VI. Exceptional items
VIl. Profit before tax (V-VI)
VIIl. Tax expense
1. Current tax
2. Short/ (excess) provision of taxes for earlier years
3. Deferred tax liability / (asset) incl. MAT credit
IX. Profit for the period ( VII-VIII)
X. Other comprehensive income
A (i) Itemsthat will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Actuarial gain and (loss)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange difference in translating the financial statement of
foreign operation
Gain/ (loss) on cash flow hedge
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit
or loss
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
XI. Total comprehensive income for the year (IX+X)
XIl. Earnings per equity share (Face value of X 2/- each) :
Basic (in%)
Diluted (in¥)

Note 2020-21 2019-20
Ref. (X Crores) (X Crores)

20 5,139.16 4,367.43
21 62.24 64.69
5,201.40 4,432.12
22 1,555.53 1,431.10
23 197.68 204.65
24 (170.73) (155.05)
25 948.84 870.79
26 8.14 15.79
27 187.72 178.69
28 1,094.26 1,101.18
3,821.44 3,647.15
1,379.96 784.97
1,379.96 784.97

29

244,98 137.98

(5.79) 239.19 (5.47) 132.51
1,140.77 652.46
(0.19) (7.21)
0.03 1.25
(0.36) (0.60)
0.65 (1.47)
(0.05) 0.36
0.08 (7.67)
1,140.85 644.79

30
90.08 51.64
90.08 51.60

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes form part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. 39569
Mumbai

May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Premchand Godha

Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Ajit Kumar Jain

Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)
Pranay Godha

Executive Director (DIN 00016525)

Prashant Godha

Executive Director (DIN 00012759)

Harish P. Kamath

Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)

Mumbai

May 28, 2021
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IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

2020-21 2019-20
(% Crores) (X Crores)
A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1) Net profit before taxation and extraordinary item 1,379.96 784.97
Adjustments for :
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 187.72 178.69
(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment - (7.86)
Net gain on financial asset through FVTPL 0.53 (0.68)
Property, plant & equipment scrapped/ transferred 2.86 1.42
Sundry balances written off/(back) (1.48) (2.00)
Provision for doubtful debts / advances 0.25 4.59
Provision for diminution in value of Investments 12.68 1.15
Bad debts written off 0.62 (0.13)
Impairment of intangible assets 15.84 -
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (17.13) 21.76
Interest income (37.53) (31.96)
Interest expense 8.14 172.50 15.79 180.77
2) Operating profit before working capital changes 1,552.46 965.74
Decrease / (Increase) in inventories (250.13) (211.41)
Decrease / (increase) in Trade Receivables 78.63 (211.20)
Decrease / (increase) in Other Financial assets (19.10) 417
Decrease / (increase) in Other assets (3.19) 4.74
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 71.54 71.31
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial liabilities (12.25) (19.64)
Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities (95.58) 81.94
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 15.55 (214.53) 22.19  (257.90)
3) Cash generated from operation 1,337.93 707.84
Income tax paid (net) (241.87) (146.41)
Net cash from operating activities 1,096.06 561.43
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment including capital (349.65) (273.07)
Work in progress and intangible assets
Investment in subsidiaries (28.50) (26.74)
Consideration towards Business combination - (108.71)
Redemption of investment in subsidiaries - 5.12
Investment in Associates (47.72) (49.43)
Loan (given)/recovered - Associate (34.00) 14.85
Loan (given)/recovered - Joint Venture 0.60 1.20
Loan given to Subsidiary (18.00) (1.00)
Proceeds from Sale of Property,Plant and Equipment 2.57 12.70
Movement in other bank balances (107.22) (116.41)
Interest received 22.36 42.36
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (559.56) (499.13)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Issue of Share Capital 35.81 -
Issue of Share warrant - 11.94
Increase / (decrease) in short term borrowings (160.44) 106.69
Repayment of long-term borrowings (68.25) (115.22)
Payment of principal portion of Lease liability (5.90) (4.50)
Payment of interest portion of Lease liability (1.49) (1.58)
Interest paid (5.58) (14.32)
Dividend & dividend tax paid (101.53) (121.68)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (307.38) (138.67)
Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 229.12 (76.37)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 272.07 348.44
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 501.19 272.07
Components of cash & cash equivalents :
Cash and cheques on hand 0.36 0.43
Balance with banks 107.79 34.71
Mutual Funds 393.83 238.25
Less : Fair value (gain) / loss on Mutual funds (0.79) 393.04 (1.32) 236.93
501.19 272.07
As per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
For G. M. Kapadia & Co. Premchand Godha
Chartered Accountants Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Firm’s Registration No. 104767W Ajit Kumar Jain
Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)
Pranay Godha
Executive Director (DIN 00016525)
Prashant Godha
Atul Shah Executive Director (DIN 00012759)
Partner Harish P. Kamath
Membership No. 39569 Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)
Mumbai Mumbai

May 28, 2021 May 28, 2021
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IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED
Standalone Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes

(A) Corporate Information

Ipca Laboratories Limited (CIN L24239MH1949PLC007837) incorporated in the year 1949, is a integrated pharmaceutical company
manufacturing and marketing over 350 formulations and 80 API's covering various therapeutic segments. The products of the
Company are sold in over 100 countries across the globe. The Company has 17 manufacturing units in India manufacturing API's
and formulations for the world market.

(B)

Authorization of Standalone Financial Statements

The Standalone Financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on May 28, 2021.

Basis of Preparation

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following :
a) certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair value, and
b) defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted
or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Use of Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management
to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could
change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the
financial statement in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

The financial statements require management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment
to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods .

i. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

ii. Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These interalia include the determination
of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and
its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

iii. Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment
The company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

iv. Impairment of Property, plant and equipment

For property, plantand equipment and intangibles an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or previously recognised impairment losses
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no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

v. Impairment of investment

For determining whether the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are impaired requires an
estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have estimated the future
cash flow, capacity utilization, operating margins and other factors of the underlying businesses / operations of the
investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above mentioned factors could
impact the carrying value of investments.

vi. Inventories

The Company estimates the net realisable value (NRV) of its inventories by taking into account estimated selling price,
estimated cost of completion, estimated costs necessary to make the sale, obsolescence considering the past trend.
Inventories are written down to NRV where such NRV is lower than their cost.

vii. Recognition and measurement of other Provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the closing date. The actual outflow of resources at a
future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

viii. Impairment of Goodwill

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the cash generating units (CGUs) based on the future cash flows after
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated
future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The
discount rates used for the CGUs represent the weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins.

ix. Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by
an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing whether
the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a
lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company to exercise
the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The discount rate is generally
based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

(C) Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Current and non-current classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.
An asset is current when:

- It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, or

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or

- It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.
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A liability is current when :

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, or
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading, or
It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liability are classified as non-current assets and liability.

Property, Plant and Equipment

i)

Vi)

vii)

viii)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Cost of acquisition comprises its purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable
taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any
trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Long-term lease arrangements of land are treated as Property, plant and equipment, in case such arrangements result
in transfer of control and the present value of the lease payments is likely to represent substantially all of the fair value
of the land.

Stores and spares which meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment and satisfy the recognition criteria of
Ind AS 16 are capitalised as Property, plant and equipment.

Capital Work In Progress represents expenditure incurred on capital assets that are under construction or are pending
capitalisation and includes project expenses pending allocation. Project expenses pending allocation are apportioned to
the Property, Plant and Equipment of the project proportionately on capitalisation.

Cost of borrowing for assets taking substantial time to be ready for use is capitalised for the period up to the time the asset
is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The residual useful life of Property, plant & equipment is reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if required in the
depreciation rates.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on all assets of the Company is charged on straight line method over the useful life of assets mentioned in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or the useful life previously assessed by the management based on technical review
whichever is lower for the proportionate period of use during the year. Intangible assets are amortised over the economic
useful life estimated by the management.

The management’s estimated useful life/useful life as per schedule [l whichever is lower for the various tangible assets are as follows.

Assets Estimated useful life (Years)
Leasehold land Period of Lease
Buildings 2810 58

Roads 3to10

Plant and equipment and R&D equipments 9to 22

Office and other equipments 5

Computers 3to6

Furniture and fixtures 10

Vehicles 6to8

Leasehold improvements Period of Lease
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents excess of consideration paid for acquisition of business over the fair value of net assets. Goodwill is not
amortised but is tested for impairment at each reporting date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated
useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level
of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful
lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Development costs of products are
also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year it is incurred, unless product’s technological feasibility as well as other
related conditions have been established, in which case such expenditures are capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises of
expenditure that can be directly attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis for creating, producing and making
the asset ready for its intended use. Property, plant and equipment utilised for research and development are capitalised and
depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure on in-licensed development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new
or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised, if the cost can be reliably measured, the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Company has sufficient resources to complete the development and to use and sell the asset.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial
feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable. The costs which can be capitalized include the

cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use.

The management has estimated the economic useful life for the various intangible assets as follows:

Assets Estimated useful life (Years)
Brands and trademarks 4
Technical know how 4
Software for internal use 4

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Borrowings

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of assets

Carrying amount of Tangible assets, Intangible assets, Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associates (which are
carried at cost) are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceed:s its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or Company’s assets (cash-generating
units). Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Inventories
Items of inventories are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value as given below:

Raw Materials and Packing Materials Lower of cost and net realisable value. However materials and other items held
for use in the production are not written down below cost if the finished products
in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost
is determined on First In First Out basis.

Work-in-process and Finished Goods | At lower of cost (material cost net of refundable taxes, labour cost and all
manufacturing overheads) and net realisable value.

Traded Goods Traded Goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Stores and Spares Stores and spare parts are valued at lower of cost computed on First-in-First-out
method and net realisable value.

The factors that the Company considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable
inventory in determining net realisable value include ageing of inventory, estimated shelf life, price changes, introduction
of competitive new products and such other related factors.

Cost in case of Raw materials and Packing materials, Stores and Spares and Traded Goods include purchase cost net of
refundable taxes and other overheads incurred in bringing such items of inventory to its present location and condition.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits in banks and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in current liabilities in
the balance sheet.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Provision

A Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and
if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the
period in which the change occurs.

Retirement and other employee benefits
Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity

Gratuity, a post employment defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end
of each year/period on projected unit credit method.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit
to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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Compensated absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary at each balance sheet date using Projected Unit Credit method on the additional amount expected to be paid/
availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating
compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia, bonus and performance incentive are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Foreign currencies

Transactions and balances:

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees.

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate on the date of transaction where the
settlement of such transactions are taking place at a later date. The exchange gain/loss on settlement / negotiation
during the year is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. In case of advance payment for purchase of assets/
goods/services and advance receipt against sales of products/services, all such purchase/sales transaction are
recorded at the rate at which such advances are paid/received.

Foreign currency monetary transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are converted at year-end rates.
The resultant gain or loss is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non monetary items that are measured at historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated using
exchange rate at the date of transaction.

The overseas trading offices are non-integral operations and the overseas non trading offices are integral operations
and are accounted accordingly.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Financial instruments

(@

Financial assets & financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset is treated as cost of acquisition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
° Debt instruments at amortised cost

° Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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° Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

° Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 7 details how the entity determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For
trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of financial instruments
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

° The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

° Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where the entity
has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is
not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the Company has not retained control of the financial asset.
Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of
continuing involvement in the financial asset.

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(ii) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps to hedge
its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks, respectively.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Cash flow hedge

The company designates certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the
risk of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value
of the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve.
Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the net profit in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge
accounting is discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the
cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge
was effective remains in cash flow hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in the cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the net profit in the Statement of Profit and
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Loss upon the occurrence of the related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to
occur, then the amount accumulated in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to net profit in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

Investments in Subsidiaries / Associates / Joint venture
Investments in Subsidiaries / Associates / Joint ventures are carried at cost in the separate financial statements.

o) Revenue recognition

i)

iiii)

iv)

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of products and services. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised
net of returns, product expiry claims and discounts.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligations upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for
those products or services.

To recognize revenues, the Company applies the following five step approach:

1. Identify the contract with a customer;

2. ldentify the performance obligations in the contract;

3.  Determine the transaction price;

4.  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

5. Recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Performance obligations satisfied over time if
any one of the following criteria is met. In such cases, revenue is recognized over time.

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance; or

2 The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

3. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and the Company
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Where Revenue is recognized over time, the amount of revenue is determined on the basis of contract costs incurred
in relation to estimated contract expenses.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss.

In case of export benefits which are in the nature of neutralisation of duties and taxes are grouped under material
costs. Other export incentives are grouped under other operating revenue.

Revenue in respect of insurance/other claims, commission, etc. are recognised only when it is reasonably certain that
the ultimate collection will be made.

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).

Dividend from subsidiaries / associates / joint ventures is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in separate
financial statements when the parent company’s right to receive the dividend is established.
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Taxes
Tax expenses comprise Current Tax and Deferred Tax.

i)  Currenttax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

ii) Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the Standalone Financial Statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

iii) MAT credit
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company
recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. The MAT credit to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the Company will utilize the credit is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss and corresponding debit is done to the deferred tax asset as unused tax credit.

Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the use
of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. For these short-term leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets as below.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Lease Liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental
borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related
ROU asset.

Lease liabilities and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or
loss before OCl for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s annual accounts in the
year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holders.

Share-based payment transactions

Employees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs”): The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was,
in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognized in connection with share based payment transaction is
presented as a separate component in equity under“Employee Stock Options Outstanding reserve”. The amount recognized
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options that vest.

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

The above criteria is also used for recognition of incentives under various scheme notified by the Government. When the
grant relates to an asset, the Company deducts such grant amount from the carrying amount of the asset.

Recent Pronouncements

On March 24,2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a notification amended Schedule Ill to the Companies
Act, 2013.The amendments are applicable from April 1,2021.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1A: Goodwill

The Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of assets and liabilities of industrial undertaking
situated at Mahad and Aurangabad. This Goodwill is being tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.

During the year, provision for impairment of I 15.84 crores has been made.

1B: Other Intangible Assets

(X Crores)
Particulars Software Brand / Know-How Software - Total
Trade Mark R&D

Gross Block -
As on April 1,2019 30.72 5.90 9.72 349 49.83
Additions 7.39 - 7.50 0.01 14.90
Disposals/Adjustments 0.04 - - (0.04) -
As on March 31, 2020 38.15 5.90 17.22 3.46 64.73
Additions 10.15 - - 0.26 10.41
Disposals/Adjustments - (0.05) (4.26) - (4.31)
As on March 31,2021 48.30 5.85 12.96 3.72 70.83
Accumulated Depreciation / Amortisation

As on April 1,2019 24.26 5.44 7.61 2.38 39.69
For the year 2019-20 3.85 - 2.25 0.49 6.59
Disposals/Adjustments 0.03 - - (0.03) -
As on March 31, 2020 28.14 5.44 9.86 2.84 46.28
For the year 2020-21 5.13 = 1.98 0.38 7.49
Disposals/Adjustments - - (4.02) - (4.02)
As on March 31, 2021 33.27 5.44 7.82 3.22 49.75
Net Block as on March 31, 2020 10.01 0.46 7.36 0.62 18.45
Net Block as on March 31, 2021 15.03 0.41 5.14 0.50 21.08
Range of remaining period of amortisation as at March 31, 2021 of Intagible assets is as below :

(X Crores)
Assets Range of remaining period of amortisation
< 5year 6-10 year >10 year Net Block

Software 15.03 - - 15.03
Brand / Trade Mark 0.41 - - 0.41
Know-How 5.14 = = 5.14
Software - R&D 0.50 - = 0.50
Total 21.08 - - 21.08
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Range of remaining period of amortisation as at March 31, 2020 of Intagible assets is as below :

(% Crores)
Assets Range of remaining period of amortisation
<5year 6-10 year >10 year Net Block
Software 10.01 - - 10.01
Brand / Trade Mark 0.46 - - 0.46
Know-How 7.36 - - 7.36
Software - R&D 0.62 - - 0.62
Total 18.45 - - 18.45
2. Financial Assets - Investments
Investments in subsidiary / joint venture / associate (at cost)
(X Crores)
Sr. | Particulars As at As at
no. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1 | Equity instrument in subsidiaries 130.35 130.35
2 | Equity instrument in joint venture 6.84 6.84
3 | Equity instrument in associates 111.69 60.49
4 | Share warrants in associates 417 7.65
5 | Preference shares in subsidiaries & associates 237.47 208.97
6 | Provision for diminution in the value of equity investments (16.51) (3.83)
Total 474.01 410.47
2A | Other Non-current investments
Investment in equity - -
Total - -
2B | Current investments
Investment in mutual fund 393.83 238.25
Total 393.83 238.25
2 Investment in Subsidiary / Joint Venture / Associate
Sr. |Name of the body corporate Relationship Face value Extent of holding (%) (X Crores)
no. No. of shares
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Non-current investment
Investments at cost
(1) |Unquoted equity shares
i) |Investment in equity
instruments (at cost)
1 |lpca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA Subsidiary No Par Value 100.00% 100.00% 9.31 9.31
1,000 1,000
2 |lpca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd.,U.K. Subsidiary STG 1 100.00% 100.00% 8.08 8.08
9,14,186 9,14,186
3 |lpca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. Nigeria Subsidiary Niara 1 100.00% 100.00% 2.82 2.82
5,15,89,190 5,15,89,190
4 |lpca Pharma (Australia) Pty Ltd. Subsidiary Aus$1 100.00% 100.00% 0.17 0.17
Australia 26,944 26,944
5 |lpca Pharmaceuticals Ltd. SA de Subsidiary No Par Value 100.00% 100.00% 1.15 1.15
CV. Mexico
6 |Tonira Exports Limited Subsidiary 10 100.00% 100.00% 0.10 0.10
1,00,000 1,00,000
7 |Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary g10 100.00% 100.00% 108.72 108.72
5,00,000 5,00,000

85



86

©lipca

A dose of life

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Sr. |Name of the body corporate Relationship Face value Extent of holding (%) R Crores)
no. No. of shares
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
8 |Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Joint Venture T 100 48.99% 48.99% 6.84 6.84
5,33,000 5,33,000
9 |CCPL Software Pvt.Ltd. # Associate 100 28.95% 28.95% - -
55,000 55,000
10 |Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. Associate 10 39.26% 19.26% 49.61 12.34
15,90,000 7,80,000
Total (i) 186.80 149.53
ii) Investment in preference shares (at cost)
1 |lpca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd.,U.K.## Subsidiary STG 1 100.00% 100.00% 10.26 10.26
10,00,000 10,00,000
2 |lpca Pharmaceuticals,Inc., USA ## Subsidiary $1000 100.00% 100.00% 197.21 168.71
28,450 24,650

3 |Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 100 100.00% 100.00% 30.00 30.00
(9% Non convertible, Redeemable & 30,00,000 30,00,000
Non Cumulative Preference share)

Total (ii) 237.47 208.97
iii) Investment in convertible Share Warrants (partly paid) (at cost)

1 |Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 10 19,40,000 35,60,000 417 7.65
Total (iii) 4.17 7.65
Total unquoted investments 428.44 366.15
(i+ii+iii)

(2) |Quoted equity shares

Investment in equity Instruments (at cost)

1 |Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 10 44.67% 39.69% 62.08 48.15

87,65,195 71,45,195

Total quoted investments 62.08 48.15
Total investments (1+2) 490.52 414.30
Less : Provision for diminution in value in equity shares(refer table (iii) below) (16.51) (3.83)
Total non-current investments at cost (net of provision) 474.01 410.47

iii)

# Cost fully written off in books.

## Redeemable Preference Shares redeemable at the option of issuer.

Provision for diminution in the value of Investments till date in shares in respect of the above companies is as follows:-

(X Crores)

Sr. | Name of the Body Corporate Relationship As at As at
No. March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
1 | lpca Pharmaceuticals Inc., USA - equity shares Subsidiary 2.68 2.68
2 | Ipca Pharmaceuticals Ltd. SA de CV. Mexico Subsidiary 1.15 1.15
3 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 12.68 -
Total 16.51 3.83

iv) Aggregate value of investments

R Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 62.08 48.15
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 77.88 58.52
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 428.44 366.15
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v) Details of investments in subsidiary / joint venture / associate at cost

a)

b)

<)

d)

e)

f)

g)

h)

Ipca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA

This wholly owned subsidiary company was incorporated under the laws of the State of New Jersey in the United States on
July 10, 2003. This subsidiary company is coordinating the development and registration of formulations developed by the
Company in United States of America as well as distribution of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (APIs) manufactured by
the Company in the US market. During the year 2017-18, this subsidiary acquired 90% Share capital of Pisgah Laboratories
Inc. USA. The Company has acquired, on October 2, 2018, 80% units of Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC, a New Jersey limited
liability company (Bayshore).

Ipca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd.,U.K.

During the financial year 2003-04, the Company incorporated this wholly owned subsidiary to apply and obtain product
registrations in the United Kingdom. During the year 2011-12, this subsidiary acquired 100% share capital of Onyx Research
Chemicals Ltd., holding company of Onyx Scientific Ltd. During the year 2015-16, Onyx Research Chemicals Ltd. , UK
merged with its holding company Ipca Laboratories (UK) Ltd. and consequent to this, Onyx Scientific Ltd. has became
wholly owned subsidiary of this Company. During the year 2018-19, Onyx Scientific Ltd. has acquired 10% share capital of
Pisgah Laboratories Inc. USA.

Ipca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. Nigeria

During the year 2006-07, the Company acquired the entire share capital of Ipca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. Thus, Ipca Pharma
Nigeria Ltd. became wholly owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from January 31, 2007. The Company was
incorporated as a private company in Nigeria. It commenced commercial operations in December 2001. It is engaged in
importation and marketing of formulations and APIs in the Nigerian market.

Ipca Pharma (Australia) Pty Ltd. Australia

This subsidiary company was acquired by the Company in the year 2007-08 and is engaged in the activities of holding
formulations dossier registrations with TGA, Australia and sale of pharmaceuticals manufactured by the Company in
Australia. This subsidiary company has a wholly owned subsidiary in New Zealand - Ipca Pharma (NZ) Pty Ltd.

Ipca Pharma (NZ) Pty Ltd., New Zealand

During the year 2007-08, the Company was incorporated to hold formulation dossier registrations in New Zealand and
to distribute formulations manufactured by the Company in the New Zealand market. This company is wholly owned
subsidiary of Ipca Pharma (Australia) Pty Ltd.

Ipca Pharmaceuticals Ltd. SA de CV. Mexico

This subsidiary Company was setup during the year 2008-09 as wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to hold
formulations dossier registrations and promotion of pharmaceuticals manufactured by the Company in the Mexican
market. This Company is currently in the process of being closed down subject to required approval.

Tonira Exports Limited, India

Tonira Exports Ltd. was incorporated as a wholly owned subsidiary of Tonira Pharma Ltd. The Company acquired
management control of Tonira Pharma Ltd. in May 2008. Upon merger of Tonira Pharma Ltd. with the Company in the year
2011-12, Tonira Exports Ltd. has become wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. This Company is presently not into any
business.

Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd., India

During the year 2013-14 the Company had acquired 49.02% of shares in Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Avik is manufacturing
APIs, primarily Cortico Steroids and Hormones since 1980. Avik is pioneer in the manufacturing of steroids in India. Avik’s
two manufacturing facilities are located at Vapi, Gujarat. During the year 2018-19, the Company has been allotted 33,000
shares under right issue. Now Company’s holding in Avik Pharma is 48.99%.

Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd., India

Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated in 2010 and is headquartered in Mumbai, India. The Company has acquired
shareholding to the extent of 19.26% in Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. during the year 2010-11. Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. is
engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of nutraceuticals with its manufacturing unit situated in Sikkim. During the
year company has acquired additional shareholding to the extent of 20%. Now Company'’s holding in Trophic is 39.26%
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Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

)

k)

Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd., India

Krebs Biochemicals and Industries Ltd. was established in 1991. During the financial year 2014-15, Krebs Biochemicals and
Industries Ltd. became an associate company. Krebs undertakes both contract manufacturing for large pharmaceutical
and multinational companies and develops products for sale in global markets. Krebs is listed on NSE and BSE and is
headquartered in Vishakhapatnam, India with manufacturing plants in Nellore and Vizag. Expertise and infrastructure in
the areas of chemical synthesis, fermentation and enzymatic technologies along with a focus on cost and quality makes
Krebs a logical partner of the Company for the development and supply of products made using one or more of these
technologies. During the year 2019-20 company has been allotted 13,70,000 equity shares resulting into increase in
holding to the extent of 39.69%.During the year 2019-20 Company has also been alloted 30,00,000, 9% preference shares
(non convertible, redeemable & non cumulative) of ¥ 100/- each and 35,60,000 of ¥ 10/- each convertible share
warrants(partly paid). During the year company has been alloted 8,10,000 shares upon conversion of share warrants. Now
Company'’s holding in krebs is 44.67%

Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd., India

Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. was established in 1999. During the year 2019-20, The Company has acquired 100%
shareholding in Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. is engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of
drug intermediates and Active Pharmaceutical Ingredients (API's) with its manufacturing unit situated in Tarapur, Boisar,
Dist. Palghar (Maharashtra).

2A Other Long-term Investments

no.

Sr. | Name of the body corporate Face Value No. Of Shares [ Crores)

As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Investments at fair value through P&L (fully paid)

Unquoted equity shares

1 | Gujarat Industrial Co-Op Bank Ltd. # 50 140 140 - -
2 | Narmada Clean Tech (NCT) # 10 35,000 35,000 = -
3 | BEIL Infrastructure Ltd. ## 10 1,134 - = -
Total = -
# Cost fully written off in books.

## Value of

shares ¥ 11,340/-

Aggregate value of investments

(% Crores)

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments - -

2B Current Investments

Sr. | Name of the mutual fund scheme No. Of Units R Crores)
no. As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Quoted investment

Investments at fair value through P&L (fully paid)

A. Investments in mutual fund
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund- Growth 309,859 - 9.39 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund- Reg - Growth 3,919,138 2,551,815 129.06 81.08
Kotak Liquid Scheme - Growth 394,714 392,860 163.44 157.17
Nippon India Liquid Fund-Growth 100,268 - 50.11 -
INVESCO India Liquid Fund- Growth 148,865 - 41.83 -
Total current investments 393.83 238.25
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Aggregate value of investments

(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 393.83 238.25
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 393.83 238.25

Details of loans given, investments made, guarantee given and security provided covered under section 186(4) of the Companies

Act, 2013 are given hereunder:

(X Crores)
Sr. | Name of the party Nature Relation Purpose 2020-21 2019-20
no.
1 |lpca Pharmaceuticals, Inc (USA) Investment Subsidiary Preference Share 28.50 26.74
contribution
2 |Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. Investment Subsidiary Equity Share - 108.72
contribution
3 | Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. Loan Given Subsidiary | Loan given for Working 18.00 1.00
capital
4 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Loan Given Associate Loan (ICD) given to 34.00 11.50
associate for business
purpose
5 |Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Investment Associate Equity Share 13.93 11.78
contribution
6 |Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Investment Associate Preference Share - 30.00
contribution
7 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Investment Associate Investment in Share - 7.65
Warrant
8 | Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. Investment Associate Equity Share 37.27 -
contribution
9 | Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Loan Given | Joint Venture Loan given to Joint = 0.90
Venture for Plant
expansion
Total 131.70 198.29

The disclosure under section 186(4) of the Act is made at transaction value before Ind AS effects.
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3.

4.

Financial Assets - Loans (Unsecured)

(% Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Non Current Current Non Current Current
(a) | Deposits:
Considered good:
- With related party 45.00 - 45.00 -
- With others 12.64 0.96 5.89 0.82
Which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - 0.02 -
57.64 0.96 50.91 0.82
Less : Allowance for doubtful deposits - - (0.02) -
57.64 0.96 50.89 0.82
(b) |Loans to related parties - considered good 80.65 19.00 47.25 1.00
(c) | Others:
Loans given to employees- considered good 0.66 0.96 0.84 1.40
Total 138.95 20.92 98.98 3.22

Note: No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other person; or from
firms where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

Disclosures:

a)  Details of loans and advances in the nature of loan to subsidiaries, associates etc. as required under Schedule V(A)(2) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 :

(X Crores)
Sr. | Name of the company and relationship Balance as at Maximum Balance as at Maximum
No. March 31,2021 | outstanding | March 31,2020 | outstanding
during the during the
year 2020-21 year 2019-20
i) | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - associate 66.47 66.47 3247 56.47
ii) | Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - joint venture 14.18 14.78 14.78 16.61
iii) | Ramdev Chemical Pvt.Ltd. 19.00 19.00 1.00 1.00
Total 99.65 100.25 48.25 74.08
b) Investment by the loanee in the shares of the Company:
None of the loanees have, per se, made investments in the shares of the Company.
Financial Assets - Others
(X Crores)
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Non current Current Non Current Current
Advances to employees
- Considered good - 0.54 - 1.13
- Credit impaired - 0.33 - 0.41
- 0.87 - 1.54
Less : Allowance on advances - (0.33) - (0.41)
- 0.54 - 1.13
Deposits with others 0.78 - 0.71 -
Other income receivables 5.00 11.91 5.00 6.50
Claim receivables - 7.84 - 0.57
Duties and taxes refundable 1.11 77.83 2.35 67.89
Unbilled revenue - 3.94 - 4.06
Forward contract gain receivable - 15.00 - -
Hedging gain receivable - - - 0.30
Term deposits with:
- Banks kept as margin money # 17.30 - 2.58 -
- a NBFC ** - 11.00 - -
Total 24.19 128.06 10.64 80.45

# Term deposits are lying with government authorities and / or as margin for guarantees issued by banks to various authorities.

** Company has provided security by way of lien over the term deposit of ¥ 11.00 crores placed by the company with Bajaj finance limited
towards short term credit facility availed by Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd., an Associate company.
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Other Non-Financial Assets

X Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Non current Current Non Current Current
(i) |Capital advances (Unsecured, considered good) 41.27 - 22.24 -
(i) | Prepaid expenses 1.95 16.65 1.38 12.78
(iii) | Deposits with Govt. departments

- Considered good - 3.11 - 3.58
(iv) | Unutilised Indirect tax credit - 76.17 - 67.33
v) | Advance to suppliers - 15.69 - 15.25
(vi) | Export benefits receivables - 19.77 - 28.86
(vii) | Advances to employees - 3.11 - 2.92
(viii) | Others 0.03 2.01 222 0.98
(ix) | Prepaid taxes (net of provisions) 1.34 - 1.37 -
Total 44.59 136.51 27.21 131.70

Note: No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other person; or from
firms where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

Inventories
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
i) | Raw materials
In hand 467.89 427.61
In transit 99.93 567.82 65.92 493.53
i) |Packing materials
In hand 37.52 35.13
In transit 0.13 37.65 0.05 35.18
iii) | Work-in-progress 336.53 286.76
iv) | Finished goods
In hand
Own 459.66 363.19
Traded 57.55 517.21 47.12 410.31
In transit
Own 27.26 12.06
Traded 1.85 29.11 2.99 15.05
v) |Stores, spares and others 28.77 26.13
Total 1,517.09 1,266.96

All the above inventory other than stores & spares are hypothecated to the lenders as security towards short-term borrowings.

The disclosure of inventories recognised as an expense in accordance with paragraph 36 of Ind AS 2 is as follows:

(X Crores)
Particulars Asat As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
(i) | Amount of inventories recognised as an expense during the period 1,630.06 1,518.01
(i) | Amount of write - down of inventories recognised as an expense during the period 6.17 539
Total 1,636.23 1,523.40
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Financial Assets - Trade Receivables (Unsecured)

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Considered good 774.46 839.13
Which have significant increase in credit risk 0.76 0.93
Credit impaired 0.16 0.01
775.38 840.07
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivable (0.92) 774.46 (0.94) 839.13
Total 774.46 839.13

Note: No amount is due from any of the Directors or Officers of the Company, severally or jointly with any other person; or from
firms where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward- looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking estimates
are analyzed. The Company estimates the following matrix at the reporting date which is calculated on overdue amounts.

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Default rate - local 0.53% 0.46%
Default rate - export 0.62% 0.60%
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the period (0.93) (0.75)
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade 0.17 (0.18)
receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit
Provision at the end of the period (0.76) (0.93)
Financial Assets - Cash & Cash Equivalents
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:
In Current Accounts 47.79 34.71
Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 60.00 -
Cash on hand 0.36 0.43
Total 108.15 35.14

Note: Balance with bank in current account as on March 31, 2021 includes balance with one bank account of erstwhile Noble
Explochem Limited aggregating to ¥ 94,597/- where change of account name in Company’s name is in process. Further,
346,408/ is lying in bank A/C-“CIRP Account Noble Explochem Limited” operated by Resolution Professional now handed

over to the Company.

Financial Assets - Bank balances other than (8) above

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Unclaimed dividend accounts 1.26 1.31
Balances with banks:
Fixed Deposit with Bank 197.49 115.95
Total 198.75 117.26
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10 Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number of (X Crores) Number of (% Crores)
Shares Shares
Authorised capital
Equity shares of ¥ 2 each 28,50,00,000 57.00| 28,50,00,000 57.00
Issued & subscribed
Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 12,81,33,204 25.63| 12,76,33,204 25.53
Paid up equity shares of ¥ 2 each 12,68,52,109 25.37| 12,63,52,109 25.27
Total 25.37 25.27

Of the above 3,22,704 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each of the Company have been allotted during 2012-13 without payment being

received in cash under the scheme of amalgamation of erstwhile Tonira Pharma Limited with the Company.

Disclosures:

i) Reconciliation of Shares

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number of (X Crores) Number of (X Crores)

Shares Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,63,52,109 2527 12,63,52,109 25.27
Equity Shares issued during the year pursuant to 5,00,000 0.10 - -
conversion of share warrants
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 12,68,52,109 25.37| 12,63,52,109 25.27

ii)  Details of Shareholding in excess of 5%

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Name of Shareholder Number of % Number of %
Shares held Shares held

Kaygee Investments Private Limited 2,72,39,195 21.47% 2,70,18,195 21.38%
Kaygee Laboratories Private Limited 83,85,000 6.61% 83,21,000 6.59%
Chandurkar Investments Private Limited 69,78,005 5.50% 69,78,005 5.52%
DSP Mid Cap Fund* 56,37,555 4.44% 71,10,586 5.63%

* Disclosed as holding in previous year was greater than 5%

iii) Rights and obligations of shareholders

The Company has only one class of share referred as equity shares having a par value of X 2/- per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares

will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after payment of external liabilities. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend is recommended by management which
is subject to shareholders’approval at the Annual General Meeting.

10A Share Warrants

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Share Warrants outstanding at the beginning of the year 11.94 -
Amount received during the year - 11.94
Issue of equity shares on conversion of share warrants 11.94 -
Share Warrants outstanding at the end of the year - 11.94

Share Warrant

The Company obtained in-principle approval under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015

from National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) and BSE Limited to issue and allot 5,00,000 (Five Lacs Only) convertible warrants at

a price of ¥ 955/- per warrant. Pursuant to the shareholder approval dated October 24, 2019, the Company issued and allotted
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11

5,00,000 (Five Lacs Only) convertible warrants at a price of ¥ 955/- per warrant with a right to the warrant holders to apply for and
be allotted 1 (One) Equity Share of the face value of ¥ 2/- each of the Company (“Equity Shares”) at a premium of ¥ 953/- per share
for each Warrant within a period of 18 (Eighteen) months from the date of allotment of the Warrants.

Pursuant to applications received from the allottees to convert the warrants allotted to them into equity shares, the Board of
Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 2nd September, 2020 have allotted 5,00,000 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each fully
paid for cash at a price of ¥ 955/- per equity share including a premium of ¥ 953/- per share aggregating to ¥ 47,75,00,000/-

Other Equity
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(a) | Capital reserve 6.59 6.59
(b) | Securities premium 96.52 48.87
(c) | Capital redemption reserve 0.26 0.26
(d) |General reserve 1,310.00 1,310.00
(e) | Retained earnings 3,316.31 2,277.18
(f) | OClreserve
- Cash flow hedging reserve (0.54) (1.19)
- Foreign currency translation reserve (1.79) (2.33) (1.38) (2.57)
Total 4,727.35 3,640.33

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on November 17, 2020, had declared an interim dividend of X 8/- per equity share
of ¥ 2/- each. It resulted in an outflow of ¥ 101.48 crores.

Nature and purpose of each reserve

Capital Reserve

During amalgamation / merger / acquisition, the excess of net assets taken, over the consideration paid, if any, is treated as capital
reserve.

Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. In case of equity-
settled share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted
as securities premium reserve. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Redemption Reserve

The Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buy-back of equity shares from its retained earnings. The amount
in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the equity shares bought back.

General Reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income,
items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and loss.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date and is net of amount transferred to other reserves such as
general reserves, debenture redemption reserve etc., amount distributed as dividend and adjustments on account of transition
to Ind AS.

Effective portion of cash flow hedges

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of
designated portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on the changes
of the fair value of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the cash flow
hedge reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a
basic adjustment to the non-financial hedged item.

Other items of OCI

This reserve represents exchange differences arising on account of conversion of foreign operations to Company’s functional
currency.
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12 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
a) Long-term Borrowings - Secured

(X Crores)
Particulars Non - current portion as at Current Maturities as at
(read with note no.13)
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
i ‘ Foreign currency term loan 9.13 64.21 52.89 48.99
Total (a) 9.13 64.21 52.89 48.99
Details of above:-
R Crores)
Sr. Name of the Instruments/ Institutions Non - current portion as at Current Maturities as at
No. As at Asat As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
i. |Foreign currency term loans
1 | BNP PARIBAS, Singapore Branch - - - 5.82
2 | Citibank N.A,, Jersey 9.13 18.91 9.14 9.46
3 | HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd. - 45.30 43.75 33.71
Total (a) 9.13 64.21 52.89 48.99
b) Long-term Borrowings - Unsecured
(i) |ECB-HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd. - 14.17 13.71 18.92
Total (b) = 14.17 13.71 18.92
Total (a+b) 9.13 78.38 66.60 67.91

c) Details of securities and repayment terms of secured loans stated above

(i) Foreign Currency Term Loans (Secured)

1 BNP PARIBAS, Singapore Branch

Secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of movable fixed assets both present and future including

Pithampur Plant(Indore).

Repayable in 13 equal quarterly installments from 30™ June, 2017.

2 Citibank N.A., Jersey

Secured by first pari-passu charge over movable assets of the company except assets at Unit - Il at

Sikkim plant and specific machines

at Athal

Repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments from June 15, 2019.

3 HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd.

and Ratlam which are financed

under

buyer’s

credit.

Secured by first pari-passu charge over current and future movable fixed assets of the Company except assets at Baroda.

Repayable in 11 half yearly un-equal installments from December 08, 2016.

(ii) ECB-HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd. (Unsecured)

Availed for refinancing of ECB of Standard Chartered Bank - London.

Repayable in 16 quarterly equal installments from August 16, 2019.

d)  Maturity profile of borrowings is as per the original sanction terms without Ind AS effects.

R Crores)
Particulars March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Installment payable between 1 to 2 years 9.14 69.05
Installment payable between 2 to 5 years - 9.46
Installment payable beyond 5 years - -
Total 9.14 78.51
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e) Thelong-term loans other than non convertible debentures are taken at the following rates.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Interest Band

Foreign currency loan

3 Month Libor + 0.60% to 0.90% ‘ 3 Month Libor + 0.60% to 1.35%

13 Other Financial Liabilities

R Crores)
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Deposits from customers - 0.91 - 0.87
Current maturities of long-term debt (refer note no.12) - 66.60 - 67.91
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 0.13 - 0.42
Unpaid dividends - 1.26 - 1.31
Amount payable on hedging transactions - 0.56 - 13.32
Payable for capital goods - 32.32 - 21.53
Other payables - 32.83 - 32.38
Total = 134.61 - 137.74
14 Provisions
(X Crores)
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Gratuity - 1.31 - 8.04
Provision for leave encashment 37.29 5.54 30.98 341
Other employee related provision - 12.76 - 341
Provision for breakage/damage = 6.51 - 332
Provision for product expiry - 62.22 - 59.85
Provision for sales return - 13.94 - 14.82
Total 37.29 102.28 30.98 92.85
The disclosure of provisions movement as required by Ind AS 37 is as follows:-
R Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
(i) | Provision for breakage/damage
Balance at the beginning of the period 3.32 3.06
Provisions made during the period 853 6.56
Utilisations during the period (5.34) (6.30)
Provision at the end of the period 6.51 3.32
(ii) |Provision for product expiry
Balance at the beginning of the period 59.85 52.25
Provisions made during the period 42.50 42.51
Utilisations during the period (40.13) (34.91)
Provision at the end of the period 62.22 59.85
(iii) | Provision for sales return
Balance at the beginning of the period 14.82 10.67
Provisions made during the period 32.89 34.97
Utilisations during the period (33.77) (30.82)
Provision at the end of the period 13.94 14.82
(iv) | Provision for wage arrears under negotiation
Balance at the beginning of the period 3.41 1.26
Provisions made during the period 9.35 2.51
Utilisations during the period - (0.36)
Provision at the end of the period 12.76 3.41
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14.1 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 19“Employee Benefits’, of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement / termination
is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied by the number
of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes contributions to recognised funds in India.
The Company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over a period of time
based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and
salary risk.

Investment risk-

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the
fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future
discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Market risk (discount risk)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount
rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the
plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the
valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.

Longevity Risk

The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after. Typically for the
benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material.

Actuarial risk

Salary Increase Assumption: Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase
to the obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
the funded status and amounts recognized in the Balance Sheet.

(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Expense recognised in statement of profit & loss
Current service cost 9.23 7.61
Interest expense 5.01 4.72
Expected return on plan assets (4.75) (4.98)
Total 9.49 7.35
Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (0.32) 0.34
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to experience on defined benefit obligation (DBO) 0.51 6.87
Total 0.19 7.21
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 89.56 78.46
Fair value of plan assets (88.25) (70.42)
Funded status 1.31 8.04
Net defined benefit (asset) / liability 1.31 8.04
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(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Movements in present value of DBO
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 78.46 64.71
Current service cost 9.23 7.61
Interest cost 5.01 4.72
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.51 6.87
Benefits paid (3.65) (5.45)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 89.56 78.46
Movements in fair value of the plan assets are as follows
Opening fair value of plan assets 70.42 65.50
Expected returns on plan assets 4.75 4,98
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets 0.32 (0.34)
Contribution from Employer 16.41 5.73
Benefits paid (3.65) (5.45)
Closing fair value of the plan assets 88.25 70.42
Remeasurement effect recognised on Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 0.51 6.87
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets (0.32) 0.34
Total actuarial (gain)/loss included in OCI 0.19 7.21

The principal assumptions used as at the balance sheet date for the purpose of ac

tuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 6.80% 6.73%

Salary increase rate 6.00% 6.00%

Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate

Withdrawal rate

Retirement age

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

5%

58 Years

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

5%

58 Years

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the end of

the reporting period on government bonds.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase

and mortality.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Defined benefit obligation

Discount rate

a. Discount rate - 100 basis points 96.70 84.56

b. Discount rate + 100 basis points 83.21 72.89

Salary increase rate

a. Rate-100 basis points 83.48 73.11

b. Rate + 100 basis points 96.27 84.21
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The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would clear in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be

correlated.

Further more, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

15 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Deferred tax liabilities on account of :
Depreciation including on R & D assets, amortisation and 223.44 226.29
impairment
Deferred tax asset on account of :
Leave encashment 14.96 12.02
Bonus expenses 1.05 1.05
MAT credit available 72.43 88.44 72.43 85.50
Net deferred tax liability 135.00 140.79
16 Other Non-Financial Liabilities
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security deposit 1.56 - 1.56 -
Revenue received in advance - 20.54 - 118.20
Deferred Income 0.59 0.15 0.70 0.19
Duties & taxes payable - 28.74 - 26.97
Other Payables = 6.37 - 591
Total 2.15 55.80 2.26 151.27
17 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(i) Secured Loans*:
Working capital loan from banks 37.78 184.99
(i)  Unsecured Loans:
Working capital loan from banks 109.67 124.28
Total Short-term Borrowings 147.45 309.27

* Secured loans are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of all the stocks, book debts and all other movable current assets of the
Company and second charge by way of mortgage of the immovable properties of the Company and hypothecation of plant & machinery of the

Company.
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(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
a) | Trade payables for goods and services:
- Total outstanding dues of Micro and small enterprises 63.65 8.28
- Others 476.33 481.51
b) | Acceptances 69.78 48.06
Total 609.76 537.85

Trade payables (other than MSME) and acceptances are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 0-120 days.

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006

Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in the
succeeding year

(% Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Principal amount due 63.65 8.28
Interest due on above 0.01 -
Amount paid in terms of Sec 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006
- Principal amount paid beyond appointed day 5.01 4.42
- Interest paid thereon - -
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay 0.02 0.02
Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end 0.03 0.02

The Company has compiled the above information based on written confirmations collected by the Company from suppliers.

19 Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Provision for taxation (net of taxes paid) 10.87 6.75
Total 10.87 6.75
20 Revenue from Operations (Net)
(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Sale of products 5,077.30 4,302.75
Sale of services 7.89 4,54
Other operating revenues:
Export incentives 19.22 4445
Sundry balances w/back 1.48 2.60
Miscellaneous income 33.27 13.09
Total 5,139.16 4,367.43
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20.1 Disclosure relating to disaggregation of revenue in terms of Ind AS-115

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21
Branded Generic APIs Total
Generics
A Domestic 1,981.67 = 386.33 2,368.00
B Exports
Europe 80.59 415.67 260.63 756.89
Africa 54.26 422.52 55.81 532.59
Americas 39.37 134.57 398.48 572.42
Asia (Excluding India) 65.64 40.28 369.66 475.58
cls 163.53 0.46 24.95 188.94
Australasia 0.03 180.27 10.47 190.77
Total (B) 403.42 1,193.77 1,120.00 2,717.19
Total (A+B) 2,385.09 1,193.77 1,506.33 5,085.19
(X Crores)
Particulars 2019-20
Branded Generic APIs Total
Generics
A Domestic 1,912.61 - 250.93 2,163.54
B Exports
Europe 61.83 329.12 244.53 635.48
Africa 50.54 258.39 34.00 34293
Americas 41.26 78.30 312.20 431.76
Asia (Excluding India) 59.73 17.14 309.64 386.51
cls 167.33 - 17.16 184.49
Australasia 0.84 157.07 4.67 162.58
Total (B) 381.53 840.02 922.20 2,143.75
Total (A+B) 2,294.14 840.02 1,173.13 4,307.29

20.2 Information about major customers:
No single customer represents 10% or more of the company’s total revenue during the year ended March 31, 2021 and
March 31, 2020.

20.3 Contract Liability

The Contract liability primarily relate to advances received from the customers against orders. Significant changes in the contract
liabilities balance during the period are as under:

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Balances at the beginning of the year 118.20 50.30
Revenue recognised that is included at the beginning of the period 117.97 49.44
Advances received which have remained outstanding at the end of the year 20.54 118.20

21 Otherincome

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Interest income 33.06 26.60
Interest income on financial asset at amortised cost 4.47 5.36
Profit on sale of investments - current (net) 10.60 531
Net gain on financial asset through FVTPL - 0.75
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment 0.81 8.45
Miscellaneous income 13.30 18.22
Total 62.24 64.69
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22 Cost of Materials Consumed

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 493.53 444.46
Add : Purchases (net of discount) 1,420.91 1,261.50
Add : Raw material conversion charges 28.84 30.20
1,943.28 1,736.16
Less : Closing stock 567.82 1375.46 493.53 1242.63
Packing materials consumed
Opening stock 35.18 31.51
Add :Purchases (net of discount) 207.55 211.61
242.73 243.12
Less : Closing stock 37.65 205.08 35.18 207.94
Neutralisation of duties and taxes on inputs for exports - (25.01) (19.47)
duty drawback benefits
Total 1,555.53 1,431.10
23 Purchases of Traded Goods
(% Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Formulations 186.18 197.96
Active Pharmaceutical ingredients/ Intermediates 11.50 5.85
Others - 0.84
Total 197.68 204.65
24 Changes in inventories of Finished Goods(FG), Work-in-progress(WIP) and Traded Goods
(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Inventory adjustments - WIP
Stock at commencement 286.76 220.51
Less: - Stock at closing 336.53 (49.77) 286.76 (66.25)
Inventory adjustments - FG
Stock at commencement 375.25 293.54
Less : Stock at closing 486.92 (111.67) 375.25 (81.71)
Inventory adjustments - traded goods
Stock at commencement 50.11 43.02
Less : Stock at closing 59.40 (9.29) 50.11 (7.09)
Total (170.73) (155.05)
25 Employee Benefits Expenses
(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Salaries , bonus, perquisites , etc. 848.25 777.66
Contribution to provident and other funds 43.72 42.24
Leave encashment 14.28 12.85
Leave travel assistance 3.28 3.34
Gratuity fund contributions 9.49 7.35
Staff welfare expenses 28.69 25.83
Recruitment & training 1.13 1.52
Total 948.84 870.79
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26 Finance Cost

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Interest expense (Refer point no.(vi) of note no. 38) 5.20 13.55
Other borrowing cost 0.43 0.66
Interest expenses on lease liability (Refer note no.31) 1.49 1.58
Interest on Income tax 1.02 -
Total 8.14 15.79

27 Depreciation & Amortisation

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Depreciation on tangible assets 169.49 162.39
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets 10.74 9.71
Amortisation on intangible assets 7.49 6.59
Total 187.72 178.69

28 Other Expenses

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Consumption of stores and spares 53.75 42.70
Power and fuel 194.95 190.10
Water charges 6.53 6.72
Freight, forwarding and transportation 112.75 89.23
Outside manufacturing charges 11.83 13.23
Repairs and maintenance 133.67 114.78
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment 0.81 0.59
Property, plant & equipment scrapped 2.86 1.42
Commission on sales and brokerage 52.45 27.48
Field staff expenses 70.29 85.87
Sales and marketing expenses 132.71 210.93
Product information catalogue 26.00 27.59
Expenditure on scientific research 52.42 31.38
Laboratory expenses and analytical charges 44.74 39.80
Rent 9.32 9.95
Rates and taxes 9.84 7.69
Travelling expenses 6.02 40.71
Professional charges 65.04 29.24
Printing and stationery 6.97 7.26
Books, subscription and software 9.13 7.75
Product registration expenses 21.38 21.95
GST Expenses 25.05 29.61
Communication expenses 6.11 6.76
Insurance 18.16 15.24
Intellectual property right expenses 0.68 0.96
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Disclosures:

(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Remuneration to auditors 0.52 0.57
Bank charges 2.99 3.05
Provision for doubtful debts/advances 0.25 4,59
Provision for Diminution in value of investment 12.68 1.15
Bad debts and other balance w/off 0.62 0.47
CSR expenses 10.96 7.03
Foreign exchange (gain)/loss-net (41.35) 13.96
MTM Loss on Mutual Fund Investments 0.46 -
Impairment of Assets 15.84 -
Miscellaneous expenses (none of which individually forms 17.83 11.42
more than 1% of the operating revenue)
Total 1,094.26 1101.18
Details of:
1. Repairs and maintenance:
Building 18.34 15.54
Machinery 106.15 91.68
Others 9.18 7.56
133.67 114.78
2. Remuneration to auditors:
Audit fees including limited review 0.51 0.54
Certification and other services 0.01 0.03
0.52 0.57
Total expenditure on R & D is included in respective heads of accounts as under:
(X Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Expenditure on Scientific Research (Includes stores and chemicals, 5242 31.38
bio-availability, bio-equivalence and toxicity Studies)
Cost of materials consumed 1.90 2.30
Employee benefits expenses 46.77 43.62
Other expenses 20.30 19.15
Depreciation 14.66 15.36
Total 136.05 111.81
29 Tax Expense
(% Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Current tax 244.98 137.98
Tax expense of previous year = -
Deferred tax (5.79) (5.47)
Total 239.19 132.51
i. Reconciliation of current rate of tax and effective rate of tax:
Profit before Income taxes 1,379.96 784.97
Enacted tax rates in India (%) 34.94% 34.94%
Computed expected tax expenses 482.21 274.30
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(% Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Tax effect due to incentives (190.27) (120.03)
Depreciation differential 2.67 8.50
Effect of non- deductible expenses 20.25 11.36
Research and Development expenses (1.75) (14.29)
Others (4.82) (12.69)
MAT Credit Adjusted* (63.31) (9.17)
Income tax expenses - Net 24498 137.98
Tax liability as per Minimum Alternate Tax on book profits
Minimum Alternate Tax rate 17.47% 17.47%
Computed tax liability on book profits 241.11 137.15
Tax effect on adjustments:
Adjustment of OCI 0.02 (1.61)
Others 3.85 2.44
Minimum Alternate Tax on book profit 244.98 137.98
* Not recognised in earlier years on conservative basis
ii. Reconciliation of Deferred Tax
Deferred tax (assets) / liabilities in relation to:
(% Crores)
Particulars As at Recognised in As at
March 31, 2021 profit/loss | March 31,2020
Property, plant & equipment 223.45 (2.84) 226.29
MAT credit available (72.43) - (72.43)
Compensated absences (14.97) (2.95) (12.02)
Bonus expenses (1.05) - (1.05)
Total 135.00 (5.79) 140.79

Accounting Standards) Rules 2015.

The earning per share is calculated by dividing the profit after tax by weighted average number of shares outstanding for basic &

30 Disclosure as required by Accounting Standard - Ind AS 33 “Earning Per Share” of the Companies (Indian

diluted EPS.
R Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
i Profit after tax 1,140.77 652.46
i Profit after tax and exceptional Items 1,140.77 652.46
i Closing equity shares outstanding (nos.)
Opening equity shares outstanding (nos.) 12,63,52,109 12,63,52,109
Add: Shares issued during the year pursuant to 5,00,000 -
conversion of share warrants
Closing equity shares outstanding (nos.) 12,68,52,109 12,63,52,109
iv. Weighted avg no. of shares outstanding (nos.) (basic) 12,66,39,780 12,63,26,609
v Weighted avg no. of shares outstanding (nos.) (diluted) 12,66,39,780 12,64,42,316
vi  Nominal value of equity share ) 2.00 2.00
vii  Basic EPS (i/iv) R) 90.08 51.64
viii Diluted EPS (i / v) ®) 90.08 51.60

105



106

©lipca

dose of life

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

31 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 116 “Leases”, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015.

Following is carrying value of right-of-use asset recognised and the movements thereof during the

year ended March 31, 2021

(% Crores)

Particulars Land and Land and

Buildings Buildings

(2020-21) (2019-20)
Balance as at 1st April 26.13 -
Transition impact on account of Ind AS 116“ Leases” - 9.70
Reclassified from Earnest money and Security Deposits - 3.28
Total Right-of-use as on date of Transition - 12.98
Additions during the year 0.12 22.86
Deletion during the year 0.06 -
Depreciation of Right-of-use asset 10.74 9.71
Balance as at 31st March 15.45 26.13

The following is the carrying value of lease liability and movement thereof during the year

ended March 31, 2021

(% Crores)

Particulars As at As at

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Balance as at 1st April 18.89 -
Transition impact on account of Ind AS 116 " Leases" - 9.70
Additions during the year 0.12 13.69
Finance cost accrued during the year 1.49 1.58
Deletions 0.06 -
Payment of lease liabilities 7.39 6.08
Balance as at 31st March 13.05 18.89
Current portion of Lease liability 4.80 5.87
Non - Current portion of Lease liability 8.25 13.02
13.05 18.89

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities is 9% except one agreement of Krebs Biochemicals

where Inter Company Deposit rate is available, which is 11.5%.

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

(% Crores)
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Total cash outflow for leases 13.86 13.81
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32

33

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2021 on an undiscounted
basis are as follows:

(% Crores)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Less than one year 4.80 5.87
One to five years 4.20 9.05
More than five years 4.05 3.97
Total 13.05 18.89

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet
the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Segment Reporting
Disclosure as required by Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the
Company’s performance in accordance with Ind AS “Operating Segment’, the Company has only one reportable operating
segment i.e. Pharmaceuticals. The additional disclosure is being made in the consolidated financial statements.

Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, of the Companies
( Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015

A. List of related parties

Relationships Country
i. Entities having significant influence
Shareholders of Ipca Laboratories Ltd.
Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd. India
Subsidiaries
Ipca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA

Ipca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd. United Kingdom

Ipca Pharma (Australia) Pty Ltd. Australia
Ipca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. Nigeria
Ipca Pharmaceuticals Ltd.SA de CV Mexico
Tonira Exports Ltd. India
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. India

Step-down Subsidiaries
Ipca Pharma (NZ) Pty. Ltd.
Onyx Scientific Limited

New Zealand
United Kingdom

Pisgah Laboratories Inc USA

Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC USA
ii. Associates

Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. India

Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. India
iii. JointVenture

Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. India
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iv. Key Management Personnel

Mr. Premchand Godha Chairman & Managing Director Indian
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain Joint Managing Director & CFO Indian
Mr. Pranay Godha Executive Director Indian
Mr. Prashant Godha Executive Director Indian
Mr. Anand T. Kusre Independent Director Indian
Mr. Dev Parkash Yadava Independent Director Indian
Mrs. Manisha Premnath Independent Director Indian
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth Independent Director Indian

v. Otherrelated parties

(Entities in which directors or their relatives have significant influence and with whom there were transactions
during the period)

Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd. India
Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. India
Nipra Industries Pvt. Ltd. India
Nipra Packaging Pvt. Ltd. India
Prabhat Foundation India
Vandhara Resorts Pvt. Ltd. India
Makers Laboratories Ltd. India

Details of related party transactions are given in statement 1 attached to the financial statement. The value of related
party transactions and balances reported are based on actual transactions and without giving effect to notional Ind AS
adjustment entries.

34 CSR Expenditure:
a.  Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year: ¥ 10.85 crores (previous year ¥ 7.09 crores).

b. i) Amount spent by the Company during the year is as follows:

(X Crores)
Sr. |Particulars Paid in cash Yet to be Total
No. paid in cash

1 |Eradication of poverty, promotion of healthcare, sanitation, drinking 6.24 - 6.24
water etc.

2 | Promotion of education, vocational training & skill enhancement etc. 423 - 423
Environmental sustainability, animal welfare, natural resource 1.67 - 1.67
conservation etc.

4 | Promoting of gender equality and empowering women - - -

5 | Protection of national heritage, art, culture etc. 0.50 - 0.50

6 | Promotion of rural sports - - -

7 |Rural development 0.32 - 0.32
Total 12.96 = 12.96
Less : CSR expenses carried forward to next financial year (2.00) - (2.00)
Net CSR Expenses 10.96 - 10.96
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ii) Amount spent by the Company during the previous year is as follows:

(X Crores)
Sr. | Particulars Paid in cash Yet to be Total
No. paid in cash
1 | Eradication of poverty, promotion of healthcare, sanitation, drinking 5.24 - 5.24
water etc.
Promotion of education, vocational training & skill enhancement etc. 1.29 - 1.29
3 | Environmental sustainability, animal welfare, natural resource 0.18 - 0.18
conservation etc.
4 | Promoting of gender equality and empowering women 0.03 - 0.03
5 | Protection of national heritage, art, culture etc. 0.01 - 0.01
6 |Promotion of rural sports 0.04 - 0.04
7 | Rural development 0.24 - 0.24
Total 7.03 - 7.03
35 Contingent liabilities and Commitments
A. Contingent Liabilities
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 10.64 10.65
Amount deposited under protest (1.68) 8.96 (1.70) 8.95
Corporate guarantee given to Bank for
- Working Capital Finance to Subsidiary 32.91 22.70
- Others 2.28 35.19 2.28 24.98
Guarantees given by banks in favour of Govt. & others * 17.46 16.71
Term deposit with NBFC as security for short term
working capital loan provided to Associate company ** 11.00 -
Other moneys for which the Company is contingently
liable for tax, excise, customs and other matters not
accepted by the Company * 14.84 15.25
Amount deposited under protest (0.77) 14.07 (1.11) 14.14
Total 86.68 64.78
Notes:-

*Itincludes T 4.38 crores (Previous year ¥ 4.38 crores) towards interest and penalty demanded by excise department, Ankleshwar relating
to erstwhile Tonira Pharma Limited since amalgamated with the Company and is not payable in accordance with the order passed by the
Hon'ble Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (CESTAT), Ahmedabad. The Department had moved the Hon'ble Gujarat High
Court against the said CESTAT order and as per the order of the said Hon'ble High Court, the Company has furnished a Bank Guarantee of

< 2.00 crores (Previous year X 2.00 crores) to the department.

** Company has provided security by way of lien over the term deposit of ¥ 11.00 crores placed by the company with Bajaj finance limited

towards short term credit facility availed by Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd., an Associate company.
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B. Commitments
(% Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be
executed on capital account and not provided for:

Tangible Assets 198.34 60.25

Intangible Assets - :

198.34 60.25

(b) Other Commitments
Purchase orders backed by LC opened by bankers. 97.18 94.46
97.18 94.46
Total 295.52 154.71

36 Financial Instruments
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categorywise is as follows:
(X Crores)
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value
As at As at As at As at

March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Financial assets

Amortised cost

Loans 159.87 102.20 159.87 102.20
Others 152.25 90.79 152.25 90.79
Trade receivables 774.46 839.13 774.46 839.13
Cash and cash equivalents 306.90 152.40 306.90 152.40
FVTPL

Mutual funds considered as cash and cash equivalents 393.83 238.25 393.83 238.25
FVTOCI

Derivative assets = 0.30 = 0.30
Total financial assets 1,787.31 1,423.07 1,787.31 1,423.07

Financial liabilities

Amortised cost

Borrowings 156.58 387.65 156.58 387.65
Lease liability 13.05 18.89 13.05 18.89
Trade payables 609.76 537.85 609.76 537.85
Others 134.05 124.42 134.05 124.42
FVTOCI

Derivative liabilities 0.56 13.32 0.56 13.32
Total financial liabilities 914.00 1,082.13 914.00 1,082.13

The management assessed that fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables, book overdrafts and
other current financial assets and liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
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37. FairValue Hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a)
recognised and measured at fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

(X Crores)
Particulars Fair Value measurement using Total
Date of Valuation | Quoted prices | Significant Significant

in active observable | unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets measured at fair value
Mutual funds - growth plan As at March 31, 2021 393.83 - - 393.83
Total financial assets 393.83 - - 393.83
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities As at March 31, 2021 - 0.56 - 0.56
Total financial liabilities - 0.56 - 0.56
Financial assets measured at fair value
Mutual funds - growth plan As at March 31, 2020 238.25 - - 238.25
Derivative financial assets As at March 31,2020 - 0.30 - 0.30
Total financial assets 238.25 0.30 - 238.55
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities As at March 31, 2020 - 13.32 - 13.32
Total financial liabilities - 13.32 - 13.32

38 Financial Risk Factors

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks: market/business risk, credit risk, exchange risk, etc.
The Company’s focus is to foresee the unpredictability of financial and business risks and seek to minimize potential adverse
effects of these risks on its business and financial performance.

i Business/Market Risk

The primary business/market risk to the Company is the price risk and its ability to pass on the same to its customers.
The Company'’s operations extend to a number of countries across the globe and its products pricing competitiveness is
a primary factor for the acceptability of Company’s products in those markets. The Company has a robust procurement
process, which ensures that its pricing power is not adversely affected by price changes in the market place for its raw
materials. The backward integration into manufacturing of several API's for its own use in the formulations manufacturing
also works as a mitigating strategy for price risk faced by the Company.

The other business risk is regulatory risk and regulatory audits of its manufacturing facilities by the regulators to ensure that
the manufacturing facilities meet the current Good Manufacturing Practices (cGMP) requirements. The Company is already
exposed to certain audit observations from the US FDA for 3 of its manufacturing plants and has taken the necessary
corrective measures to redress those US FDA audit observations so as to be able to market all its products once again in
the US market. While the stringent regulatory requirements and audits works as a business risk, the successful audit of its
facilities by regulators coupled with price competitiveness results in higher business and margins for the Company.

The Company'’s products are also subjected to product liability claims/litigations. To mitigate these risks, the Company has
obtained adequate Product Liability Insurance.
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The Company, however, has a reduced risk from dependence on any single customer as no single customer or customer
group accounts for more than 10% of Company’s annual revenue. The Company also continuously forays into different
markets/countries to reduce its dependence on any particular country or customer group. The Company also has a
diversified therapeutic product portfolio and therefore no single product account for more than 10% of Company’s
annual revenue.

Credit risk

The Company has exposure to credit risks associated with sales to various developing markets/countries. To mitigate these
credit risks arising out of this, the Company obtains credit insurance on a regular basis after evaluating the credit risk
associated with a country/customer. Country/customer where no credit insurance is available, the Company monitors such
risk by continuously monitoring its exposure to such country/customer. There was no historically significant credit risk
in the domestic market for the Company. Based on the historical data, the Company has made adequate provisions for
expected loss because of credit risk, which is neither significant nor material.

Interest risk

The Company has borrowings mainly in foreign currencies which is linked to Libor. The Company mitigates these risks associated
with floating Libor rates by entering into interest rate swaps to move them to fixed Libor rates. The domestic interest risk is
exposed to the changes in the RBI bank rate. The Company manages this risk by managing its working capital effectively.

Foreign currency risk

The Company continuously manages its risks associated with foreign currency by adopting various hedging strategies
in consultation with internal and external experts. The Company has a system of regularly monitoring its currency wise
exposures. The significant part of Company’s receivables and borrowings are in US Dollars which operates as a natural
hedge against each other. The Company has a policy not to borrow in a currency where it has no business exposure.

v. Foreign currency exposure is as follows:
Sr. | Particulars Currency As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
no. Amount Amount Amount Amount
in foreign  crores) in foreign X crores)
currency currency
(in millions) (in millions)
1) |Foreign exchange liability
a. |ECBterm loan & interest usD 10.38 75.91 19.42 146.97
b. |Packing credit & interest usD 15.00 109.70 15.02 113.62
EURO 3.00 25.72 4.00 33.13
GBP - - 0.94 8.81
c. |Trade & other payables usbD 22.76 166.39 20.32 153.80
EURO 0.35 2.99 0.23 1.87
GBP 0.01 0.06 0.01 0.06
AUD 0.01 0.06 0.01 0.05
NzD = = 0.00 0.02
Il) | Receivables in foreign currency
a. |Trade & other receivables usD 47.64 348.28 33.54 253.74
EUR 7.99 68.51 6.82 56.39
GBP 10.50 105.76 10.41 97.20
AUD 5.72 31.86 8.01 36.93
CAD 1.91 11.07 2.52 13.37
NzD 1.25 6.42 0.33 1.49
CcOoP 877.89 1.74 1,311.93 242
b. | Unbilled revenue CAD 0.68 3.94 0.77 4.06

The Company has entered into various derivatives transactions, which are not intended for trading or speculative purpose but to
hedge the export receivables included in ((Il) a) above and future receivables and foreign currency loan interest rate risks.
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vi. The Company has entered into Interest Rate Swap (IRS) Contracts against the underlying of USD ECB loans. In 2020-21, the
Company has not unwound any of the IRS and hence actual net gain/loss is ¥ NIL. (previous year X 0.41 crores) and gain/loss on
net settlement is credited to interest expenses under finance cost.(Refer note no.26).

vii. Other Price Risk

The Company is mainly exposed to the price risk due to its investment in mutual funds. However, the Company is investing only in
debt funds. The price risk arises due to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. At March 31, 2021, the
investments in mutual funds is ¥ 393.83 crores (Previous year X 238.25 crores).These are exposed to price risk. In order to minimize
price risk arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company predominately invest in liquid fund where price risk is minimum.
Price risk sensitivity

0.10% increase or decrease in prices will have the following impact on profit/loss before tax and on other components of
investment value.

(X Crores)
Particulars Impact on Profit Impact on Investment Value
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020 | March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020
Price -increase by 0.10%* 0.39 0.24 0.39 0.24
Price - decrease by 0.10% * (0.39) (0.24) (0.39) (0.24)

* assuming all other variables as constant

39 Estimation uncertainty relating to COVID-19 outbreak

Being manufacturers of pharmaceuticals, the operations of the Company were exempted from lockdown declared by both the Central
and State Governments in the wake of Covid - 19 pandemic. The Company continued with the manufacturing operations at all its
manufacturing sites albeit with challenges such as shortage of manpower, availability of materials and disruptions in the logistics and
supply chain. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result due to the lockdown announced consequent to outbreak
of Covid -19 on the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, investments, inventories, receivables and other current assets.
Based on internal and external sources of information and economic forecasts, the Company expects the carrying amount of these
assets will be recovered and will continue to have sufficient liquidity to fund its business operations as well as expansion plans. However,
a definitive assessment of the impact, at this stage, is not possible in view of the highly uncertain economic environment and the
situation is still evolving.

40 Capital Management
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes paid-up equity share capital, share premium and all other
equity reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the
shareholders’value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust its dividend payment ratio to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue fresh shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by its
total capital. The Company includes within its net debt the interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables less cash
and cash equivalents.

(% Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Borrowings other than convertible preference shares 156.58 387.65
Trade payables 609.76 537.85
Other payables 134.61 137.74
Less: Cash and cash Equivalents (C&CE) (306.90) (152.40)
Less: Investment in MF (part of C&CE) (393.83) (238.25)
Net debt 200.22 672.59
Total Equity 4752.72 3677.54
Capital and net debt gearing ratio 4.21% 18.29%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
the financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches
in meeting the financial covenants would permit the lending institutions to immediately call back the loans and borrowings. There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing in the current period.
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No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing the capital during the years ended March 31, 2021

and March 31, 2020.

41 Derivative Financial Instruments

The details of outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts and other derivatives designated as cash flow hedges:

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Currency In Million Currency In Million

Forward Contracts - Exports usD 84.00 usD 54.43
STG 10.05 STG 13.00
EUR 9.00 EUR 5.50
AUD 15.00 AUD 6.50
CAD 6.00 CAD 4.70
NzZD 4.25 NzD -

Forward Contracts - Imports usD 0.32 usb 0.83

Other Derivatives:

Options usD 2.00 usb -

Interest Rate Swaps (notional O/s) usbD 6.00 usD 11.27

The foreign exchange forward contracts mature within twelve months or more. The table below shows the derivative financial
instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period as at balance sheet date:

Particulars Currency As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Forward Contracts - Exports In Million In Million
Not later than one month usD - 6.38
STG 1.05 1.50
EUR 1.50 -
CAD 1.00 1.50
AUD 1.50 1.50
NzD 1.00 -
Later than one month and not later than three months usD 15.00 10.00
STG 2.00 2.50
CAD 2.00 2.00
NzZD 2.00 -
EUR 2.50 2.50
AUD 3.00 3.50
Later than three months and not later than one year usbD 69.00 38.05
STG 7.00 9.00
NzD 1.25 -
AUD 10.50 1.50
CAD 3.00 1.20
EUR 5.00 3.00
Particulars Currency As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Forward Contracts - Imports In Million In Million
Not later than one month usbD 0.08 0.21
Later than one month and not later than three months usD 0.15 0.62
Later than three months and not later than one year usD 0.09 -
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During the year ended March 31, 2021 the Company has designated certain foreign exchange forward contracts as cash flow
hedges to mitigate the risk of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions. The related transactions
for the balance in the cash flow hedging reserve are expected to occur and reclassified to revenue in the Statement of Profit and
Loss . However, as at March 31, 2021 , there are no transactions in the hedge reserve that are required to be reclassified to the
revenue in the statement of profit & loss account.

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship and through periodic prospective effectiveness
assessments to ensure that an economic relationship exists between the hedged item and the hedging instrument, including
whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items.

If the hedge ratio for risk management purposes is no longer optimal but the risk management objective remains unchanged
and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship will be re-balanced by adjusting either the
volume of the hedging instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedged ratio aligns with the ratio used for risk
management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted in the Statement of Profit and Loss at the time of
hedge relationship re-balancing.

The reconciliation of cash flow hedge reserve for the year ended March 31, 2021 is as follows:

(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Balance at the beginning of the period (1.20) 0.28
Changes in the fair value of effective portion of cash flow hedges (0.18) (1.89)
Gain/(loss) transferred to the statement of profit & loss on occurrence of forcasted 0.83 0.41
hedge transactions
Deferred tax on fair value of effective portion of cash flow hedges - -
Balance at the end of the period (0.55) (1.20)

The Company offsets a financial asset and a financial liability when it currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously. During the year the Company has not settled any such transactions.

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative

financial financial financial financial

asset liability asset liability
Gross amount of recognised financial asset / liability - 0.55 - 1.20
Amount set-off - - - -
Net amount presented in balance sheet - 0.55 - 1.20

42 Figures for the previous year have been regrouped / reclassified / reinstated, wherever considered necessary.

43 The balance sheet, statement of profit and loss, cash flow statement, statement of changes in equity, statement of significant
accounting policies and the other explanatory notes forms an integral part of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2021.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Premchand Godha

Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Ajit Kumar Jain

Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)

As per our report of even date attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 104767W

Pranay Godha
Executive Director (DIN 00016525)
Prashant Godha
Atul Shah Executive Director (DIN 00012759)
Partner Harish P. Kamath
Membership No. 39569 Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)
Mumbai Mumbai
May 28, 2021 May 28, 2021
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Statement 1 (refer Note No. 33)

Related Party Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard — Ind AS 24 “Related Party Transactions” of the Companies
(Accounting Standards) Rule 2015.

Transactions with related parties-standalone accounts

(X Crores)
Description Entities where Key Associates Joint Venture Other Related Total
control exists Management Parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20
Purchase of goods and services
Makers Laboratories Ltd. - - - - - - - - 11.28 10.64 11.28 10.64
Ipca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA 4.70 532 - - - - - - - - 4.70 532
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - 29.10 32.68 - - 29.10 32.68
Nipra Packaging Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 0.40 - 0.40
Nipra Industries Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 0.94 1.92 0.94 1.92
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 64.22 38.17 - - - - 64.22 38.17
Vandhara Resorts Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 0.64 0.73 0.64 0.73
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.58 - - - - - - - - 0.58 -
Total 5.28 5.32 - - 64.22 38.17 29.10 32.68 12.86 13.69, 111.46 89.86
Sales of goods and services
Ipca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 4.28 4.68 - - - - - - - - 4.28 4,68
Makers Laboratories Ltd. - - - - - - - - 1.35 1.32 135 1.32
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - 11.51 11.98 - - 11.51 11.98
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 12.99 9.90 - - - - 12.99 9.90
Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. - - - - 2.23 1.50 - - - - 2.23 1.50
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 1.49 461 - - - - - - - - 1.49 4.61
Pisgah Labs Inc. - 0.04 - - - - - - - - - 0.04
Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC. 25.56 2.15 - - - - - - - - 25.56 2.15
Ipca Laboratories UK Ltd 1.60 - - - - - - - - - 1.60 -
Total 32.93 11.48 - - 15.22 11.40 11.51 11.98 1.35 1.32 61.01 36.18
Rent income
Makers Laboratories Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 0.11 - 0.11
Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. - - - - 0.19 0.18 - - - - 0.19 0.18
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.01 0.01 - - - - - - - - 0.01 0.01
Total 0.01 0.01 - - 0.19 0.18 - - - 0.11 0.20 0.30
Interest income
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - 1.61 1.76 - - 1.61 1.76
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 4.40 5.95 - - - - 4.40 5.95
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.86 0.02 - - - - - - - - 0.86 0.02
Total 0.86 0.02 - - 4.40 5.95 1.61 1.76 - - 6.87 7.73
Sale of fixed assets
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.27 0.34 - - - - - - - - 0.27 0.34
Total 0.27 0.34 - - - - - - - - 0.27 0.34
Rent and other expenses
Ipca Pharma (Australia) Pty Ltd. Australia 0.31 0.56 - - - - - - - - 0.31 0.56
Makers Laboratories Ltd. - - - - - - - - 0.01 0.02 0.01 0.02
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - - 0.58 - - - 0.58
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 1.18 1.20 - - - - 1.18 1.20
Tonira Exports Ltd 0.02 0.02 - - - - - - - - 0.02 0.02
Ipca Pharmaceuticals Ltd. SA de CV - 0.04 - - - - - - - - - 0.04
Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. - - - - 0.01 - - - - - 0.01 -
Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC. 1.23 1.24 - - - - - - - - 1.23 1.24
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.15 0.01 - - - - - - - 0.15 0.01
Total 1.71 1.87 - - 1.19 1.20 - 0.58 0.01 0.02 291 3.67
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(X Crores)
Description Entities where Key Associates Joint Venture Other Related Total
control exists Management Parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20
Net loans and advances given/
(recovered)
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - (0.60) (1.21) - - (0.60) (1.21)
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 34.00| (14.85) - - - - 34.00| (14.85)
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 18.00 1.00 - - - - - - - - 18.00 1.00
Total 18.00 1.00 - - 34.00, (14.85) (0.60) (1.21) - - 51.40| (15.06)
Investments made / (redemption)
Ipca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd. - (5.13) - - - - - - - - - (5.13)
Ipca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA 28.51 26.74 - - - - - - - - 2851 26.74
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 10.45 49.44 - - - - 10.45 49.44
Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. - - - - 37.27 - - - - - 37.27 -
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. -l 108.72 - - - - - - - - -l 108.72
Total 28,51 130.33 - - 47.72 49.44 - - - - 76.23| 179.77
Share Warrants Issued
Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 0.96 - 0.96
Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 2.85 - 2.85
Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 1.53 - 1.53
Mr. Premchand Godha - - - 5.40 - - - - - - - 5.40
Mr. Pranay Godha - - - 0.60 - - - - - - - 0.60
Mr. Prashant Godha - - - 0.60 - - - - - - - 0.60
Total - - - 6.60 - - - - - 5.34 - 11.94
Shares Issued upon Conversion of
Share Warrants(Including Share
Premium)
Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 3.82 - 3.82 -
Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 11.46 - 11.46 -
Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 6.11 - 6.11 -
Mr. Premchand Godha - - 21.58 - - - - - - - 21.58 -
Mr. Pranay Godha - - 2.39 - - - - - - - 2.39 -
Mr. Prashant Godha - - 2.39 - - - - - - - 2.39 -
Total - - 26.36 - - - - - 21.39 - 47.75 -
Remuneration to Directors
Mr. Premchand Godha - - 10.36 10.15 - - - - - - 10.36 10.15
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain - - 6.05 5.39 - - - - - - 6.05 539
Mr. Pranay Godha - - 3.06 3.06 - - - - - - 3.06 3.06
Mr. Prashant Godha - - 2.87 2.82 - - - - - - 2.87 2.82
Total - - 22.34 2142 - - - - - - 22.34 2142
Provident Fund to Directors
Mr. Premchand Godha - - 0.44 0.44 - - - - - - 0.44 0.44
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain - - 0.40 0.35 - - - - - - 0.40 0.35
Mr. Pranay Godha - - 0.18 0.19 - - - - - - 0.18 0.19
Mr. Prashant Godha - - 0.17 0.18 - - - - - - 0.17 0.18
Total - - 1.19 1.16 - - - - - - 1.19 1.16
Post employment benefits of
Directors
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain - - 0.36 0.31 - - - - - - 0.36 0.31
Mr. Pranay Godha - - 0.07 0.06 - - - - - - 0.07 0.06
Mr. Prashant Godha - - 0.04 0.03 - - - - - - 0.04 0.03
Total - - 0.47 0.40 - - - - - - 0.47 0.40
Sitting Fee to Non-executive Directors
Mr. Anand T Kusre - - 0.11 0.09 - - - - - - 0.11 0.09
Mr. Dev Prakash Yadava - - 0.12 0.12 - - - - - - 0.12 0.12
Mrs. Manisha Premnath - - 0.09 0.09 - - - - - - 0.09 0.09
Mr. Kamal Kishore Seth - - 0.11 0.12 - - - - - - 0.11 0.12
Total - - 0.43 0.42 - - - - - - 0.43 0.42
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(X Crores)
Description Entities where Key Associates Joint Venture Other Related Total
control exists Management Parties
Subsidiaries Personnel
2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20| 2020-21| 2019-20
Donation
Prabhat Foundation - - - - - - - - 2.15 1.20 2.15 1.20
Total - - - - - - - - 2.15 1.20 2.15 1.20
Security
Security given to NBFC by way of
lien over term deposit for short
term borrowings -
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 11.00 - - - - - 11.00 -
Total - - - - 11.00 - - - - - 11.00 -
Corporate guarantee given to bank
Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC. 10.97 22.70 - - - - - - - - 10.97 22.70
Total 10.97 22.70 - - - - - - - - 10.97 22.70
Balance at year end
Trade receivables
Ipca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. 3.17 1.74 - - - - - - - - 317 1.74
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - 0.98 6.02 - - 0.98 6.02
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 10.28 12.63 - - - - 10.28 12.63
Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. - - - - 0.42 0.16 - - - - 0.42 0.16
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.01 3.65 - - - - - - - - 0.01 3.65
Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC. 25.62 1.31 - - - - - - - -l 25.62 1.31
Ipca Laboratories UK Ltd 1.68 - - - - - - - - - 1.68 -
Loan given
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 66.47 3247 - - - - 66.47 3247
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - 14.18 14.78 - - 14.18 14.78
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 19.00 1.00 - - - - - - - - 19.00 1.00
Deposit given
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 45.00 45.00 - - - - 45.00 45.00
Interest receivable
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 3.08 0.32 - - - - 3.08 0.32
Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. - - - - - - 0.35 - - - 0.35 -
Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd. 0.38 0.02 - - - - - - - - 0.38 0.02
Total 49.86 7.72 - -| 125.25 90.58 15.51 20.80 - -l 190.62| 119.10
Trade payable
Ipca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA 0.36 1.66 - - - - - - - - 0.36 1.66
Makers Laboratories Ltd. - - - - - - - - 0.96 0.38 0.96 0.38
Nipra Industries Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 0.18 0.37 0.18 0.37
Vandhara Resorts Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 0.01 0.36 0.01 0.36
Directors remmunration payable
Mr. Premchand Godha - - 5.82 5.61 - - - - - - 5.82 5.61
Mr. Ajit Kumar Jain - - 293 297 - - - - - - 293 297
Mr. Pranay Godha - - 1.79 1.76 - - - - - - 1.79 1.76
Mr. Prashant Godha - - 1.75 1.68 - - - - - - 1.75 1.68
Share Warrants Outstanding
Paschim Chemicals Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 0.96 - 0.96
Kaygee Investments Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 2.85 - 2.85
Kaygee Laboratories Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - - 1.53 - 1.53
Mr. Premchand Godha - - - 5.40 - - - - - - - 5.40
Mr. Pranay Godha - - - 0.60 - - - - - - - 0.60
Mr. Prashant Godha - - - 0.60 - - - - - - - 0.60
Corporate guarantee/Security given
to bank/NBFC
Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC. 3291 22.70 - - - - - - - -l 3291 22.70
Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. - - - - 11.00 - - - - - 11.00 -
Total 33.27 24.36 12.29 18.62 11.00 - - - 1.15 6.45 57.71 49.43
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

To the Members of Ipca Laboratories Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Ipca Laboratories Limited (“the Holding Company”), and
its subsidiaries, (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) and its joint venture and its associates,
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group, its joint venture and its associates as at March 31, 2021 and their consolidated profit (including other
comprehensive income), their consolidated statement of changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters:

Sr. | Key Audit Matters (KAMs) How the KAMs were addressed in our audit
No
1. |Inventory Valuation Our procedures included, amongst others:

Refer note (D)(g) of the Statement of Significant Accounting|®  We attended stock counts to identify whether any
Policies. inventory was obsolete;

The Holding Company manufactures and sells pharmaceutical |®  We assessed the basis for the inventory valuation, the
products which carry shelf life. As a result, significant level consistency in policy and the rationale in its application;
of judgement is involved in estimating inventory valuation.
Judgement is required to assess the appropriate net realisable |®  We tested the accuracy of the ageing of inventories based

value for short dated pharmaceutical products. Such on system generated reports;
judgements include management expectations for future
sales and inventory liquidation plans. e  Wetested the arithmetical accuracy of valuation files; and

e  Wereviewed product-wise historical data relating to sales
return etc. and also its impact on valuation.

119



120

©lipca

dose of life

Refer note (D)(b) of the Statement of Significant Accounting
Policies.

There is a risk of impairment on the Group property, plant and
equipment (PPE) on account of inherent nature of the PPE and
the business environment in which the Group operates. As
on March 31, 2021 the carrying amount of PPE was % 1947.34
crores which represent 32.09% of total assets.

The Management determines at the end of each reporting
period the existence of any objective evidence that the Group
PPE may be impaired. If there are indicators of impairment of
class of assets, the deficit between the recoverable amount
of the PPE and its carrying amount would be recognised as
impairment loss in profit or loss.

The process of identifying indicators of impairment and
determining the recoverable amount of the PPE by the
Management requires significant judgement and estimation.
The determination of the recoverable amounts inter alia
requires estimates of forecasted revenues, growth rates, profit
margins, tax rates and discount rates.

Sr. | Key Audit Matters (KAMs) How the KAMs were addressed in our audit
No
2. | Impairment of Property, plant & equipment e We assessed the determination of the recoverable

amount of the PPE based on our understanding of
the nature of the Group business and the economic
environment surrounding its operations.

e  We reviewed the Group historical performances and
held discussions with the Management to understand
their assessment of the Group future performance. This
included obtaining an understanding of management’s
planned strategies around business expansion and
revenue growth strategies.

e We also reviewed performance of individual units and
carried out analytical review of relevant data.

e We assessed management’s estimates applied in the
value-in-use model and compared them against historical
performance and tested the arithmetical accuracy.

e We evaluated the sensitivity of the outcomes by
considering the downside scenarios against changes to
the key assumptions.

e  We also assessed the adequacy of the related disclosures
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Our Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in Annual Report, but does not include the Consolidated Financial Statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this report.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit,
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to
Those Charged with Governance and take appropriate actions in accordance with Standards on Auditing.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group
including its Joint Venture and Associates in accordance with the Ind AS, other accounting principles generally accepted in India and relevant
provisions of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture and its associates
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of
the Group and its joint venture and its associates and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint
venture and its associates are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates and its joint venture to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint venture and its associates are responsible for
overseeing the financials reporting process of the Group and its joint venture and its associates.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e  [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

e  Concludeonthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Group and its joint venture and its associates to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group and its joint venture and its associates to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group and its joint venture and its associates to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of such entities included
in the Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of the misstatement in the Consolidated Financial Statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Consolidated Financial Statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and evaluating the
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effects of any identified misstatements in the Consolidated Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeqguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements of eight subsidiaries (including six foreign subsidiaries) which reflect total assets of ¥ 716.64
crores as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of ¥ 321.42 crores, total net loss of ¥ 0.51 crores, total comprehensive loss of ¥ 2.90 crores
and net cash inflows of ¥ 34.51 crores for the year ended on that date and financial statements of one joint venture and two associates,
where the Group’s share of net loss of ¥ 7.65 crores and total comprehensive loss of ¥ 7.54 crores for the year ended March 31, 2021,
as considered in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements, have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us.

In addition, we did not audit the financial statements of three foreign subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total assets of
% 0.64 crores as at March 31, 2021, total revenue of ¥ 0.01 crores, total net loss of ¥ 0.01 crores, total comprehensive income of ¥ 0.10
crores and net cash inflows of ¥ 0.00 crores for the year ended March 31, 2021, as considered in the preparation of the Consolidated
Financial Statements. The financial statements and financial information of these subsidiaries are unaudited and have been certified
by the Management.

The Management of the Company has also furnished us details of adjustments that are required in case of financial statements
of foreign subsidiaries so as to make these financial statements fit for consolidation. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial
Statements, in so far as it relates to aforesaid subsidiaries, joint venture and associates, is based solely on the report of such other
auditors and such certification from the Management. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us
by the Management of the Company, financial statements of three unaudited subsidiaries and adjustments that are required so as to
make financial statements of foreign subsidiaries fit for consolidation are not material to the Group.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:
1. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements;

(b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
have been kept by the Holding Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the relevant books of account, workings and records maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Statements;

(d) Inour opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read
with relevant rules issued thereunder and relevant provisions of the Act;

(e)  On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2021
and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its
subsidiaries, joint venture and its associates incorporated in India, none of the Directors of the Group companies and its
joint venture and its associates company incorporated in India are disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed
as a Director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding
Company, its subsidiaries, joint venture and associates incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, we give our separate Report in “Annexure A" Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements;

(g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of section
197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act; and

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors of subsidiaries, joint venture and associates,
as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements has disclosed the impact of the pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group, its joint venture and its associates. Refer note no 34 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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(i) The Group, its joint venture and its associates has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Group, its joint venture and its associates.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Dated: May 28, 2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIK5734
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 2(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of our Independent
Auditor’s report of even date, to the members of the Company on the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2021

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements under section 143(3)(i) of the Act

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Holding Company as of and for the year ended
March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ipca Laboratories Limited
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries, its joint venture and its associates, which are companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries, its joint venture and its associates, which are companies incorporated
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference to Consolidated Financial
Statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2021, based on the internal control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiaries, joint venture and associates, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (“Guidance Note”) issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries, joint venture and associates, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system with
reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of their report
referred to in the Other Matter paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding
Company'’s internal financial control system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors
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of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls
with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to subsidiaries, associates and joint venture, which are
companies incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies.

For G. M. Kapadia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Place: Mumbai Membership No. 039569
Dated: May 28, 2021 UDIN: 21039569AAAAIK5734
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IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

Particulars

ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(@) Property, plant & equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Goodwill on consolidation
(d) Goodwill on acquisition
(e) Otherintangible assets
(f) Intangible assets under development
(9) Right of use asset
(h) Investment accounted for using the equity method
(i) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(i) Loans
(iii) Others
(j) Deferred tax assets (net)
(k) Other non-current assets
Total Non-current assets
2. Current assets
(@) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(ii)  Trade receivables
(iiiy  Cash and cash equivalents
(iv)  Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi)  Others
c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets
Total current assets
Total Assets

EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
(@) Equity share capital
(b) Share Warrants
(c) Otherequity

Equity attributable to shareholders of the holding Company

Non-controlling interests
Total Equity
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i)  Lease Liability
(iii)  Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-current liabilities
2. Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i)  Lease Liability
(iii)  Trade payables :
Total dues of Micro & small enterprises
Total dues of Others
(iv)  Other financial liabilities
(b) Current tax liabilities (net)
(c) Provisions
(d) Other current liabilities
Total Current liabilities
Total Equity and Liabilities

Note As at As at
ref. March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(X Crores) (X Crores)
1 1,947.34 1,896.32
183.66 70.80
38.83 38.83
1A 7.77 23.61
1B 63.04 73.84
51.16 62.48
31 15.45 26.13
77.26 33.66
2A 34.17 37.65
3 139.47 99.41
4 24.30 11.22
15 1.95 2.01
5 47.00 28.16
2,631.40 2,404.12
6 1,594.81 1,323.12
2B 393.83 238.25
7 811.75 895.20
8 165.97 58.46
9 199.10 122.46
3 2.47 2.95
4 128.19 81.04
5 140.84 134.23
3,436.96 2,855.71
6,068.36 5,259.83
10 25.37 25.27
10A - 11.94
11 4,676.28 3,590.27
4,701.65 3,627.48
14.53 13.63
4,716.18 3,641.11
12 36.54 102.97
31 8.25 13.02
13 - -
14 38.56 32.23
15 133.55 141.82
16 2.15 2.26
219.05 292.30
17 149.20 310.95
31 4.80 5.87
18

64.03 8.28
602.14 601.57
13 135.69 139.37
19 11.50 7.35
14 103.14 93.70
16 62.63 159.33
1,133.13 1,326.42
6,068.36 5,259.83

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes form part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. 39569
Mumbai

May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Premchand Godha

Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Ajit Kumar Jain

Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)
Pranay Godha

Executive Director (DIN 00016525)

Prashant Godha

Executive Director (DIN 00012759)

Harish P. Kamath

Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)

Mumbai

May 28, 2021



IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars

1 Revenue from operations
[} Other income
1] Total income (1 +11)
1\ Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Employee benefit expenses
Finance cost
Depreciation & amortisation
Other expenses
Total expenses (IV)
Vv Profit from ordinary activity before share of profit of associate & joint
venture, exceptional item & tax (l1I-1V)
VI Share of profit / (loss) of Associates & Joint venture accounted by using the equity
method
VIl Profit before exceptional items and tax (V+VI)
VIIl  Exceptional items
IX Profit before tax (VII-VIII)
X Tax expense
1. Current tax
2. Short/ (excess) provision of taxes for earlier years
3. Deferred tax liability / (asset) incl. MAT credit
Xi Profit for the period (IX-X)
Xll  Other comprehensive income
A (i)  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :
Actuarial gain/ (loss)
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss
B (i)  Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss :
Exchange difference in translating the financial
statement of foreign operation
Gain/(loss) on cash flow hedge
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
C Share of OCl from investment in associates
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax
Xlll  Total comprehensive income for the year (XI+XII)
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest- profit/(loss)

Other comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest- profit/(loss)

Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest- profit/(loss)

XIV  Earnings per equity share (Face value of ¥ 2/- each) :
Basic (in¥)
Diluted (in¥)

Annual Report 2020-21

Note 2020-21 2019-20

Ref (X Crores) (% Crores)
20 5,419.99 4,648.71
21 62.84 67.00
5,482.83 4,715.71
22 1,597.14 1,460.37
23 325.95 359.88
24 (194.79) (176.12)
25 1,013.57 921.23
26 9.04 16.50
27 209.17 210.50
28 1,133.77 1,176.65
4,093.85 3,969.01
1,388.98 746.70
(7.70) (7.81)
1,381.28 738.89
1,381.28 738.89

248.65 140.59
(0.01) 0.52
(8.50) 240.14 (5.78) 135.33
1,141.14 603.56
(0.14) (7.40)
0.02 1.30
(0.99) 11.10
0.65 (1.47)
(0.05) 0.36
0.11 (0.36)
(0.40) 3.53
1,140.74 607.09
1,140.01 606.32
1.13 (2.76)
1,141.14 603.56
(0.17) 2.68
__ (0.23) _ 085
(0.40) 3.53
1,139.84 609.00
0.90 (1.91)
1,140.74 607.09
30

90.11 47.77
90.11 47.73

Statement of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes form part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. 39569
Mumbai

May 28, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Premchand Godha

Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Ajit Kumar Jain
Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)
Pranay Godha
Executive Director (DIN 00016525)
Prashant Godha
Executive Director (DIN 00012759)
Harish P. Kamath

Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)

Mumbai
May 28, 2021
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IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the Period ended 31st March, 2021

2020-21 2019-20
( in Crores) (% in Crores)
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
1) Net profit before taxation and extraordinary item 1,381.28 738.89

Adjustments for :

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expense 209.17 210.50

(Profit) / Loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment - (7.81)

Share of (Profit) / Loss of Associates & Joint venture accounted by using the equity method 7.70 7.81

Net gain on financial asset through FVTPL 0.53 (0.68)

Property, plant & equipment scrapped/ transferred 2.86 1.42

Sundry balances written off/(back) (1.48) (2.60)

Provision for doubtful debts / advances 0.25 4.56

Bad debts written off 0.94 0.44

Impairment of Intangible Asset 15.84 27.64

Unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss (17.13) 21.89

Interest income (36.95) (32.30)

Interest expense 9.04 190.77 16.50 247.37
2) Operating profit before working capital changes 1,572.05 986.26

Decrease / (Increase) in inventories (271.69) (239.86)

Decrease / (increase) in Trade Receivables 96.75 (187.41)

Decrease / (increase) in Other Financial assets (18.08) 4.13

Decrease / (increase) in Other assets (5.84) 7.50

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables 55.95 68.28

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial liabilities (12.24) (20.81)

Increase / (Decrease) in Other liabilities (96.81) 82.71

Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 15.63  (236.33) 21.77 _ (263.69)
3) Cash generated from operation 1,335.72 722.57

Income tax paid (net) (245.59 (152.22)

Net cash from operating activities 1,090.13 570.35

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property, plant & equipment including capital Work in progress and intangible assets ~ (361.55) (306.28)

Consideration towards Business combination - (108.72)

Investment in Associates (47.72) (49.43)

Loan (given) / recovered - Associate (34.00) 14.85

Loan (given) / recovered - Joint Venture 0.60 1.20

Proceeds from Sale of Property,Plant and Equipment 2.57 12.65

Movement in other bank balances (102.37) (116.62)

Interest received 21.78 42.70

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (520.69) (509.65)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Issue of Share Capital 35.81 -

Issue of Share warrant - 11.94

Increase / (decrease) in short term borrowings (160.37) 91.30

Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2.83 24.58

Repayment of long-term borrowings (68.25) (122.19)

Payment of principal portion of Lease liability (5.90) (4.50)

Payment of Interest portion of Lease liability (1.49) (1.58)

Interest paid (6.92) (14.43)

Dividend & dividend tax paid (101.53) (121.66)

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (305.82 (136.54)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 263.62 (75.84)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 295.39 370.92
Movement due to Business Acquisition - 0.31
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 559.01 295.39
Components of cash & cash equivalents :

Cash and cheques on hand 0.39 0.48
Balance with banks 165.58 57.98
Mutual Funds 393.83 238.25

Less : Fair value (gain) / loss on Mutual funds (0.79) 393.04 (1.32) 236.93

As per our report of even date attached
For G. M. Kapadia & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 104767W

Atul Shah

Partner

Membership No. 39569
Mumbai

May 28, 2021

559.01 295.39

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Premchand Godha

Chairman & Managing Director (DIN 00012691)
Ajit Kumar Jain

Joint Managing Director & CFO (DIN 00012657)
Pranay Godha

Executive Director (DIN 00016525)

Prashant Godha

Executive Director (DIN 00012759)

Harish P. Kamath

Company Secretary (ACS - 6792)

Mumbai

May 28, 2021
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IPCA LABORATORIES LIMITED
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes

(A) Corporate Information

(B)

Ipca Laboratories Limited (CIN L24239MH1949PLC007837) incorporated in the year 1949, is a integrated pharmaceutical company
manufacturing and marketing over 350 formulations and 80 APIs covering various therapeutic segments. The products of the Company
are sold in over 100 countries across the globe. The Company has 17 manufacturing units in India manufacturing APIs and formulations
for the world market.

Authorization of consolidated financial statement

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on May 28, 2021.

Principles of Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements relates to the Company, and its various Subsidiaries (the holding and subsidiaries together referred
to as“The Group’, Associates and its Joint Venture. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard - 110 “Consolidated Financial Statement’, Indian Accounting Standard - 28 “Investment in Associate and Joint
Venture” of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendment) Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
following basis: -

The consolidated financial statements of the Group companies are consolidated on a line-by-line basis and intra-group balances and
transactions including unrealized gain/loss from such transactions are eliminated upon consolidation. These consolidated financial
statements are prepared by applying uniform accounting policies in use at the Group. Non-controlling interests which represent part of
the net profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries that are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by the company, are excluded.

In case of foreign subsidiaries, revenue items are consolidated at average rate prevailing during the year. All Assets and Liabilities are
converted at the rates prevailing at the end of the year. Exchange gain or loss on conversion arising on consolidation is recognized under
foreign currency translation reserve.

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. Investments in associates and Joint Venture
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting as per Indian Accounting Standard - 28 “Investment in Associate and Joint
Venture”. The investment is initially recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s
share of the profit or loss of the investee after the acquisition date. The Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill identified on
acquisition.

The consolidated financial statements of the Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture used in consolidation are drawn up to the same
reporting date as that of the Company i.e. 315 March.

The difference between the cost to the Company of its investments in the subsidiary / associates / joint venture over the Company’s
portion of equity is recognized in the financial statement as Goodwill on consolidation or Capital Reserve.

The list of subsidiary companies, associates and joint venture included in consolidation and Group Company’s holding therein are as under: -

Name of the Companies Relationship | Countryof | % of ultimate holding
Incorporation | 2020-21 2019-20

Ipca Pharmaceuticals, Inc. USA Subsidiary USA 100.00 100.00

Ipca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd. Subsidiary UK 100.00 100.00

Ipca Pharma Nigeria Ltd. Subsidiary Nigeria 100.00 100.00

Ipca Pharma (Australia) Pty.Ltd. Subsidiary Australia 100.00 100.00

Ipca Pharmaceuticals Ltd.,SA de CV Subsidiary Mexico 100.00 100.00

Tonira Exports Ltd. Subsidiary India 100.00 100.00

Ramdev Chemical Pvt. Ltd Subsidiary India 100.00 100.00

Onyx Scientific Ltd. (Subsidiary of Ipca Laboratories (U.K.) Ltd.) Step down UK 100.00 100.00
subsidiary

Pisgah Laboratories Inc.(Subsidiary of Ipca Laboratories Inc, USA) Step down USA 100.00 100.00
subsidiary

Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC. (Subsidiary of Ipca Laboratories Inc, USA) Step down USA 80.00 80.00
subsidiary

Ipca Pharma (NZ) Pty. Ltd. (Subsidiary of Ipca Pharma (Australia) Pty.Ltd.) Step down New Zealand 100.00 100.00
subsidiary

Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Joint Venture India 48.99 48.99

CCPL Software Private Ltd.# Associate India 28.95 28.95

Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. Associate India 39.26 19.26

Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate India 44.67 39.69

# cost fully written off in the books.
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(C) Basis of Preparation

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
a) Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at fair value; and
b) Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Use of Judgements, Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions. These estimates, judgements and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates
could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made
as management becomes aware of circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statement in the period in which changes are made and if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

The financial statements require management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosures of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods .

i. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

ii  Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit plans, compensated absences and the present value of the defined benefit obligations
are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These interalia include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in
India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the
post-employment benefit obligation. For plans operated outside India, the management considers the interest rates of high
quality corporate bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation with at least an
‘AA’rating or above, as set by an internationally acknowledged rating agency, and extrapolated as needed along the yield curve
to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality.
Those having excessive credit spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis
that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the respective countries.

iii. Useful lives of Property, plant and equipment

The group reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment
may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods.

iv. Impairment of Property, plant and equipment

For property, plant and equipment and intangibles an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or previously recognised impairment losses no
longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU's recoverable amount. A
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

131



132

2R

Ca

dose of life

V.

vi.

vii.

viii.

Impairment of investment

For determining whether the investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are impaired requires an
estimate in the value in use of investments. In considering the value in use, the Directors have estimated the future
cash flow, capacity utilization, operating margins and other factors of the underlying businesses / operations of the
investee companies. Any subsequent changes to the cash flows due to changes in the above mentioned factors could
impact the carrying value of investments.

Inventories

The Group estimates the net realisable value (NRV) of its inventories by taking into account estimated selling price,
estimated cost of completion, estimated costs necessary to make the sale, obsolescence considering the past trend.
Inventories are written down to NRV where such NRV is lower than their cost.

Recognition and measurement of other Provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions is based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of
resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at the closing date. The actual outflow of resources at a
future date may therefore, vary from the amount included in other provisions.

Impairment of Goodwill

The Company estimates the value-in-use of the cash generating units (CGUs) based on the future cash flows after
considering current economic conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rate and anticipated
future economic and regulatory conditions. The estimated cash flows are developed using internal forecasts. The
discount rates used for the CGUs represent the weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins.

Leases

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires significant judgement. The Company uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term
(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate.

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered
by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In assessing
whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to
terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Company
to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The discount rate is
generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with
similar characteristics.

D) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

Current and Non-current Classification

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification.

An asset is current when :

It is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle or
It is held primarily for the purpose of trading or
It is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

It is cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when :

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle or
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading or

Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or



(b)

(c)
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There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months after the reporting
period

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Property, Plant and Equipment

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Cost of acquisition comprises its purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable
taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any
trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Long-term lease arrangements of land are treated as Property, plant and equipment, in case such arrangements result
in transfer of control and the present value of the lease payments is likely to represent substantially all of the fair value
of the land.

Stores and spares which meet the definition of Property, plant and equipment and satisfy the recognition criteria of
Ind AS 16 are capitalised as Property, Plant and Equipment.

Capital Work In Progress represents expenditure incurred on capital assets that are under construction or are pending
capitalisation and includes project expenses pending allocation. Project expenses pending allocation are apportioned
to the property, plant and equipment of the project proportionately on capitalisation.

Cost of borrowing for assets taking substantial time to be ready for use is capitalised for the period up to the time the
asset is ready for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised
when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

The residual useful life of Property, plant & equipment is reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if required in the
depreciation rates.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation on all assets of the Company is charged on straight line method over the useful life of assets mentioned in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or the useful life previously assessed by the management based on technical review
whichever is lower for the proportionate period of use during the year. Intangible assets are amortised over the economic
useful life estimated by the management.

The management’s estimated useful life/useful life as per schedule Il whichever is lower for the various tangible assets are as
follows.

Assets Estimated useful life (Years)
Leasehold land Period of Lease
Buildings 28t0 58
Roads 3to 10
Plant and equipment and R&D equipments 9to 22
Office and other equipments 5
Computers 3to6
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 6to8
Leasehold improvements Period of Lease
Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisition

Goodwill on acquisition represents excess of consideration paid for acquisition of business over the fair value of net assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested for impairment at each reporting date.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

Goodwill on consolidation

Goodwill on consolidation represents excess cost of investment over the company’s share of equity that is carried in balance
sheet and is tested for impairment at each reporting date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their
respective individual estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are available for use. The estimated
useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition, and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry, and known technological advances), and the level
of maintenance expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset. Amortization methods and useful
lives are reviewed periodically including at each financial year end.

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is charged to the Statement of profit and loss. Development costs of products are
also charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the year it is incurred, unless product’s technological feasibility as well as other
related conditions have been established, in which case such expenditures are capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises of
expenditure that can be directly attributed or allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis for creating, producing and making
the asset ready for its intended use. Property, plant and equipment utilised for research and development are capitalised and
depreciated in accordance with the policies stated for Property, plant and equipment.

Expenditure on in-licensed development activities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of
new or substantially improved products and processes, is capitalised, if the cost can be reliably measured, the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Company has sufficient resources to complete the development and to use and
sell the asset.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Product development costs are expensed as incurred unless technical and commercial
feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic benefits are probable. The costs which can be capitalized include the
cost of material, direct labour, overhead costs that are directly attributable to preparing the asset for its intended use.

The management has estimated the economic useful life for the various intangible assets as follows.

Assets Estimated useful life (Years)
Brands and trademarks 4

Technical know how 4to 10

Software for internal use 4

Research and Development 7

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets under development

The Company capitalises acquired intangible asset under development in accordance with the accounting policy. In
determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes assumptions regarding the expected future cash
generation, discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits. The innovative nature of the product gives
rise to some uncertainty as to whether the final approval for the products will be obtained.

Borrowings

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Impairment of Assets

Carrying amount of Tangible assets, Intangible assets, Investments in Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates (which are
carried at cost) are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less
costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used.
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For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or Company’s assets (cash-generating units).
Non- financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the
end of each reporting period.

Inventories
Items of inventories are valued at lower of cost or estimated net realisable value as given below.

Raw Materials and Packing Materials Lower of cost and Net realisable value. However materials and other items held for
use in the production are not written down below cost if the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is
determined on First in First out basis.

Work-in-progress and Finished Goods At lower of cost (material cost net of refundable taxes, labour cost and all
manufacturing overheads) and net realisable value.

Traded Goods Traded Goods are valued at lower of purchase cost and net realisble value.

Stores and Spares Stores and spare parts are valued at lower of purchase cost computed on First in First

out method and net realisble value.

The factors that the Company considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory
in determining net realisable value include ageing of inventory, estimated shelf life, price changes, introduction of competitive
new products and such other related factors.

Cost in case of Raw materials and Packing materials, Stores and Spares and Traded Goods include purchase cost net of refundable
taxes and other overhead incurred in bringing such items of inventory to its present location and condition.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, demand deposits in banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less. Bank overdrafts are shown within bank borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Provisions, Contingent liabilities & contingent assets
Provision

A Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be
estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably
will not, require an outflow of resources. Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the
likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which
the change occurs.

Retirement and Other employee benefits
Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as
an expense, when an employee renders the related service.

Gratuity

Gratuity, a post employment defined benefit obligation is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation made at the end of each
year/period on projected unit credit method.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset.
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Compensated Absences

The Company has a policy on compensated absences which are both accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The
expected cost of accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent
actuary at each balance sheet date using Projected Unit Credit Method on the additional amount expected to be paid/
availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the balance sheet date. Expense on non-accumulating
compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur.

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages etc. and the expected cost of ex-gratia, bonus and performance incentive are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service. A liability is recognised for the amount expected
to be paid when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by
the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Foreign Currencies
Transactions and Balances:

(i)  The functional currency of the Company is the Indian rupee. These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Indian rupees.

(i) Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate on the date of transaction where the
settlement of such transactions are taking place at a later date.The exchange gain/loss on settlement / negotiation
during the year is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In case of advance payment for purchase of assets/
goods/services and advance receipt against sales of products/services, all such purchase/sales transaction are
recorded at the rate at which such advances are paid/received.

(iii) Foreign currency monetary transactions remaining unsettled at the end of the year are converted at year-end rates.
The resultant gain or loss is accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(iv) Non Monetary items that are measured at historical cost denominated in foreign currency are translated using
exchange rate at the date of transaction.

(v) For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of Group’s foreign
operations, are translated to the Indian Rupees at exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. The income
and expenses of such foreign operations are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Resultant foreign
currency differences are recognized in other comprehensive income / (loss) and presented within equity as part of
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve or attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
o Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

Financial Instruments
(i) Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets and liabilities are recognised initially at fair value.

In the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset is treated as cost of acquisition. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

. Debt instruments at amortised cost

. Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
. Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, except for
contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying
amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at
amortised cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk. Note 7 details how the entity determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. For
trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables.

De-recognition of Financial Instruments
A financial asset is de-recognised only when

. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

. Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation
to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the group evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is de-recognised. Where the entity has not
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not de-recognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is de-recognised if the group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where
the group retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing
involvement in the financial asset.

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is de-recognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Accounting
Initial Recognition and Subsequent Measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward
commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind AS 109 are recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Cash Flow Hedge

The company designates certain foreign exchange forward and options contracts as cash flow hedges to mitigate the risk
of foreign exchange exposure on highly probable forecast cash transactions.

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of
the derivative is recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow hedging reserve. Any
ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognized immediately in the net profit in the statement
of profit and loss. If the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, then hedge accounting is
discontinued prospectively. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, the cumulative gain or
loss on the hedging instrument recognized in cash flow hedging reserve till the period the hedge was effective remains in
cash flow hedging reserve until the forecasted transaction occurs. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the
cash flow hedging reserve is transferred to the net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss upon the occurrence of the
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related forecasted transaction. If the forecasted transaction is no longer expected to occur, then the amount accumulated
in cash flow hedging reserve is reclassified to net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(n) Revenue Recognition

(i)  The Group derives revenues primarily from sale of products and services. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised net
of returns, product expiry claims and discounts.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligations upon transfer of control of promised products or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those
products or services.

To recognize revenues, the Group applies the following five step approach:

1. Identify the contract with a customer;

2. Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

3. Determine the transaction price;

4.  Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

5. Recognize revenues when a performance obligation is satisfied.

Performance obligation may be satisfied over time or at a point in time. Performance obligations satisfied over time if
any one of the following criteria is met. In such cases, revenue is recognized over time.

1. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group performance; or

2. The Group performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

3.  The Group performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

Where Revenue is recognized over time, the amount of revenue is determined on the basis of contract costs incurred
in relation to estimated contract expenses.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

The Group presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.

(i) In case of export benefits which are in the nature of neutralisation of duties and taxes are grouped under material
costs. Other export incentives are grouped under other operating revenue.

(iii) Revenue in respect of insurance/other claims, commission, etc. are recognised only when it is reasonably certain that
the ultimate collection will be made.

(iv) For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR).

(o) Taxes
Tax expenses comprise Current Tax and Deferred Tax:

(i) CurrentTax:

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the company and its
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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(ii) Deferred Tax:

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the standalone consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is
also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused
tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(ifi) MAT Credit:
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as current tax. The Company
recognises MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried
forward. The MAT credit to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the Company will utilise the credit is recognised
in the Statement of Profit and Loss and corresponding debit is done to the Deferred Tax Asset as unused tax credit.

Leases
Company as a lessee

The group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract involves the
use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. For these short-term leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on
a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-
of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets as below.

Right-of-use assets

The group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease Liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU asset.

Lease liabilities and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss before OCI for the year by the weighted average number
of equity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or
loss before OCI for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding
during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Dividend Distribution

Dividend distribution to the Holding Company’s equity holders is recognized as a liability in the Holding Company’s annual
accounts in the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s equity holders.

Share-based payment transactions

Employees Stock Options Plans (“ESOPs"): The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an
employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees become unconditionally
entitled to the options. The expense is recorded for each separately vesting portion of the award as if the award was,
in substance, multiple awards. The increase in equity recognized in connection with share based payment transaction is
presented as a separate component in equity under“Employee Stock Options Outstanding reserve”. The amount recognized
as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of stock options that vest.

Business combinations:

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the Company elects whether it measures the non-controlling
interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition
costs which are administrative in nature are expensed out. After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is,
from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. Where goodwill
forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed off, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed off is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss
on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed off in this circumstance is measured based on the relative values of the
operation disposed off and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. Common control business combinations
include transactions, such as transfer of subsidiaries or businesses, between entities within a Group. Business combinations
involving entities or businesses under common control are accounted for using the pooling of interests method. Under
pooling of interest method, the assets and liabilities of the combining entities are reflected at their carrying amounts, the
only adjustments that are made are to harmonise accounting policies. The financial information in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of prior periods are restated as if the business combination had occurred from the beginning of the
preceding period in the consolidated financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination. However,
if business combination had occurred after that date, the prior period information is restated only from that date. The
difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital issued plus any additional consideration in the form of cash
or other assets and the amount of share capital of the transferor is transferred to capital reserve and presented separately
from other capital reserves with disclosure of its nature and purpose in the notes .

Government Grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised in statement of profit and loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

The above criteria is also used for recognition of incentives under various scheme notified by the Government.

When the grant relates to an asset, the Company deducts such grant amount from the carrying amount of the asset.

Recent Pronouncements

On March 24,2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through a notification amended Schedule Il to the Companies
Act, 2013. The amendments are applicable from April 1,2021.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate the same to give effect to them as required by law.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1A : Goodwill

The Goodwill represents the excess of the consideration paid over the fair value of assets and liabilities of industrial undertaking

situated at Mahad and Aurangabad. This Goodwill is being tested for impairment at each balance sheet date.

During the year, provision for impairment of I 15.84 crores has been made.

1B: Other Intangible Assets

(X Crores)
Particulars Software Brand / Know-How | Software - Product Total
Trade Mark R&D Related
Intangible
GROSS BLOCK
As on April 1,2019 30.72 5.90 50.63 3.49 104.36 195.10
Additions 8.18 - 7.50 0.01 5.84 21.53
Disposals/Adjustments 0.04 - 3.85 (0.04) (38.23) (34.38)
Acquisition through business combinations - - 0.05 - - 0.05
As on March 31, 2020 38.94 5.90 62.03 3.46 71.97 182.30
Additions 10.17 - - 0.26 0.20 10.63
Disposals/Adjustments - (0.05) (5.77) - (4.74) (10.56)
As on March 31, 2021 49.11 5.85 56.26 3.72 67.43 182.37
Accumulated depreciation / Amortisation
As on April 1,2019 24.26 5.44 12.72 2.38 3.59 48.39
Acquisition through business combinations - - 0.01 - - 0.01
Impairment For the year 2019-20 - - 27.64 - - 27.64
For the year 2019-20 4.00 - 6.45 0.49 17.35 28.29
Disposals/Adjustments 0.03 - 2.63 (0.03) 1.50 413
As on March 31, 2020 28.29 5.44 49.45 2.84 22.44 108.46
For the year 2020-21 533 = 2.63 0.38 8.52 16.86
Disposals/Adjustments - - (5.36) - (0.63) (5.99)
As on March 31, 2021 33.62 5.44 46.72 3.22 30.33 119.33
Net Block as on March 31, 2020 10.65 0.46 12.58 0.62 49.53 73.84
Net Block as on March 31, 2021 15.49 0.41 9.54 0.50 37.10 63.04
Range of remaining period of amortisation as at March 31, 2021 of Intangible assets is as below :
(X Crores)
Assets Range of remaining period of amortisation
<5year 6-10 year >10 year Net Block
Software 15.49 - - 15.49
Brand / Trade Mark 0.41 - - 0.41
Know-How 5.15 4.39 = 9.54
Software - R&D 0.50 - - 0.50
Product Related Intangible - 37.10 - 37.10
Total 21.55 41.49 = 63.04
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Range of remaining period of amortisation as at March 31, 2020 of Intangible assets is as below :

(X Crores)
Assets Range of remaining period of amortisation
<5year 6-10 year >10 year Net Block
Software 10.65 - - 10.65
Brand / Trade Mark 0.46 - - 0.46
Know-How 7.38 5.20 - 12.58
Software - R&D 0.62 - - 0.62
Product Related Intangible - 49.53 - 49.53
Total 19.11 54.73 - 73.84
2 Financial Assets - Investments
Investments in Joint Venture / Associate at Cost
(X Crores)
Sr. | Particulars As at As at
no. March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
1 | Equity instrument in Joint Venture 5.65 6.22
2 | Equity instrumentin Associates 71.61 27.44
Total 77.26 33.66
2A | Other Non-Current Investments
Investment in Share Warrants in Associates 417 7.65
Investment in Preference shares in Associates 30.00 30.00
Total 34.17 37.65
2B | Current Investments
Investment in Mutual fund 393.83 238.25
Total 393.83 238.25
2 Investmentin Joint Venture / Associate
Sr. | Name of the body corporate Relationship Face value Extent of holding (%) R Crores)
no. No. of shares
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Non-Current Investment
Investments at cost
(1) | Unquoted equity shares
i) | Investment in equity instruments (at cost)
1 | Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Joint Venture 100 48.99% 48.99% 5.65 6.22
5,33,000 5,33,000
2 | CCPL Software Pvt.Ltd. # Associate 100 28.95% 28.95% - -
55,000 55,000
3 | Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. Associate 10 39.26% 19.26% 55.00 12.35
15,90,000 7,80,000
Total (i) 60.65 18.57
ii) | Investment in preference shares (at cost)
1 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 100 100.00% 100.00% 30.00 30.00
(9% Non convertible, 30,00,000 30,00,000
Redeemable & Non Cumulative
Preference shares)
Total (ii) 30.00 30.00
iii) |Investment in convertible Share Warrants (partly paid) (at cost)
1 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 10 19,40,000 35,60,000 4.17 7.65
Total (iii) 4.17 7.65
Total unquoted investments 94.82 56.22
(i+ii+iii)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

no.

Sr. | Name of the body corporate Relationship Face value Extent of holding (%) R Crores)

No. of shares

As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

(2) | Quoted equity shares

Investment in equity instruments (at cost)

1 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. Associate 10 44.67% 39.69% 16.61 15.09
87,65,195 71,45,195

Total quoted investments 16.61 15.09

Total Non Current Investments in Equity Instruments at cost (1(i)+2) 77.26 33.66

# Cost fully written off in books

i)  Aggregate value of investments

(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 16.61 15.09
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 77.88 58.52
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 94.82 56.22

ii) Details of Investments in Joint Venture / Associates at Cost

a)

b)

<)

Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd., India

During the year 2013-14 the Company had acquired 49.02% of shares in Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Avik is manufacturing APIs,
primarily Cortico Steroids and Hormones since 1980. Avik is pioneer in the manufacturing of steroids in India. Avik's two
manufacturing facilities are located at Vapi, Gujarat. During the year 2018-19, the Company has been allotted 33,000 shares under
right issue. Now Company’s holding in Avik Pharma is 48.99%.

Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd., India

Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. was incorporated in 2010 and is headquartered in Mumbai, India. The Company has acquired shareholding
tothe extent of 19.26% in Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. during the year 2010-11.Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. is engaged in the manufacturing
and marketing of neutraceuticals with its manufacturing unit situated in Sikkim. During the year Holding company has acquired
additional shareholding to the extent of 20%. Now Holding Company’s holding in Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. is 39.26%.

Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd., India

Krebs Biochemicals and Industries Ltd. was established in 1991. During the financial year 2014-15, Krebs Biochemicals and Industries
Ltd. became an associate company. Krebs undertakes both contract manufacturing for large pharmaceutical and multinational
companies and develops products for sale in global markets. Krebs is listed on NSE and BSE and is headquartered in Vishakapatnam,
India with manufacturing plants in Nellore and Vizag. Expertise and infrastructure in the areas of chemical synthesis, fermentation
and enzymatic technologies along with a focus on cost and quality makes Krebs a logical partner of the Holding Company for the
development and supply of products made using one or more of these technologies. During the year 2019-20 , Holding company
has been allotted 13,70,000 equity shares, resulting into increase in holding to the extent of 39.69%.During the year 2019-20 Holding
Company has also been allotted 30,00,000, 9% preference shares (non convertible, redeemable & non cumulative) of ¥ 100/- each and
35,60,000 of ¥ 10/- each convertible share warrants(partly paid). During the year 2019-20 Holding company has also been allotted
8,10,000 shares upon conversion of share warrants. Now Holding Company'’s holding in Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd is 44.67%.

2A Other Long term Investments

no.

Sr. | Name of the body corporate Relationship | Face Value No. Of Shares R Crores)

As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Investments at fair value through P&L (fully

paid)

Unquoted equity shares
1 | Gujarat Industrial Co-Op Bank Ltd.# Others 350 140 140 = -
2 | Narmada Clean Tech (NCT) # Others 10 35,000 35,000 - -
3 | BEIL Infrastructure Ltd. ## Others T10 1,134 - - -

Total - -

# Cost fully written off in books.
## Value of shares¥ 11,340/-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Aggregate value of investments

(% Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 | March 31, 2020

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments - -

2B Current Investments

Sr. | Name of the mutual fund scheme No. Of Units (% Crores)

no. As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020

Quoted investments

Investments at fair value through P&L (fully paid)

A. Investments in Mutual Fund
ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund- Growth 3,09,858.74 - 9.39 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund- Reg - Growth 39,19,137.50 25,51,814.77 129.06 81.08
Kotak Liquid Scheme - Growth 3,94,713.79 3,92,860.45 163.44 157.17
Nippon India Liquid Fund-Growth 1,00,268.03 - 50.11 -
INVESCO India Liquid fund- Growth 1,48,865.17 - 41.83 -
Total Current Investments 393.83 238.25

Aggregate value of investments

(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 393.83 238.25
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 393.83 238.25

Details of loans given, investments made, guarantees given and security provided covered under section 186(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given hereunder:

X Crores)
Sr. |Name of the party Nature Relation Purpose 2020-21 2019-20
no.
1 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Loan Given Associate | Loan (ICD) given to 34.00 11.50
asssociate for business
purpose
2 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Investment Associate | Equity Share 13.93 11.78
contribution
3 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Investment Associate | Preference Share - 30.00
contribution
4 | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd. | Investment Associate | Investmentin Share - 7.65
Warrant
5 | Trophic Wellness Pvt. Ltd. Investment Associate | Equity Share 37.27 -
contribution
6 | Avik Pharmaceutical Ltd. Loan Given | JointVenture |Loan given to Joint - 0.90
Venture for Plant
Expansion
Total 85.20 61.83

The disclosure under section 186(4) of the Act is made at transaction value before Ind AS effects.
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The associates and Joint venture of the Holding Company and the ownership interest for the year 2020-21 are as follows: -

(X Crores)

Name of the Associate CCPL Trophic Krebs Avik Total

Software Wellness | Biochemicals & | Pharmaceutical

Private Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Industries Ltd. Ltd.

% of Share held for 2019-20 28.95% 19.26% 39.69% 48.99%
Original cost of Investment 1.31 12.34 48.15 6.84 68.64
(Goodwiill)/Capital Reserve (0.79) 1.73 (46.44) (10.84)
Accumulated Profit/ (Loss) up to 31/03/2020 (0.51)* (0.02) (33.13) (0.69) (33.84)
Accumulated other comprehensive income up to - 0.03 0.07 0.07 0.17
31/03/2020
% of Share held for 2020-21 28.95% 39.26% 44.67% 48.99% -
Increase in Investment during the year 2020-21 - 37.26 13.93 - 51.19
(Goodwiill)/Capital Reserve increase during the year - (21.58) (15.36) - -
Share of Profit / (Loss) for the year 2020-21 * 5.39 (12.48) (0.61) (7.70)
Share of Other comprehensive income for the year - - 0.07 0.04 0.11
2020-21
Carrying value of Investment on 31/03/2021 NIL** 55.00 16.61 5.65 77.26

The associates and Joint venture of the Holding Company and the ownership interest for the year 2019-20 are as follows: -

(X Crores)

Name of the Associate CCPL Trophic Krebs Avik Total

Software Wellness | Biochemicals & | Pharmaceutical

Private Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Industries Ltd. Ltd.

% of Share held for 2018-19 28.95% 19.26% 34.73% 48.99%
Original cost of Investment 1.31 12.34 36.37 6.84 56.86
(Goodwill)/Capital Reserve (0.79) 1.73 (46.44) (10.84) -
Accumulated Profit/ (Loss) up to 31/03/2019 (0.51)* (3.01) (22.56) (0.46) (26.03)
Accumulated other comprehensive income up to - 0.03 0.52 (0.02) 0.53
31/03/2019
% of Share held for 2019-20 28.95% 19.26% 39.69% 48.99%
Increase in Investment during the year 2019-20 - - 11.78 - 11.78
Share of Profit / (Loss) for the year 2019-20 * 2.99 (10.57) (0.23) (7.81)
Share of Other comprehensive income for the year - - (0.45) 0.09 (0.36)
2019-20
Carrying value of Investment on 31/03/2020 NIL** 12.35 15.09 6.22 33.66

* No effect of share of loss from CCPL is taken since 01/04/2004 as the Company has no further commitment towards its share of loss in the

Associate.
**  Balance cost is fully written off in books.

3. Financial Assets - Loans (Unsecured)

(X Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Non Current Current Non Current Current
(@) | Deposits with others:
Considered good

- With related party 45.00 - 45.00 -
- With others 13.12 1.25 6.22 1.09
Which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - 0.02 -
58.12 1.25 51.24 1.09
Less : Allowance for doubtful deposits - - (0.02) -
58.12 1.25 51.22 1.09
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(% Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31,2020
Non Current Current Non Current Current
(b) | Loans to related parties - considered good 80.65 - 47.25 -
(c) | Others
Loans given to employees- considered good 0.70 1.22 0.94 1.86
Total 139.47 247 99.41 2.95

Note: No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Group, severally or jointly with any other person; or from firms where such
director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

Disclosures:

a) Details of loans and advances in the nature of loan to associates etc. as required under Schedule V(A)(2) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 :

(X Crores)
Sr. | Name of the company and relationship Balance as at Maximum Balance as at Maximum
No. March 31,2021 | outstanding | March 31,2020 | outstanding
during the during the
year 2020-21 year 2019-20
i) | Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Limited - Associate 66.47 66.47 32.47 56.47
ii) | Avik Pharmaceutical Limited - Joint Venture 14.18 14.78 14.78 16.61
Total 80.65 81.25 47.25 73.08
b) Investment by the loanee in the shares of the Holding Company:
None of the loanees have, per se , made investments in the shares of the Holding Company.
4. Financial Assets - Others
(X Crores)
A As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Non current Current Non Current Current
Advances to employees
- Considered good - 0.54 - 1.13
- Considered doubtful - 0.33 - 0.41
- 0.87 - 1.54
Less : Provision for doubtful advances - (0.33) - (0.41)
= 0.54 - 1.13
Deposit with others 0.78 - 0.71 -
Other income receivables 5.00 11.55 5.00 6.48
Claim receivables - 7.84 - 0.57
Duties and Taxes Refundable 1.22 78.15 293 68.13
Unbilled revenue - 3.94 - 4.06
Forward contract gain receivable = 15.00 - -
Hedging gain receivable - - - 0.30
Term deposits with :
- Banks kept as margin money # 17.30 = 2.58 -
- a NBFC ** - 11.00 - -
Lease Rent Receivable - - - 0.03
Royalty Receivable = 0.17 - 0.23
Supplies Refund Receivable - - - 0.11
Total 24.30 128.19 11.22 81.04

# Term deposits are lying with government authorities and / or as margin for guarantees issued by banks to various Authorities.

** Company has provided security by way of lien over the term deposit of ¥ 11.00 crores placed by the company with Bajaj finance limited
towards short term credit facility availed by Krebs Biochemicals & Industries Ltd., an Associate company.
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X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Non current Current Non Current Current
(i) |Capital advances 42.22 - 22.66 -
(Unsecured, considered good)
(i) | Prepaid expenses 1.95 18.74 1.38 14.62
(i) | Deposits with Govt. departments
- Considered good = 3.1 - 3.58
(iv) | Unutilised Indirect tax credit - 78.28 - 67.80
(v) | Advance to suppliers - 15.74 - 15.30
(vi) | Export benefits receivables - 19.85 - 29.03
(vii) | Advances to employees - 3.11 - 2.92
(viii) | Others 0.88 2.01 2.22 0.98
(ix) | Prepaid taxes (net of provisions) 1.95 - 1.90 -
Total 47.00 140.84 28.16 134.23

Note: No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Group, severally or jointly with any other person; or from firms

where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

Inventories
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
i) | Raw Materials
In hand 477.70 440.85
In transit 100.79 578.49 65.92 506.77
i) | Packing Materials
In hand 37.68 35.20
In transit 0.13 37.81 0.05 35.25
iii) | Work-in-progress 349.23 297.85
iv) |Finished goods
In hand
Own 467.15 365.06
Traded 109.14 576.29 76.58 441.64
In transit
Own 22.37 12.49
Traded 1.85 24.22 2.99 15.48
v) |Stores, spares and others 28.77 26.13
Total 1,594.81 1,323.12

All the above inventory other than stores & spares are hypothecated to the lenders as security towards short-term borrowings.

The disclosure of inventories recognised as an expense in accordance with paragraph 36 of Ind AS 2 is as follows:

(X Crores)

Particulars Asat As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
() | Amount of inventories recognised as an expense during the period. 1,781.15 1,686.93
(ii) | Amount of write - down of inventories recognised as an expense during the period. 6.17 539
Total 1,787.32 1,692.32
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Financial Assets - Trade receivables (Unsecured)

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Considered good 811.75 895.20
Which have significant increase in Credit Risk 0.81 1.00
Credit impaired 0.16 0.01
812.72 896.21
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivable (0.97) 811.75 (1.01) 895.20
Total 811.75 895.20

Note: No amount is due from any of the directors or officers of the Holding Company, severally or jointly with any other person;
or from firms where such director is a partner or from private companies where such director is a member.

The Holding Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in forward-looking
estimates are analysed. The Holding Company estimates the following matrix at the reporting date which is calculated on

overdue amounts.

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Default rate - Local 0.53% 0.46%
Default rate - Export 0.62% 0.60%
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
(% Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Balance at the beginning of the period (1.00) (0.32)
Acquisition through Business Combination - (0.10)
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade 0.19 (0.58)
receivables calculated at lifetime expected credit losses
Provision at the end of the period (0.81) (1.00)
Financial Assets - Cash & Cash Equivalents
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Balances with banks:
In Current Accounts 105.58 54.25
Deposit with original maturity of less than three months 60.00 3.73
Cash on hand 0.39 0.48
Total 165.97 58.46

Note: Balance with bank in current account as on March 31, 2021 includes balance with one bank account of erstwhile Noble
Explochem Limited aggregating to< 94,597/- where change of account name in Holding Company’s name is in process. Further,
% 46,408/-is lying in bank A/C -“CIRP Account Noble Explochem Limited” operated by Resolution Professional now handed

over to the Holding Company.

Financial Assets - Bank balances other than (8) above

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Unclaimed dividend accounts 1.26 1.31
Balances with banks:
Fixed Deposit with Bank 197.84 121.15
Total 199.10 122.46
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As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number of (X Crores) Number of % Crores)
Shares Shares
Authorised Capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 28,50,00,000 57.00| 28,50,00,000 57.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital
Issued & Subscribed Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 12,81,33,204 25.63| 12,76,33,204 25.53
Paid up Equity Shares of ¥ 2 each 12,68,52,109 2537 12,63,52,109 25.27
Total 25.37 25.27

Of the above : 3,22,704 Equity shares of X 2/- each of the Company have been allotted during 2012-13 without payment being received

in cash under the scheme of amalgamation of erstwhile Tonira Pharma Limited with the Company.

Disclosures:

i) Reconciliation of Shares

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Number of (X Crores) Number of (X Crores)

Shares Shares
Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,63,52,109 25.27| 12,63,52,109 25.27
Equity Shares issued during the year pursuant to 5,00,000 0.10 - -
conversion of share warrants
Shares outstanding at the end of the year 12,68,52,109 2537 12,63,52,109 25.27

ii)  Details of Shareholding in excess of 5%

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020

Name of Shareholder Number of % Number of %
Shares held Shares held

Kaygee Investments Private Limited 2,72,39,195 21.47% 2,70,18,195 21.38%
Kaygee Laboratories Private Limited 83,85,000 6.61% 83,21,000 6.59%
Chandurkar Investments Private Limited 69,78,005 5.50% 69,78,005 5.52%
DSP Mid Cap Fund* 56,37,555 4.44% 71,10,586 5.63%

* Disclosed as holding in previous year was greater than 5%

iii)  Rights and obligations of shareholders

The Holding Company has only one class of share referred as equity shares having a par value of ¥ 2/- per share. Each holder of
equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Holding Company, after payment of external liabilities. The distribution will be
in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The dividend is recommended by management which is
subject to shareholder’s approval at the General Meeting.

10A Share Warrants

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Share Warrants outstanding at the beginning of the year 11.94 -
Amount received during the year - 11.94
Issue of equity shares on conversion of share warrants (11.94) -
Share Warrants outstanding at the end of the year - 11.94
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11

Share Warrant

The Holding Company obtained in-principle approval under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation
2015 from National Stock Exchange of India (NSE) and BSE Limited to issue and allot 5,00,000 (Five Lacs Only) convertible warrants at a
price of ¥ 955/- per warrant. Pursuant to the shareholder approval dated Oct. 24, 2019, the Company issued and allotted 5,00,000 (Five
Lacs Only) convertible warrants at a price of ¥ 955/- per warrant with a right to the warrant holders to apply for and be allotted 1 (One)
Equity Share of the face value of ¥ 2/- each of the Company (“Equity Shares”) at a premium of ¥ 953/- per share for each Warrant within
a period of 18 (Eighteen) months from the date of allotment of the Warrants.

Pursuant to applications received from the allottees to convert the warrants allotted to them into equity shares, the Board of Directors
of the company at their meeting held on 2nd September, 2020 have allotted 5,00,000 Equity shares of ¥ 2/- each fully paid for cash at a
price of ¥ 955/- per equity share including a premium of ¥ 953/- per share aggregating to ¥ 47,75,00,000/-

Other Equity

X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
(a) |Capital Reserve 6.59 6.59
(b) | Securities Premium 96.52 48.87
(c) | Capital Redemption Reserve 0.26 0.26
(d) | General Reserve 1,311.05 1,311.05
(e) | Retained Earnings 3,247.75 2,208.38
(f) | OCl Reserve
- Cash flow hedging reserve (0.54) (1.19)
- Foreign currency translation reserve 14.65 14.11 16.31 15.12
Total 4,676.28 3,590.27

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on November 17, 2020, had declared an interim dividend of ¥ 8/- per equity share of ¥ 2/-
each. It resulted in an outflow of ¥ 101.48 crores.

Nature and purpose of each reserve

Capital Reserve

During amalgamation / merger / acquisition, the excess of net assets taken, over the consideration paid, if any, is treated as capital
reserve.

Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. In case of equity-settled
share based payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share is accounted as securities
premium reserve. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Redemption Reserve

The Holding Company has recognised Capital Redemption Reserve on buy-back of equity shares from its retained earnings. The amount
in Capital Redemption Reserve is equal to nominal amount of the equity shares bought back.
General Reserve

The General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the General
reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items
included in the General reserve will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit and loss.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Group has earned till date and is net of amount transferred to other reserves such as general
reserves, debenture redemption reserve etc., amount distributed as dividend and adjustments on account of transition to Ind AS.
Effective portion of cash flow hedges

The cash flow hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective portion of gains or losses arising on changes in fair value of designated
portion of hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The cumulative gain or loss arising on the changes of the fair value
of the designated portion of the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated under the cash flow hedge reserve will be
reclassified to profit or loss only when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss, or included as a basis adjustment to the non-
financial hedged item.

Other items of OCI
This reserve represents exchange differences arising on account of conversion of foreign operations to Company’s functional currency.
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12 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

a) Long-term Borrowings - Secured
R Crores)
Particulars Non - current portion Current Maturities
(read with note no.13)
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
i ‘ Foreign currency term loan 36.54 88.80 52.89 48.99
Total (a) 36.54 88.80 52.89 48.99
Details of above:-
R Crores)
Sr. | Name of the Instruments/ Institutions Non - current portion Current Maturities
No. As at As at As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020 | March 31,2021 | March 31, 2020
i. |Foreign Currency Term Loans
1 | BNP PARIBAS, Singapore Branch = - = 5.82
2 | Citibank N.A., Jersey 9.13 18.91 9.14 9.46
3 | HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd. - 45.30 43.75 33.71
4 | Citibank (For Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC) 27.41 24.59 - -
Total (a) 36.54 88.80 52.89 48.99
b) Long-term Borrowings - Unsecured
() | ECB-HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd. - 14.17 13.71 18.92
Total (b) = 14.17 13.71 18.92
Grand Total (a+b) 36.54 102.97 66.60 67.91

)
(i)
1

0]

d)

Details of securities and repayment terms of secured loans stated above
Foreign Currency Term Loans
BNP PARIBAS, Singapore Branch

Secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of movable fixed assets both present and future Including Pithampur

Plant(Indore).
Repayable in 13 equal quarterly installments from June 30, 2017.

Citibank N.A., Jersey

Secured by first pari-passu charge over movable assets of the company except assets at Unit Il at Sikkim plant and specific machines

at Athal and Ratlam which are financed under buyer’s credit.
Repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments from June 15, 2019.

HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd.

Secured by first pari-passu charge over current and future movable fixed assets of the Company except assets at Baroda.

Repayable in 11 half yearly un-equal installments from December 08, 2016.

Citi Bank (For Bayshore Pharmaceuticals LLC)

Secured by Corporate Guarantee given by Ipca Laboratories Ltd. (ultimate parent company).
ECB-HSBC Bank Mauritius Ltd. (unsecured)

Availed for refinancing of ECB of Standard Chartered Bank - London.

Repayable in 16 quarterly equal installments from August 16, 2019.

Maturity Profile of Borrowings is as per the original sanction terms without Ind AS effects.

(% Crores)

Particulars

March 31, 2021

March 31,2020

Installment payable between 1 to 2 years
Installment payable between 2 to 5 years
Installment payable beyond 5 years

36.55

93.64
9.46

Total

36.55

103.10
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e) Thelong-term loans are taken at the following rates.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2021

As at March 31, 2020

Interest Band

i) Foreign currency loan

3 Month Libor + 0.60% to 0.90% ‘ 3 Month Libor + 0.60% to 1.35%

13 Other Financial Liabilities

R Crores)
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Deposits from customers - 0.91 - 0.87
Current maturities of long term debt (refer note no.12) - 66.60 - 67.91
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 0.17 - 0.90
Unpaid dividends - 1.26 - 1.31
Amount payable on hedging transactions - 0.56 - 13.32
Payable for capital goods - 32.39 - 21.74
Other payable - 33.80 - 33.32
Total - 135.69 - 139.37
14 Provisions
(X Crores)
. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Particulars
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Gratuity 1.13 1.37 1.13 8.10
Provision for leave encashment 37.43 5.56 31.10 3.42
Other employee related provision - 12.98 - 341
Provision for breakage/damage = 6.51 - 3.32
Provision for product expiry - 62.22 - 59.85
Provision for sales return - 14.50 - 15.60
Total 38.56 103.14 32.23 93.70
The disclosure of provisions movement as required by Ind AS 37 is as follows:-
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
(i) | Provision for breakage/damage
Balance at the beginning of the period 3.32 3.06
Provisions made during the period 853 6.56
Utilisations during the period (5.34) (6.30)
Provision at the end of the period 6.51 3.32
(ii) |Provision for product expiry
Balance at the beginning of the period 59.85 52.25
Provisions made during the period 4250 42.51
Utilisations during the period (40.13) (34.91)
Provision at the end of the period 62.22 59.85
(iii) | Provision for sales return
Balance at the beginning of the period 15.60 10.67
Acquisition through Business Combination - 1.41
Provisions made during the period 32.89 34.34
Utilisations during the period (33.99) (30.82)
Provision at the end of the period 14.50 15.60
(iv) | Provision for wage arrears under negotiation
Balance at the beginning of the period 3.41 1.26
Provisions made during the period 9.57 2.51
Utilisations during the period - (0.36)
Provision at the end of the period 12.98 341
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14.1 (i) Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS - 19 “Employee Benefits”, of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015.

Gratuity

The Holding Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees
who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement
/ termination is the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied
for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is a funded plan and the company makes contributions to recognised
funds in India. The company does not fully fund the liability and maintains a target level of funding to be maintained over
a period of time based on estimations of expected gratuity payments.

These plans typically expose the Holding Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk
and salary risk.

Investment risk-

For funded plans that rely on insurers for managing the assets, the value of assets certified by the insurer may not be the
fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases, the present value of the assets is independent of the future
discount rate. This can result in wide fluctuations in the net liability or the funded status if there are significant changes in
the discount rate during the inter-valuation period.

Market Risk (Discount Risk)

Market risk is a collective term for risks that are related to the changes and fluctuations of the financial markets. The discount
rate reflects the time value of money. An increase in discount rate leads to decrease in Defined Benefit Obligation of the
plan benefits & vice versa. This assumption depends on the yields on the corporate/government bonds and hence the
valuation of liability is exposed to fluctuations in the yields as at the valuation date.”

Longevity Risk
The impact of longevity risk will depend on whether the benefits are paid before retirement age or after . Typically for the
benefits paid on or before the retirement age, the longevity risk is not very material.”

Actuarial Risk

Salary Increase Assumption: Actual Salary increase that are higher than the assumed salary escalation, will result in increase
to the Obligation at a rate that is higher than expected.”

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and
the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Expense recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss

Current service cost 9.36 7.73
Interest expense 5.09 4.79
Expected return on plan assets (4.75) (4.98)
Total 9.70 7.54
Expense recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Return on plan assets (greater)/Less than discount Rate (0.32) 0.34
Actuarial (gain)/loss due to experience on DBO 0.46 7.06
Total 0.14 7.40
Present value of funded defined benefit obligation 90.75 79.65
Fair value of plan assets (88.25) (70.42)
Funded status 2.50 9.23
Net defined benefit (asset) / liability 2.50 9.23
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(X Crores)

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 79.65 64.71
Liability raised due to acquisition through business combination - 0.86
Current service cost 9.36 7.73
Interest cost 5.09 4.79
Actuarial (gain)/loss 0.46 7.06
Benefits paid (3.81) (5.50)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 90.75 79.65
Movements in fair value of the plan assets are as follows.
Opening fair value of plan assets 70.42 65.50
Expected returns on plan assets 4.75 4,98
Remeasurement (gains)/losses:
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets 0.32 (0.34)
Contribution from employer 16.41 5.73
Benefits paid (3.65) (5.45)
Closing fair value of the plan assets 88.25 70.42
Remeasurement effect recognised on Other Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from experience adjustments 0.46 7.06
Actuarial (gain)/loss on plan assets (0.32) 0.34
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss included in OCI 0.14 7.40

The principal assumptions used as at the balance sheet date are used for the purpose of actuarial valuations were as follow

Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate

Withdrawal rate
Retirement age

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 6.80% 6.73%

Salary increase rate 6.00% 6.00%

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

5%

58 Years

IALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

5%

58 Years

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit obligations is determined by reference to market yields at the end of

the reporting period on government bonds.

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase

and mortality.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions
occurring at the end of reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at As at
March 31,2021 | March 31,2020

Defined Benefit Obligation

Discount rate

a. Discount rate - 100 basis points 98.04 85.91

b. Discount rate + 100 basis points 84.27 73.95

Salary increase rate

a. Rate-100 basis points 84.54 74.17

b. Rate + 100 basis points 97.61 85.56
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The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would clear in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

Further more, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

15 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Deferred tax liabilities on account of :
Depreciation including on R & D Assets, Amortisation and 221.99 227.32
impairment
Deferred tax assets on account of :
Leave encashment 14.96 12.02
Bonus /Expenses 1.05 1.05
MAT Credit available 7243 88.44 7243 85.50
Net deferred tax liability 133.55 141.82
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Deferred tax assets of subsidiaries 1.95 2.01
Net deferred tax assets 1.95 2.01
16 Other Non-financial liabilities
(T Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Security Deposit 1.56 = 1.56 -
Revenue received in advance - 20.70 - 118.21
Duties & Taxes Payable - 29.85 - 27.63
Profit split payable - 5.44 - 7.32
Deferred Income 0.59 0.15 0.70 0.19
Other Payables - 6.49 - 5.98
Total 2.15 62.63 2.26 159.33
17 Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
(X Crores)
Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Secured Loans*:
Working capital loan from banks 37.78 186.67
Unsecured Loans*:
Working capital loan from banks 111.42 124.28
Total 149.20 310.95

* Secured loans are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of all the stocks, book debts and all other movable current assets of the
Holding Company and second charge by way of mortgage of the immovable properties of the Holding Company and hypothecation of plant &
machinery of the Holding Company.
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18 Financial Liabilities - Trade Payables

(X Crores)

Particulars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
a) |Trade Payables for goods and services:

- Total dues of Micro and small enterprises 64.03 8.28

- Others 532.36 553.51
b) | Acceptances 69.78 48.06
Total 666.17 609.85

Trade paya